
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 

November 18, 2019

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764.

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 

Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency 
John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development  
Kevin Shear, Building Official 
Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director  
Khoi Do, City Engineer 
Chief Derek Williams, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Julie Bjork, Executive Director, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the 
agenda may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members 
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming 
agenda. 



-2-

AGENDA ITEMS 

For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak.  After a staff 
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing.  At that time the applicant will be 
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case.  Members of the public will then be allowed 
five (5) minutes each to speak.  The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions 
relative to the case and the testimony provided.  The question period will not count against your time 
limit.  After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut 
any public testimony.  The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and 
deliberate the matter. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. MINUTES APPROVAL

Development Advisory Board Minutes of September 16, 2019, approved as written.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR
FILE NO. PDEV19-027: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling
106,212 square feet on 5.35 acres of land located at the southwest corner of San Antonio
Avenue and State Street, within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district. The environmental
impacts of this project were previously analyzed with The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-
001) Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) that was certified by the City
Council on January 27, 2010. This application introduces no new significant environmental
impacts, and all previously adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project
approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP);
(APNs: 1049-301-05 & 1049-301-06) submitted by Comstock Realty Partners.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary – use of previous EIR

2. File No. PDEV19-027 (Development Plan)

Motion to Approve/Deny

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR
FILE NO. PDEV19-015: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling
28,003 square feet on 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Holt Boulevard, within the
IP (Industrial Park) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section
15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and
was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 1011-111-04)



 
 

-3- 

submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation. Planning Commission action is 
required. 
 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines §15332   
       

2. File No. PDEV19-015 (Development Plan)  
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PDEV19-025: A Development Plan to construct a mixed-use project consisting 
of 925 multiple-family dwellings and 5,000 square feet of retail space on 22.39 acres of 
land located at the southeast corner of Vineyard Avenue and Inland Empire Boulevard, 
within the Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) land use district of the Meredith 
International Centre Specific Plan. Staff is recommending the adoption of an Addendum to 
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH #. 2014051020) certified by City Council on April 7, 2015. This Application 
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All previously adopted mitigation 
measures will be a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located within 
the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 0110-311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, and 
0110-311-55) submitted by G.H. Palmer Associates. Planning Commission action is 
required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
Motion to recommend Approval/Denial of a use of an Addendum to a previous EIR 

       
2. File No. PDEV19-025 (Development Plan)  

 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PDEV19-038: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-038) to construct a 
2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee) with a 480 square foot outdoor 
patio on 0.36 acres of land, located at the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street 
(110 West E. Street and 511 N. Euclid Avenue)  within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) 
and EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay) zoning districts. The project is categorically exempt from 
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 
15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed 
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and 
was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1048-355-09 and 10) 
submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. Planning Commission action is required.  

 
 



 
 

-4- 

1. CEQA Determination    
 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines §15332  

       
2. File No. PDEV19-038 (Development Plan)  

 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PDEV19-039: A Development Plan to construct 67 conventional single-family 
homes on 11.24 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and 
Parkplace Avenue, within the Conventional Medium Lot Residential district of Planning 
Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were 
previously reviewed in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for which an 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2004011009) was certified by the City Council on 
October 17, 2006. This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts, 
and all previously adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0218-014-
25) submitted by Taylor Morrison of California, LLC. Planning Commission action 
is required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – use of previous EIR 

  
2. File No. PDEV19-039 (Development Plan)  

 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
G. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW 

FOR FILE NO. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970): A Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 0.71 
acres of land into three traditional single-family residential lots located at 1919 South 
Cypress Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning 
district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land 
Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1050-331-24) submitted by Mr. Mark Raab. 
Planning Commission action is required.  

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines § 15315  

  
 
 





CITY OF ONTARIO 

Development Advisory Board 

Minutes 

September 16, 2019

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Rudy Zeledon, Chairman, Planning Department  
Kevin Shear, Building Department  
Lora Gearhart, Fire Department  
Elda Zavala, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation  
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utilities Company  
Emily Hernandez, Police Department  
Bryan Lirley, Engineering Department 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Joe De Sousa, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation  
Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development Agency 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Antonio Alejos, Engineering Department 
Luis Batres, Planning Department 
Gwen Berendsen, Planning Department 
Denny Chen, Planning Department 
Maureen Duran, Planning Department 
Matthew Holmes, Engineering Department 
Norma Lopez, Planning Department 
Henry Noh, Planning Department 
Dean Williams, Engineering Department 
Derrick Womble, Development Administration 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No one responded from the audience. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the September 4, 2019, meeting of
the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Mr. Lirley; and approved
unanimously by those present (4-0).  Ms. Gearhart, Mr. Aly, and Ms. Zavala recused themselves, as
they did not attend that meeting.

Item A - 1 of 7



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 

PDEV18-035: A Development Plan to construct a three-unit apartment building on 0.102-acre of land 
located at 418 East Transit Street, within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) zoning district. The project 
is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was 
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APN: 1049-067-04); submitted by Richard Southerland. 
Planning Commission action is required. 

 
Representative Richard Southerland was present and stated he had reviewed the conditions of 
approval and had a question regarding the soil report.  Mr. Southerland asked why this was 
necessary as it was the first time he had seen it.  Mr. Shear responded and indicated a soil report is 
required for all new construction.   
 
Mr. Southerland referred to item b, page 32 of 40, regarding the curb and gutter removal.  He asked 
if it was 18 feet of curb or 18 feet of width of roadway that needs to be replaced. Mr. Lirley stated 
it was 18 feet from center line so along the project frontage, replace the curb and gutter.   
 
Mr. Southerland then referred to item 2.37 regarding the traffic light to be installed along Holt.  He 
asked if it should be along Transit Street and not Holt, at which time Mr. Lirley confirmed it would 
be on Transit Street.  
 
Mr. Southerland also referred to item b, page 22 of 40.  It states a private hydrant and connection 
was needed; however, Mr. Southerland was under the impression this was not necessary.  Ms. 
Gearhart explained that if there are over two units, it would require a specific fire sprinkler sytem; 
therefore, a fire department connection is required.  She also stated there needs to be a hydrant 
within 150 feet of that.  Mr. Southerland stated there was an existing hydrant there and asked if this 
would suffice.  Ms. Gearhart stated if there was an exising hydrant, that would be acceptable.  
 
Mr. Zeledon asked if there were any other questions; there were no further comments or questions.  

 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV18-035 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Ms. E. Hernandez; and approved unanimously 
by those present (7-0). 
 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR FILE 
NO. PMTT19-002 (PM 20126): A Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 0.47 acre of land into two single-
family residential lots located at the southwest corner of Francis Street and San Antonio Avenue, within 
the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The project is categorically 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is 
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1050-341-06) submitted by Fernando Valenzuela. Planning 
Commission action is required. 

 

Item A - 2 of 7



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

Representative Fernando Valenzuela was present and stated he had a question regarding item 2.22 
referring to the widening of Francis Street.  Mr. Valenzuela was concerned with widening the street 
since there were several homes behind his property and asked if that condition could be waived.  
Mr. Lirley informed Mr. Valenzuela the condition was pertaining to the future widening of Francis 
Street in front of the second parcel that his map will create.  Mr. Valenzuela asked if he would be 
responsible for the $15,000 cost.  Mr. Lirley stated there was a cost estimate for the ultimate 
widening to put curb face.  He stated there is an angle point on the south half of Francis Street, a 
transition back as you go west from San Antonio.  Mr. Lirley went on to explain that when the 
parcel map is submitted, Francis Street will have to be widened to its ultimate width.  At that time, 
the transition will have to be removed, and the $15,000 is an estimate to build it to current Master 
Plan standards.   
 
Mr. Valenzuela asked for further explanation.  Mr. Lirley explained there was a transition at the 
westerly property line, so the south side of Francis is not at its ultimate width but informed Mr. 
Valenzuela he could work with the the transportation department on this matter.  Mr. Zeledon 
reiterated that there are improvements associated with property that is subdivided, and when the 
final map is completed, the in lieu fees will be due at that time.  He also informed Mr. Valenzuela 
that he could work with Engineering on this matter.  Mr. Valenzuela agreed.   
 
Mr. Zeledon then entertained a motion to recommend approval with Engineering Department staff 
working with Mr. Valenzuela to resolve the in lieu of fees issue.   

 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PMTT19-002 (PM 20126) subject to conditions to 
the Planning Commission was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Mr. Aly; approved unanimously 
by those present (7-0). 
 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, VARIANCE, AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 
FOR FILE NOS. PVAR19-001 AND PDEV19-003: A Variance (File No. PVAR19-001) to exceed 
the maximum fence height within a portion of the street landscape setback area, from 3 feet to 6 feet, 
and a Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-003) to construct a 2,886-square foot industrial building 
on 0.18 acre of land located at the southeast corner of Ontario Boulevard and Bon View Avenue, at 
902 East Ontario Boulevard, within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district. Staff has determined 
that the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32: In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APNs: 1049-193-01 & 1049-193-02) 
submitted by HDC Construction, Inc. Planning Commission action required. 

 
Mr. Zeledon stated that there was a variance application submitted with this project but has since 
been pulled.  Staff determined the variance was not required, so at this time the item would require 
a DAB approval only.  
 
Representative Tamara Soussan of HDC Construction was present.  Mr. Zeledon asked if she had  
reviewed the conditions of approval at which time Ms. Soussan stated she had.  She informed Mr. 
Zeledon that he had anwered her question in the previous item regarding fees.  She stated it was a 
clear assessment on how fees are structured, and she had no other questions or concerns.  Mr. 
Zeledon stated they would be the approving body today since the variance was pulled.  Ms. Soussan 
agreed to the conditions of approval.  

 

Item A - 3 of 7



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 

Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV19-003 subject to conditions was made by Mr. 
Shear; seconded by Mr. Lirley; and approved unanimously by those present (7-0). 
 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, VARIANCE AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 
FOR FILE NOS. PVAR19-006 AND PDEV19-018: A Variance (File No. PVAR19-006) to reduce 
the front drive aisle setback from 20 feet to 2.5 feet, in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. 
PDEV19-018) to construct a 3,033-square foot fast-food restaurant with drive-thru, on 0.34 acre of land 
located at 624 West Holt Boulevard, within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) zoning district. The 
project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15305 (Class 5, Minor Alterations in Land Use) and Section 15332 (Class 
32, Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the 
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent 
with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(ALUCP); (APN: 1048-591-30) submitted by Holt-San Antonio LLC. Planning Commission 
action is required. 

 
Representative Yousef Ibrahim was present.  Mr. Zeledon stated he believed his concern regarding 
the fire hydrant was previously addressed.  Mr. Ibrahim agreed and also stated his concerns 
regarding the street lights were addressed as well.  Mr. Ibrahim asked the board for clarification as 
to why four bins were needed, as he felt this was excessive.  Mr. Aly stated he did see this in the 
conditions and they were going to be revised to state three bins would be sufficient.  Project 
Architect Waseem Rasheed spoke.  He stated the trash enclosure is on the adjacent parcel but they 
could request a smaller bin if necessary.  Mr. Aly responded and informed Mr. Rasheed it was 
determined by the amount that is produced.  Mr. Aly reiterated there were comments in the 
conditions stating applicant can submit Integrated Waste Management report.  This report would 
address all the different waste that is produced and all the logistics regarding that.  Mr. Rasheed         
asked if they can revise conditions to state three bins are required instead of the four bins.  Mr. Aly 
confirmed this could be revised after the plan check process.   
 
Mr. Ibrahim referred to the Police Department requirement of cameras on the proprety.  He 
explained that was a part of the tenant improvement and added The Habit would be submitting the 
plans for this.  He asked if this would be acceptable to add the cameras in the tenant improvement 
plans.  Ms. Hernandez asked for further clarification, at which time Mr. Ibrahim asked if she would 
accept the plans without the cameras at this time.  Ms. Hernandez confirmed this would be 
acceptable.   
    
Mr. Ibrahim stated there was a lot of landscape required to be around the trash enclosure which 
would necessitate the cutting of concrete and installing pipes.  He stated they intended to put ivy 
around the enclosure.  Mr. Zeledon stated it is a requirement to have five feet of landscape around 
the trash enclosure.  Architect Mr. Rasheed informed the board this would require the enclosure to 
eventually be removed.  Mr. Zeledon said staff could work with them during the plan check process 
at which time submittals would be by The Habit and those conditions would be pertinent during 
construction.  Mr. Zeledon reiterated that he would not strike the condition but state for the record 
that staff would work with them on the limitations.  
  
Mr. Rasheed referred to the city standard that there were to be fiberoptic conduits laid out and 
asked if this was mandatory since it would ultimately be destroyed once it is widened.  Mr. Zeledon 
responded and said this would only apply if there were to be frontage improvements.  Mr. Rasheed 
confirmed there would not.  Mr. Zeledon stated those requirements would only go into effect if  
they were touching the frontage, impacting the right of way.  He added it was a standard condition.  

Item A - 4 of 7



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 

Mr. Lirley clarified it was just the conduit going into the building from the public right of way and 
not the cable.  It would only be the conduit that he would need to install. 
 
There were no further questions or concerns.  Mr. Zeledon entertained a motion to recommend 
approval at which time Mr. Aly reiterated the condition of the four trash bins would be revised to 
a three trash bin requirement.  
 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV19-018 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. Aly; seconded by Ms. E. Hernandez; and approved unanimously by 
those present (7-0). 

 
F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 

PDEV19-008: A Development Plan to construct 432 conventional single-family homes on 86.64 acres 
of land located south of Eucalyptus Avenue, between Archibald Avenue and Cucamonga Creek 
Channel, and north of Merrill Avenue, within the Conventional Small Lot Residential district of 
Planning Area 1 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were 
previously reviewed in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for which an Environmental 
Impact Report (SCH# 2004011009) was certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006. This 
application introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation 
measures are a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The 
project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with 
policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook 
published by the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics; (APN: 0218-271-
22) submitted by LS-Ontario LLC. Planning Commission action is required. 

 
Senior Planner Mr. Noh wished to make some clarifications as the applicant came forward.  He 
referred to revisions made on page 77, condition #3, regarding the utilities and transformer location.  
He also referred to page 78, condition #4, which added a sentence to state the Planning Landscape 
Division will cordinate with Army Core of Engineers to show the DG trail adjacent to landscape.  
Mr. Zeledon added that as staff works with Army Core of Engineers, the process will not be delayed 
and they will move forward while correcting the trail.  Mr. Noh stated conditon #6 revision will 
add a sentence regarding the setbacks where street trees are placed, and condition #7 would add 
the same language to the end of the condition.  
 
Representative Shannon Lang was present and wanted to thank the staff for taking the time to go 
over their concerns.  Ms. Lang had a question regarding the Engineering comments referencing the 
grading plan approval.  She asked if the requirement was to have these plans approved prior to 
obtaining building permits, or if they can start the process and submit.  Mr. Aly responded and 
made the clarification that this was a standard comment and the condition speaks to the ER.  He 
added unless changes are being made to the site, applicant would be complying; however, the 
comment remains in the report in case changes were to be made in the future.    
 
Mr. Zeledon asked if there were any other questions, at which time Mr. Aly wanted to make a 
clarification on the landscape changes that were made to the comments on condition #3, which 
states the minimums are still subject to separations that utilities have for the meters and backflows.  
Ms. Lang stated she understood.   
 

Item A - 5 of 7



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page 6 

Mr. Zeledon stated while there are many standards, they would continue to work with the Planning 
Landscape Division to keep the project moving forward. 

There were no further questions or concerns. 

Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV19-008 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Ms. Gearhart; and approved unanimously by 
those present (7-0). 

G. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PDEV19-013: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-013) to construct a 33,408 square foot
commercial building on 3.96 acres of land, located at 1623 and 1625 East Holt Boulevard, within the
BP (Business Park) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill
Developments) of the CEQA Guidelines. This application introduces no new significant environmental
impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APNs: 0110-081-03 and 0110-081-10) submitted by Holt
Boulevard, LLC. Planning Commission action is required.

Mr. Zeledon stated he spoke to the applicant previously and while they would not be present, 
they agreed to all the conditions of approval.  There were no questions or concerns.  

Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV19-013 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Ms. E. Hernandez; and approved unanimously 
by those present (7-0). 

H. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PDEV19-022: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-022) to construct a 124,777 square foot
industrial building on 5.47 acres of land, located at 1650 South Vineyard Avenue, within the IG
(General Industrial) zoning district. Staff is recommending the adoption of an Addendum to The
Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) certified by
City Council on January 27, 2010. This application introduces no new significant environmental
impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APN: 0113-394-31) submitted by Vineyard Avenue
Industrial, LLC. Planning Commission action is required.

Applicant Jay Tanjuan of Vineyard Avenue Industrial, LLC, was present.  Mr. Zeledon asked if 
he reviewed the conditions, at which time Mr. Tanjuan said he had some questions.  He 
referred to the physical address of 165 S. Vineyard, stating on Mr. Shear’s comments it read  
1900 West Locust Street.  Mr. Shear responded and said the address is 1900 West Locust Street.  

Mr. Tanjuan then referred to page 169, Planning section 2.10.  He wanted to confirm 
the Development Code sign regulations reference should be 8.01 and not 8.10.  Mr. Zeledon 
said it should be 8.01.   

Item A - 6 of 7



Item A - 7 of 7



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
November 18, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-027 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 106,212 square 
feet on 5.35 acres of land located at the southwest corner of San Antonio Avenue and State Street, within 
the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district (APNs: 1049-301-05 & 1049-301-06); submitted by Comstock 
Realty Partners. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

Comstock Realty Partners, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-027, as described in the subject of this Decision 
(herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project").  

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 5.35 acres of land located at southwest
corner of San Antonio Avenue and State Street and is depicted in Exhibit A—Project Location Map, 
attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and 
surrounding the project site are as follows:  

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant Industrial IL – Light Industrial N/A 

North Union Pacific Railroad Rail RC – Rail Corridor N/A 

South Residential Low Medium Density 
Residential 

MDR-11 (Medium 
Density Residential 
11.1 – 18.0 DU/AC) 

N/A 

East 
Vehicle Storage and 

Single Family 
Residential 

Industrial IL – Light Industrial N/A 

West Industrial 
Manufacturing Industrial IL – Light Industrial N/A 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Site Design/Building Layout — The Applicant is requesting Development Plan
approval to construct an industrial building totaling 106,212 square feet and having a floor area ratio (FAR) 
of 0.45. The proposed building is rectangular in shape and occupies three-quarters of the site. The main 
office entrance is oriented to the north, facing State Street, and is situated near the northeast corner of the 
site, adjacent to one of two parking lots provided on site that will accommodate visitors and office 
employees. A secondary entrance is provided at the northwest corner of the building and is oriented west, 
toward Cypress Avenue, to provide direct access to the employee parking lot located at the southwest 
corner of the site. The building is setback approximately 12 feet from San Antonio Avenue, to the east; 

Item B - 1 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

approximately 80 feet from State Street, to the north; 10 to 14 feet from Park Street, to the south; and 
approximately 180 feet from Cypress Avenue, to the west.  
 
The Applicant is proposing two options for the tractor-trailer/storage yard area that will be located along the 
northern portion of the site. Both options provide for tractor-trailer parking, truck maneuvering, loading 
activities, and outdoor staging. Option A will provide a small yard area that is centered along the northern 
portion of the site located in front of the of the dock high doors (see Exhibit B—Site Plan (Option A), 
attached). Option B provides a larger yard area that extends past the width of building, extending to Cypress 
Avenue and occupying the northwest corner of the site (see Exhibit B—Site Plan (Option B), attached). 
Option B will allow the applicant to accommodate a user that may require additional outdoor storage and/or 
trailer parking area. The yard/outdoor storage area will be screened from view of public streets by a 
combination of landscaping and tilt-up screen walls with view-obstructing gates. The Applicant has 
proposed a screen wall at 14 feet in height to screen views from State Street, San Antonio Avenue and 
Cypress Avenue. The wall will be of tilt-up concrete construction or split face block that will match the 
architecture of the building. Tubular steel fencing at 8 feet in height has been proposed on the western 
portion of the site to secure the parking lot.  
 

(b) Site Access/Circulation — There are three points of vehicular access proposed for 
the project site. The first access point is located near the northeast corner of the site, on State Street, 
providing access to the parking lot and main office entrance via 24-foot wide driveway. A secondary access 
point is provided on State Street via a 90-foot wide driveway that is centered along the northern property 
line and is intended only for tractor-trailer access to the site. The third access point is centered along the 
western property line, providing access to Cypress Avenue via a 26-foot wide driveway that leads to the 
southwest employee parking lot.  
 

(c) Parking — The Project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the “Warehouse 
and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The industrial building requires a 
total of 58 off-street parking spaces, and 62 spaces have been provided, exceeding the minimum 
requirements of the Development Code. In addition, a minimum of one tractor-trailer parking space for each 
4 dock-high loading spaces is required to be provided. There are 16 dock-high loading doors proposed, 
requiring 4 tractor-trailer parking spaces, which have been provided. 

 
(d) Architecture — The proposed industrial warehouse building is of concrete tilt-up 

construction. Architecturally, the building incorporates smooth-painted concrete, inset reveals, color 
blocking, storefront windows with anodized aluminum mullions and blue-green glazing, and painted steel 
canopies at the main office entries (see Exhibit D—Elevations, attached). The mechanical equipment for 
the industrial warehouse building will be roof-mounted and obscured from public view by the parapet walls 
and, if necessary, equipment screens, which will incorporate design features consistent with the building 
architecture. Staff believes that the proposed project illustrates the type of high-quality architecture 
promoted by the Development Code. This is exemplified through the use of: 

 
• Articulation in the building footprint, incorporating a combination of recessed and popped-out wall 

areas; and 
• Articulation in the building parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the building’s entries and 

breaks up large expanses of building wall; and 
• A mix of exterior materials, finishes and fixtures; and 
• Incorporation of base and top treatments defined by changes in color, materials, and recessed wall 

areas; and 
• The building was designed to ensure that its massing and proportion, along with its colors and 

architectural detailing, are consistent throughout all four building elevations, in particular the 
southern elevation that will face the existing residential neighborhood to the south.  

 
(e) Landscaping — The project provides landscaping along all four street frontages, 

the perimeter of the site and throughout the parking lot. of the Development Code requires that the Project 

Item B - 2 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

provide a minimum 15 percent landscape coverage and 17percent has been provided. Moreover, a 
combination of 24-inch, 36-inch, and 48-inch box accent and shade trees will be provided throughout the 
project site, in addition to a variety of shrubs and groundcovers that are low water usage and drought 
tolerant. The proposed on-site and off-site landscape improvements will assist towards creating a walkable, 
safe area for pedestrians to access the project site (see Exhibit D—Landscape Plan, attached).  
 

(f) Community Meeting — The project site is adjacent to residential uses to the south 
and west, which required that a community meeting be held to discuss the project with the surrounding 
residents. The Planning Department held the community meeting on Monday, September 23, 2019, from 
6:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m., at City Hall Community Conference Rooms 1 and 2, to discuss the proposed 
development. Planning and Engineering Department staff, and the applicant, were in attendance during the 
community meeting. Six residents attended the meeting and spoke in favor of the proposed project. To 
date, the Planning Department has not received any further inquiries or written correspondence regarding 
the proposed project. 
 

(g) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to 
serve the project. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan 
(PWQMP), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality 
requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by 
minimizing impervious surfaces and maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices 
(BMPs), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes the 
use of an underground stormwater infiltration system for the project. Any overflow drainage will be conveyed 
to the public street by way of parkway culverts. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) that was 
certified by the City Council on January 27, 2010, and this Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and Act on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

Item B - 3 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 

Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-making body for 
the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR 
and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified 
EIR and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with The 
Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) that was certified 
by the City Council on January 27, 2010, and this Application introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts; and 
 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the 
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; 
and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the 
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the 
Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions 
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 

Item B - 4 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 
Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and. 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was 
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
EIR; or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Certified EIR; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which 
the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the decision-making body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the 
DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

Item B - 5 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Industrial land use district 
of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Light Industrial zoning district. The development standards and 
conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the 
goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the Light Industrial 
zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (industrial), as-well-as 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any 
significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and 
[v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components 
of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences 
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land 
use being proposed (industrial). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has determined 
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with 
the development standards and guidelines described in the Development Code. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the Application subject to each and 
every condition set forth in the Department reports included as Attachment A of this Decision and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Item B - 6 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item B - 7 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

 Page 8 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

 
 

Item B - 8 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN (Option A) 
 

 

Item B - 9 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN (Option B) 
 

 

Item B - 10 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item B - 11 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

 
 
  

Item B - 12 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 13 

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN 
 

 
 

Item B - 13 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 14 

 

Item B - 14 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-027 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

 Page 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item B - 15 of 48



 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV19-027 
 
Related Files: N/A 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 106,212 square 
feet on 5.35 acres of land located at the southwest corner of San Antonio Avenue and State Street, within 
the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district (APNs: 1049-301-05 & 1049-301-06); submitted by Comstock 
Realty Partners.  
 
Prepared By: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2276 (direct) 
Email: lmejia@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item B - 16 of 48



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-027 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The 
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting 
drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 

and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 

provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas. 
 

(a) Loading facilities shall be designed and constructed pursuant to Development 
Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

Item B - 17 of 48



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-027 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

(b) Areas designated for off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation and 
maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of materials or equipment. 
 

(c) Outdoor loading and storage areas, and loading doors, shall be screened from 
public view pursuant to the requirements of Development Code Paragraph 6.02.025.A.2 (Screening of 
Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas, and Loading Doors) Et Seq. 
 

(d) Outdoor loading and storage areas shall be provided with gates that are view-
obstructing by one of the following methods: 
 

(i) Construct gates with a perforated metal sheet affixed to the inside of the 
gate surface (50 percent screen); or 

(ii) Construct gates with minimum one-inch square tube steel pickets spaced 
at maximum 2-inches apart. 
 

(e) The minimum gate height for screen wall openings shall be established based 
upon the corresponding wall height, as follows: 
 

Screen Wall Height Minimum Gate Height 

14 feet: 10 feet 

12 feet: 9 feet 

10 feet: 8 feet 

8 feet: 8 feet 

6 feet: 6 feet 
 

2.7 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 
 

2.9 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

Item B - 18 of 48



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-027 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

2.10 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.11 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.12 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with The 
Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report, certified by the Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010, in 
conjunction with File No. PGPA06-001 (City Council Resolution No. 2010-006). This application introduces 
no new significant environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations 
where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. This Application introduces no new 
significant environmental impacts. All previously adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project 
approval, and are incorporated herein by this reference. All previously adopted mitigation measures shall 
be a condition of project approval, as they are applicable, and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.13 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.14 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.15 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) The northeast parking lot drive aisle shall extend 5 FT beyond the side of the last 
parking space in the drive aisle to provide adequate area for the backing-up of parked vehicles. 

Item B - 19 of 48



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-027 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

(b) Site Plan B shall provide a 14-foot high decorative screen wall around the entire 
storage yard area. A 5-foot wide landscape planter shall be constructed along the southern portion of the 
storage yard area and maintain 10-foot landscaped setback along State Street and Cypress Avenue.  
 
 

Item B - 20 of 48



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV19-027

Southwest corner of San Antonio Ave & State Street

1049-301-05 & 06

Vacant

Development Plan to construct a new 104,078 SF Industrial warehouse building

5.35 acres

n/a

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Lorena Mejia

7/25/19

2019-037
35 FT

150 ft

Item B - 21 of 48



Item B - 22 of 48



Item B - 23 of 48



Item B - 24 of 48



Item B - 25 of 48



Item B - 26 of 48



Item B - 27 of 48



Item B - 28 of 48



Item B - 29 of 48



Item B - 30 of 48



Item B - 31 of 48



Item B - 32 of 48



Item B - 33 of 48



Item B - 34 of 48



Item B - 35 of 48



Item B - 36 of 48



Item B - 37 of 48



 
Page | 1  Rev. 6/27/2019 2:42 PM 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
BROADBAND OPERATIONS 
303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

  

Broadband Operations 6/27/2019 

 

Reviewer’s Name Phone 

Anna Vaca, Sr. Systems Analyst 909-395-2349 

File # 

PDEV19-027 

Project Engineer: 

Unknown 
Project Name and Location: 

A development plan to construct new industrial building consisting of a warehouse and office 

area on 5.35 acres of land located on the SWC State St. and San Antonio Ave. 
Sent to: 

Antonio Alejos, Assistant Engineer 

☐ Plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.  No Comments.   

☒ Plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.  Report below.   

☐ 
Plan does not adequately address the departmental concerns.  The conditions contained below 
must be met prior to scheduling for Development Advisory Board. 

 
 
Notes 
Req’d 
on 
Plans 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – PDEV19-027 

☐ ☒ 1.  Project shall be designed and constructed to provide access to the City’s conduit and fiber optic system 
per the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan.  Building entrance conduits shall start from the closest OntarioNet 
hand hole in the Right-of-Way (ROW) and shall terminate in the main telecommunications room for each 
building.  Conduit infrastructure shall interconnect with the primary and/or secondary backbone fiber optic 
conduit system at the nearest OntarioNet hand hole.   

☐ ☒ 2.  Contractor is responsible for locating and connecting conduit to existing OntarioNet hand holes on 
adjacent properties.  There should be no "Gaps" in conduit between the contractor’s development and the 
adjacent property. OntarioNet hand holes are typically located in the ROW at the extreme edge of a 
property. 

☐ ☒ 3.  The City requires public utility easement for fiber optics on all private aisles/alley ways. 

☐ ☒ 4.  Hand holes - Design and install OntarioNet fiber optic hand hole HH-2 (17x30x24), HH-2A (24x36x30), 
HH-3 (30x48x36) and/or HH-4 (36x60x36) as needed.  Respectively Newbasis Part # PCA-173024-
90116, PCA-243630-90064, PCA-304836-90244 and PCA-366036-90146 per City Standard 1316. 
Conduits sweeping into hand holes shall enter in flush with the cut-out mouse holes aligned parallel to the 
bottom of the box and come in perpendicular to the wall of the box. Conduits shall not enter at any angle 
other than parallel.  Provide 5 foot minimum clearance from existing/proposed utilities. 

☐ ☒ 5.  ROW Conduit – Design and install fiber optic conduit at a minimum depth of 36-inch.  Trenching shall be 
per City Standard 1306. Install (1) 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe (Orange) duct and (1) 2-
inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe (Orange with Black Stripe) duct. Conduit(s) between ROW 
hand holes and hand holes on private property shall be 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe 
(Orange) duct.  

☐ ☐ 6.  ROW Conduit - Design and Install all Fiber Optic Conduit at a Minimum Depth of 36".  Trenching Shall be 
Per City Standard 1306.  (1) 7-way Microduct (Duraline - Orange) 13/16mm tubes and (1) 2" HDPE SDR-
11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe (Orange) duct. Conduit(s) between ROW hand holes and hand holes on private 
property shall be 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe (Orange) duct.  Conduit(s) between ROW 
hand holes and hand holes on private property shall be 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe 
(Orange) duct. 

Item B - 38 of 48



 
Page | 2  Rev. 6/27/2019 2:42 PM 

Notes 
Req’d 
on 
Plans 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL – PDEV19-027 

☐ ☒ 7.  Building Entrance (Commercial) - Design and install fiber optic conduit at a minimum depth of 36 inches.  
Trenching shall be per City Standard for Commercial Buildings. (1) 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) 
roll pipe (Orange) duct.  Install locate/tracer wires minimum 12AWG within conduit bank and fiber warning 
tape 18-inch above the uppermost duct.  

☐ ☐ 8.  Building Entrance (Single Family) – Design and install 0.75-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe 
(Orange) duct from hand holes on property or hand holes in the ROW. Consult City’s Fiber Team for 
design assistance. 

☐ ☒ 9.  Warning Tape - Contractor shall supply and install an approved non-detectable warning tape 18-inch 
above the uppermost conduit when backfilling trenches, pits or excavations greater than 10’ in length. 
Warning Tape shall be non-detectable, Orange in color, 4-inch minimum width, 4 mil, 500% minimum 
elongation, with bold printed black letters “CAUTION - BURIED FIBER OPTIC CABLE BELOW” printed in 
bold black lettering no less than 2-inch high. 

☐ ☒ 10.  All hand holes, conduits, conduit banks, materials and installations are per the City's Fiber Optic Master 
Plan and City Fiber Optic Cable and Duct Standards. All hand holes, conduits and ducts shall be placed in 
the public right of way.  All hand holes will have ¼-inch galvanized wire between the hand holes and the 
gravel it is placed on. 

☐ ☒ 11.  All unused conduits/ducts/microducts shall be protected with duct plugs that provide a positive seal.  
Ducts that are occupied shall be protected with industry accepted duct seal compound. 

☐ ☒ 12.  Locate/Tracer Wire - Conduit bank requires (1) 12AWG high strength (minimum break load 452#) copper-
clad steel with 30mil HDPE orange insulation for locate/tracer wire. Contact City’s Fiber Team for tracer 
wire specifications and see note 8. 

☐ ☒ 13.  Multi-family and commercial properties shall terminate conduit in an electrical room adjacent to the wall no 
less than five inches above the finished floor.  A 20" width X length 36" space shall be reserved on the 
plywood wall for OntarioNet equipment.  This space shall labeled "OntarioNet Only".  Ontario Conduit 
shall be labeled "OntarioNet" 

☐ ☐ 14.  A minimum 1.5-inch joint use telecommunications conduit with pull-rope from the multi-family or 
commercial building communal telecomm/electrical room/closet to each multi-family or commercial 
building unit shall be installed. See Structured Wiring Checklist on City’s website for additional details.  

☐ ☐ 15.  Developer to install 3 inch SCE conduit stub for future City fiber optic meter pedestal within an 8-foot 
wide, 5-foot deep reserved area for City fiber optic network cabinet.  A 3-foot clearance must be 
maintained around the cabinet and the meter.  HH4 shall be placed near the reserved area for cable 
entrance to network cabinet.  The pedestal and network cabinet will be supplied and installed by the City.  
The service submittal to SCE will be coordinated by the City. 

☐ ☐ 16.  Multi-family dwellings are considered commercial property. 

☐ ☐ 17.  Refer to the In-tract Fiber Network Design guideline on the City’s website for additional in-tract conduit 
guidelines. 

☐ ☐ 18.  Please contact City’s Fiber Team at OntarioNet@ontarioca.gov for conduit design assistance.  

☐ ☒ 19.  For additional information please refer to the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan. 

☐ ☐ 20.  Please see attached corrections. 

☐ ☒ 21.  Please also provide plans in digital format (PDF) on future revisions. 

 
 

Item B - 39 of 48



2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE

2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE

2" H
D

PE

2" H
D

PE

2" H
D

PE

2" H
D

PE

2" H
D

PE

2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE

2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE2" HDPE

2" HDPE
2" HDPE

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2"
 H

DPE

2"
 H

DPE

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

2" H
D

P
E

               One (1) 7-way Micro Duct (Duraline) - 16mm Tubes or Equivalent
               One (1) 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 Smoothwall Orange Conduit
               One (1) 13x24x18 Composite Polymer Concrete Hand Hole (HH1)
               One (1) 24x36x30 Composite Polymer Concrete Hand Hole (HH2A)
               One (1) 30x48x36 Composite Polymer Concrete Hand Hole (HH3)
               One (1) 36x60x36 Composite Polymer Concrete Hand Hole (HH4)

HH2A
handhole

HH3 handhole

HH3 handhole

HH3 handhole

HH3 handhole

HH2A
handhole

HH-1/*22 – PCA132418-90087 – Size 13” x 24” x 18”
HH-2/*22 – PCA173024-90116 – Size 17” x 30” x 24”
HH-2A/*22 – PCA243630-90064 – Size 24” x 36” x 30”
HH-3/*22 - PCA304836-90244 – Size 30” x 48” x 36”
HH-4/*22 – PCA366036-90146 – Size 36” x 60” x 36”

Location of telecommunications room is
conceptual.  Conduit should terminate no less
than 3 inches above finished floor in the
telecommunications room against the wall.

Placement is conceptual. 
Conduit should always be
placed in the ROW

Placement is conceptual. 
Conduit should always be
placed in the ROW

Placement is conceptual. 
Conduit should always be
placed in the ROW

Placement is conceptual. 
Conduit should always be
placed in the ROW

Item B - 40 of 48



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Lorena Mejia 

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: May 15, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PDEV19-027 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 
1. The Site address for this project will be 717 W State St 
2. Standard conditions of approval apply.  
 

KS:lr 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item B - 41 of 48



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Lorena Mejia, Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  June 5, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: PDEV19-027 - A Development Plan to construct a 104,078-square foot 

industrial building on 5.35 acres of land located at the southwest corner 
State Street and San Antonio Avenue, within the IL (Light Industrial) 
zoning district (APNs 1049-301-05 and 1049-301-06). 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Type II-B 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Panelized 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  104,078 Sq. Ft. 
 

D. Number of Stories:  1 with Mezzanine 
 

E. Total Square Footage:  104,078 Sq. Ft. 
 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  S 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item B - 42 of 48



 
2 of 4  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 
 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   
 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 
  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 
  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001. 

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four 

(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services.. 
 

 

Item B - 43 of 48

file://ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 
3 of 4  

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 3375 gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 4 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 
 

  3.3 Buildings that exceed 100,000 square feet in floor area shall provide an onsite looped fire 
protection water line around the building(s.) The loops shall be required to have two or more 
points of connection from a public circulating water main. 

 
  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 

Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
 
4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 
and shall not cross any public street. 

 
  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler 
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or 
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
  4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within 

one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street.  Provide 
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard 
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet 
either side, per City standards. 

 
  4.6 A fire alarm system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be 
submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work 
being done.  

 
  4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.  

Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement 
required. 

 

Item B - 44 of 48



 
4 of 4  

 

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 
 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 
the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 
All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard 
#H-001 for specific requirements. 

 
  5.7  Placards shall be installed in acceptable locations on buildings that store, use or handle 

hazardous materials in excess of the quantities specified in the CFC. Placards shall meet the 
requirements of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 704. 

 
 

6.0 OTHER SPECIAL USES 
 

  6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the 
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If hazardous materials 
are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, including 
Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted with Material 
Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction plans. 

 
  6.2 Any High Piled Storage, or storage of combustible materials greater than twelve (12’) feet in 

height for ordinary (Class I-IV) commodities or storage greater than six feet (6’) in height of 
high hazard (Group A plastics, rubber tires, flammable liquids, etc.) shall be approved by the 
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If High Piled Storage 
is proposed, a Fire Department High Piled Storage Worksheet shall be completed and detailed 
racking plans or floor plans submitted prior to occupancy of the building. 

 
  6.3 Underground fuel tanks, their associated piping and dispensers shall be reviewed, approved, 

and permitted by Ontario Building Department, Ontario Fire Department, and San Bernardino 
County Fire Department Hazardous Materials Division.  In fueling facilities, an exterior 
emergency pump shut-off switch shall be provided. 

 

Item B - 45 of 48



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 

 

FROM:  Officer Emily Hernandez, Police Department 

 

DATE:  May 27, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-027 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A 104,078 

SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL BUILDING ON THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF STATE STREET AND SAN ANTONIO AVENUE 

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The 

applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including, but not limited 

to, the requirements below. 

 

 Required lighting for all walkways, driveways, doorways, parking lots, hallways and 

other areas used by the public shall be provided. Lights shall operate via photosensor. 

Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department and include the types of fixtures 

proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. 

Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the buildings as stated in the Standard Conditions. 

The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint 

on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the 

addressed street. 

 The Applicant shall comply with construction site security requirements as stated in the 

Standard Conditions. 

 

 

The Applicant is invited to contact Emily Hernandez at (909) 408-1755 with any questions or 

concerns regarding these conditions.    

 

Item B - 46 of 48



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

PRELIMINARY PLAN CORRECTIONS 
Sign Off 

 10/08/2019 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV19-027 

Case Planner: 
Lorena Mejia 

Project Name and Location:  
Industrial Building  
SW corner of State St and San Antonio Ave. 
Applicant/Representative: 
Comstock Realty Partners  
1801 Century Park East, Ste 1095 
Los Angeles, CA 90067 
 
 
 

 
 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (08/29/2019) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 
 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 10/08/2019) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE. 
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
DIGITAL SUBMITTALS MUST BE 10MB OR LESS. 

Civil/ Site Plans Previous 6/14/2019 
1. The tree inventory identifies 2 trees of fair condition with a combined trunk diameter of 42” in DBH.  

Replacement and mitigation for removed trees shall be equal to trunk diameter of trees removed per 
the Development Code Tree Preservation Policy and Protection Measures, section 6.05.020.  
10/08/2019 Replacement trees shall be identified on plans and are in addition to required trees. 

2. Show on demo plans and landscape construction plans trees to be preserved, removed or mitigation 
measures for trees removed, such as:  
a. New 15 gallon trees min 1” diameter trunk, in addition to trees required (42 additional trees total). 
b. New 24” box trees min 1.5” diameter trunk, in addition to trees required (28 additional trees total). 
c. Upsizing trees on the plan one size larger such as 15 gallon to 24” box, or 24” to 36” box size. 
d. Monetary valve of the trees removed as identified in the “Guide for Plant Appraisal”, approved 

certified arborist plant appraiser, or may be equal to the value of the installation cost of planting, 
fertilizing, staking and irrigating 15 gallon trees, (100$ each) to the City of Ontario Historic 
Preservation Fund for city tree planting or city approved combination of the above items. Total of 
$4,200. 

3. Storm water infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and plans approved by 
the Landscape Planning Division prior to permit issuance. Any storm water devices in parkway areas 
shall not displace street trees. 10/08/2019 Reconfigure infiltration chambers outside of required tree 
locations. 

4. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 ½” below 
finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1; jute netting shall be provided on 3:1 slopes. 
10/08/2018 Add notes to civil plans. 

5. Dimension, show and call out for step-outs at parking spaces adjacent to planters; a 12” wide 
monolithic concrete curb, DG paving or pavers with edging.  

6. Show parking lot island tree planters 1 for every 5 spaces double row. 10/08/2019 Adjust walkway at 
office to allow for a 5’ landscape planter adjacent to the ADA parking spaces. 

7. Show outdoor employee break area with table or bench and shade trees on the south and west 
sides.  

Item B - 47 of 48

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


8. Add Note to Grading and Landscape Plans: Landscape areas where compaction has occurred due 
to grading activities and where trees or storm water infiltration areas are located shall be loosened 
by soil fracturing. For trees a 12’x12’x18” deep area; for storm water infiltration the entire area shall 
be loosened. Add the following information on the plans: The back hoe method of soil fracturing shall 
be used to break up compaction. A 4” layer of Compost is spread over the soil surface before 
fracturing is begun. The back hoe shall dig into the soil lifting and then drop the soil immediately 
back into the hole. The bucket then moves to the adjacent soil and repeats. The Compost falls into 
the spaces between the soil chunks created. Fracturing shall leave the soil surface quite rough with 
large soil clods. These must be broken by additional tilling. Tilling in more Compost to the surface 
after fracturing per the soil report will help create an A horizon soil. Imported or reused Topsoil can 
be added on top of the fractured soil as needed for grading. The Landscape Architect shall be 
present during this process and provide certification of the soil fracturing. For additional reference 
see Urban Tree Foundation – Planting Soil Specifications. 10/08/2018 Add notes to civil plans. 

9. Show ADA access route from the public sidewalk, ADA path to employee break area and ADA path 
to adjacent industrial buildings within the same development. Include required ADA parking spaces 
and access aisles. 

Landscape Plans 06/14/2019 
10. Provide mitigation for trees removed as noted in #1 & #2. 10/08/2019 Replacement trees shall be 

identified on plans and are in addition to required trees. 
11. Show backflow devices with 36” high strappy leaf shrub screening and trash enclosures and 

transformers, a 4’-5’ high evergreen hedge screening. Do not encircle utility, show as masses and 
duplicate masses in other locations on regular intervals. 10/08/2019 Show dimensions on plans and 
screened. 

12. Show transformers set back 5’ from paving all sides. Coordinate with landscape plans. 10/08/2019 
Show dimensions on plans and screened. 

13. Locate trees for shade on buildings, parking lots, seating areas and paving, screen blank walls and 
adjacent properties where missing, accent trees to entries and driveways, provide visibility to signs, 
windows and doors. Locate trees 50% of canopy width from walls, buildings, and existing trees. 
10/08/2019 Use Ti 

14. Show ADA access route from the public sidewalk, ADA path to employee break area and ADA path 
to adjacent industrial buildings within the same development. Include required ADA parking spaces 
and access aisles. 10/08/2019 Not complete. 

15. Show appropriate parking lot shade trees with min 30’ canopy at maturity; Quercus ilex or Pistachia 
chinensis. 10/08/2019 Not complete. 

16. Show storm water infiltration areas and show basins and swales to be no greater than 40% of the 
landscape area width to allow for ornamental landscape. Provide a level grade minimum 4’ from 
paving for landscape. A 25’ wide landscape area allows for a 10’ wide basin or swale. Show outline 
of basin or swale at top of slope. 10/08/2019 Coordinate with civil; see comments #3. 

17. Show outdoor employee break area with table or bench and shade trees on the south and west 
sides.10/08/2019 Not complete 

18. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 
check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are: 
 Plan Check—5 or more acres...............................................$2,326.00 
 Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase).......$278.00 
 Total……………………………………………………………....$2,604.00 
 Inspection—Field – any additional............................................. $83.00 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Landscape Plans 10/08/2019 
19. Coordinate civil, site and landscape plans to match. 
20. Use a deciduous background tree on State Street. 
21. Alternate Tristania laurina between the Juniper’s along the western property wall. 
22. Use Carolina Ironwood as accent only. 
23. Use Quercus chrysolepis as accent only in large planter spaces. 
24. Change Ironwood at rolling gate planter area; match Tristania laurina. 

Item B - 48 of 48

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
November 18, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-015 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 28,003 square feet 
on 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Holt Boulevard, within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district 
(APN: 1011-111-04); submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

UNITED TRUST REALTY CORPORATION, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an 
application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-027, as described in the subject of 
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West
Holt Boulevard and is depicted in Exhibit A—Project Location Map, attached. Existing land uses, General 
Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Vacant Business Park IP (Industrial Park) N/A 

North: Commercial Retail, 
Nursery & Auto Repair 

High Density 
Residential 

HDR-45 (High Density 
Residential 25.1-45 

DU/AC) 
N/A 

South: Warehousing Business Park IP (Industrial Park) N/A 

East: Auto Repair Business Park IP (Industrial Park) N/A 

West: Office & Retail Business Park IP (Industrial Park) N/A 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Site Design/Building Layout — The Applicant is requesting Development Plan
approval to construct an industrial building totaling 28,203 square feet and having a floor area ratio (FAR) 
of 0.54. The rectangular building is located on the eastern one-half of the site, with the front of the building 
and office entry oriented to the north, facing Holt Boulevard. The building is setback approximately 10 feet 
from the front (north) property line, approximately 60 feet from the west side property line, and a zero-
setback condition has been provided along the east side and rear (south) property lines. The project will 
provide parking along the western and southern portion of the site (see Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached). 

A yard area, designed for tractor-trailer parking, truck maneuvering, loading activities, and outdoor staging, 
is centrally located on the western side of the proposed building. The yard area will be screened from view 
of public streets and adjacent properties by a combination of landscaping and tilt-up screen walls with view-
obstructing gates. The Applicant has proposed a screen wall at 10 feet in height to screen views from Holt 
Boulevard and the adjacent office building to the west. The proposed wall will be of tilt-up concrete 
construction that will match the architecture of the building.  

Item C - 1 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

 
(b) Site Access/Circulation — The Project is proposed with a single point of vehicular 

access from Holt Boulevard, via 34-foot wide driveway that will be shared by both standard vehicles and 
tractor-trailers accessing the yard area and parking lot.  
 

(c) Parking — The Project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the “Warehouse 
and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The industrial building requires a 
total of 24 off-street parking spaces that have been provided. In addition, a minimum of one tractor-trailer 
parking space for each 4 dock-high loading spaces is required to be provided. There are 3 dock-high loading 
doors proposed, requiring 1 tractor-trailer parking space, which has been provided. 
 

(d) Architecture — The proposed industrial warehouse building is of concrete tilt-up 
construction. Architecturally, the building incorporates smooth-painted concrete, horizontal reveals, color 
blocking, clerestory windows with anodized aluminum mullions and blue vision glazing and spandrel glass, 
and painted steel canopies over the main office entries and second story windows (see Exhibit C—
Elevations, attached). The mechanical equipment for the industrial warehouse building will be roof-mounted 
and obscured from public view by the parapet walls and, if necessary, equipment screens, which will 
incorporate design features consistent with the building architecture. Staff believes that the proposed 
project illustrates the type of high-quality architecture promoted by the Development Code. This is 
exemplified through the use of: 
 

• Articulation in the building footprint, incorporating a combination of recessed and popped-out wall 
areas 

• Articulation in the building parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the building’s entries and 
breaks up large expanses of building wall 

• A mix of exterior materials, finishes and fixtures 
• Incorporation of base and top treatments defined by changes in color, materials, and recessed wall 

areas 
• The building was designed to ensure that its massing and proportion, along with its colors and 

architectural detailing, are consistent throughout all four building elevations 
 

(e) Landscaping — The project provides landscaping along Holt Boulevard, the 
perimeter of the site and throughout the parking lot. The Development Code requires that the Project 
provide a minimum 10 percent landscape coverage and 17 percent landscape coverage has been provided. 
Moreover, a combination of 24-inch, 36-inch, and 48-inch box accent and shade trees will be provided 
throughout the project site, in addition to a variety of shrubs and groundcovers that are low water usage 
and drought tolerant. The proposed on-site and off-site landscape improvements will assist towards creating 
a walkable, safe area for pedestrians to access the project site (see Exhibit D—Landscape Plan, attached).  
 

(f) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to 
serve the project. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan 
(PWQMP), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality 
requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by 
minimizing impervious surfaces and maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices 
(BMPs), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes the 
use of an underground stormwater infiltration system for the project. Any overflow drainage will be conveyed 
to the public street by way of parkway culverts. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

Item C - 2 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to Planning 
Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. The proposed project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all 
applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations. The 
proposed development occurs within city limits and the area being developed is 1.21 acres less than the 
five-acre threshold and is substantially surrounded by urban land uses. The project site has no value as 
habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. Approval of the project would not result in any significant 
effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. Also, the site is adequately served by all required 
utilities and public services. 

Item C - 3 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

 
(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 

forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Business Park land use 
district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district. The development 
standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the IP (Industrial 
Park) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (industrial), as-well-as 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 

Item C - 4 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any 
significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and 
[v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components 
of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the IP (Industrial Park) that are applicable to the proposed Project, including 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences 
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land 
use being proposed (Industrial). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has determined 
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with 
the development standards and guidelines described in the Development Code. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission  
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November 2019. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item C - 5 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

 

Item C - 6 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 
 

 

Item C - 7 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit C—ELEVATIONS 
 

 
 
 

Item C - 8 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit C—ELEVATIONS (Continued) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 9 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN 
 

 
 
 

Item C - 10 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-015 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item C - 11 of 41



 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV19-015 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 28,003 square feet 
on 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Holt Boulevard, within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district 
(APN: 1011-111-04); submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation.  
 
Prepared By: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2276 (direct) 
Email: lmejia@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item C - 12 of 41



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-015 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The 
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting 
drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 

and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 

provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas. 
 

(a) Loading facilities shall be designed and constructed pursuant to Development 
Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) Areas designated for off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation and 
maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of materials or equipment. 
 

Item C - 13 of 41



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-015 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

(c) Outdoor loading and storage areas, and loading doors, shall be screened from 
public view pursuant to the requirements of Development Code Paragraph 6.02.025.A.2 (Screening of 
Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas, and Loading Doors) Et Seq. 
 

(d) Outdoor loading and storage areas shall be provided with gates that are view-
obstructing by one of the following methods: 
 

(i) Construct gates with a perforated metal sheet affixed to the inside of the 
gate surface (50 percent screen); or 

(ii) Construct gates with minimum one-inch square tube steel pickets spaced 
at maximum 2-inches apart. 
 

(e) The minimum gate height for screen wall openings shall be established based 
upon the corresponding wall height, as follows: 
 

Screen Wall Height Minimum Gate Height 

14 feet: 10 feet 

12 feet: 9 feet 

10 feet: 8 feet 

8 feet: 8 feet 

6 feet: 6 feet 
 

2.7 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 
 

2.9 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.10 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

Item C - 14 of 41



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-015 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

2.11 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.12 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
meeting the following conditions: 
 

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and 
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

(ii) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no 
more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or 
threatened species; 

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and 
public services. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.13 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.14 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.15 Additional Requirements. 
 

Item C - 15 of 41



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-015 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

(a) The 10-foot high screen wall located along the western property line shall 
incorporate vine pockets. The screen wall shall incorporate a metal wall trellis on the western facing wall 
for vine support. The property owner shall also obtain a maintenance easement with the property owner 
located west of the project site prior to building occupancy to maintain the trellis and vines.  
 
 

Item C - 16 of 41



Item C - 17 of 41



Item C - 18 of 41



Item C - 19 of 41



Item C - 20 of 41



Item C - 21 of 41



Item C - 22 of 41



Item C - 23 of 41



Item C - 24 of 41



Item C - 25 of 41



Item C - 26 of 41



Item C - 27 of 41



Item C - 28 of 41



Item C - 29 of 41



Item C - 30 of 41



Item C - 31 of 41



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV19-015

1413 West Holt Blvd.

1011-111-40

Vacant

Development Plan to construct a 27,670 SF Industrial Building

1.21 acres

n/a

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Lorena Mejia

4/22/19

2019-020

n/a

40 FT

200 FT plus

Item C - 32 of 41



X

X

Broadband Operations    Anna Vaca           Sr. Systems Analyst       4/16/2019

Item C - 33 of 41



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Lorena Mejia 

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: March 14, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PDEV19-015 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 

1. The address for the site will be 1451 W Holt Ave 
2. Standard Conditions of Approval apply. 
 

 
 

KS:lm 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item C - 34 of 41



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  March 14, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: PDEV19-015 - A Development Plan to construct one industrial buildings 

totaling 27,670 square feet on 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Holt 
Boulevard, within the Industrial Park (IP) zoning district. (APN: 1011-
111-40). 

 
 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Type III-B 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Panelized 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  25,770 Sq. Ft. 
 

D. Number of Stories:  2  
 

E. Total Square Footage:  27,670 Sq. Ft. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 35 of 41



 
2 of 4  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 
 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   
 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 
  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 
  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001. 

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six 

(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services.. 
 

 
 

Item C - 36 of 41

file://ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 
3 of 4  

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1750  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 3 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 
 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 
and shall not cross any public street. 

 
  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler 
systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or 
more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
  4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within 

one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street.  Provide 
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard 
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet 
either side, per City standards. 

 
  4.6 A fire alarm system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be 
submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work 
being done.  

 
  4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.  

Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement 
required. 

 
5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 
 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

Item C - 37 of 41



 
4 of 4  

 

  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 
the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 
California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 
  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 

All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard 
#H-001 for specific requirements. 

 
  5.7  Placards shall be installed in acceptable locations on buildings that store, use or handle 

hazardous materials in excess of the quantities specified in the CFC. Placards shall meet the 
requirements of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 704. 

 
6.0 OTHER SPECIAL USES 
 

  6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the 
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If hazardous materials 
are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, including 
Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted with Material 
Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction plans. 

 
  6.2 Any High Piled Storage, or storage of combustible materials greater than twelve (12’) feet in 

height for ordinary (Class I-IV) commodities or storage greater than six feet (6’) in height of 
high hazard (Group A plastics, rubber tires, flammable liquids, etc.) shall be approved by the 
Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If High Piled Storage 
is proposed, a Fire Department High Piled Storage Worksheet shall be completed and detailed 
racking plans or floor plans submitted prior to occupancy of the building. 

 
  6.3 Underground fuel tanks, their associated piping and dispensers shall be reviewed, approved, 

and permitted by Ontario Building Department, Ontario Fire Department, and San Bernardino 
County Fire Department Hazardous Materials Division.  In fueling facilities, an exterior 
emergency pump shut-off switch shall be provided. 

 
7.0 PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS 
 

  7.1 Section 2.3 – Access driveways in excess of 150 sq. ft. must have an approved fire department 
turnaround. 

 
 

 
 

Item C - 38 of 41



Item C - 39 of 41



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

PRELIMINARY PLAN 
CORRECTIONS 

Sign Off 

 09/23/2019 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV19-015 

Case Planner: 
Lorena Mejia 

Project Name and Location:  
Industrial Building 
1413 W Holt Blvd 
Applicant/Representative: 
Unityed Trust Realty, Ignacio Crespo 
371 Evergreen Dr. 
Brea, Ca 92821 
 
 
 

 
 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 08/08/2019) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following 
conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE 
 

Civil/ Site Plans 
1. Show transformers set back 5’ from paving all sides. Coordinate plans; civil, site and landscape 

plans do not match. 
2. Show backflow devices set back 4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade. Backflows shall 

be shown on private property, not within the right of way. 
 Landscape Plans 
3. Show backflow devices with 36” high strappy leaf shrub screening and trash enclosures and 

transformers, a 4’-5’ high evergreen hedge screening. Coordinate plans; civil, site and landscape 
plans do not match. Do not encircle devices; continue plant groupings throughout the landscape 
areas. 

4. Coordinate utility locations: lights, fire hydrants, water, drainage and sewer lines to not conflict 
with required tree locations. Coordinate plans; civil, site and landscape plans do not match. 

5. Show landscaping in the perimeter planters and trees spaced max 30’ apart, 25’ for narrow trees. 
Change the 2 Ulmus in the truck yard adjacent to southern property wall to a tall narrow tree such 
as a Podocarpus macrophyllus, Tristania laurina, or Callistemon citrinus or similar. 

6. Show 25% of trees as California native (Platanus racemosa, Quercus agrifolia, Quercus 
wislizenii, Quercus douglasii, Cercis occidentalis etc.) in appropriate locations. 

7. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 

8. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape 
plan check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are: 
 Plan Check—less than 5 acres ...............................................$1,301.00 
 Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase)…......$278.00 
 Total……………………………………………………………..…$1,579.00 
 Inspection—Field – any additional...............................................$83.00 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item C - 40 of 41

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Lorena Mejia, Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Douglas Sorel, Police Department 

 

DATE:  Mach 25, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-015 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT AN 

INDUSTRIAL BUILDING AT 1413 WEST HOLT BLVD.   

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The 

applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including, but not limited 

to, the requirements below. 

 

 Required lighting for walkways, driveways, doorways, parking lots, hallways and other 

areas used by the public shall be provided. Lights shall operate via photosensor. 

Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department and include the types of fixtures 

proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. 

Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the buildings as stated in the Standard Conditions. 

The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint 

on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the 

addressed street. 

 The Applicant shall comply with construction site security requirements as stated in the 

Standard Conditions. 

 

The Applicant is invited to contact Douglas Sorel at (909) 408-1873 with any questions or 

concerns regarding these conditions.    

 

Item C - 41 of 41



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
November 18, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-025 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct a mixed-use project consisting of 925 multiple-family 
dwellings and 5,000 square feet of retail space on 22.39 acres of land located at the southeast corner of 
Vineyard Avenue and Inland Empire Boulevard, within the Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) land use 
district of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan; APNs: 0110-311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, 
and 0110-311-55; submitted by G.H. Palmer Associates. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

G.H. PALMER ASSOCIATES, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-025, as described in the subject of this Decision 
(herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 22.39 acres of land located at southeast
corner of Vineyard Avenue and Inland Empire Boulevard, and is depicted in Exhibit A—Aerial Photograph, 
attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and 
surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Vacant Mixed Use - Meredith SP (Specific Plan) 
Urban Commercial 

(Meredith International 
Centre Specific Plan) 

North: Vacant Mixed Use - Meredith SP 
Industrial 

(Meredith International 
Centre Specific Plan) 

South: Interstate 10 Freeway Interstate 10 Freeway Interstate 10 Freeway N/A 

East: Automobile Dealership 
(Infiniti) Mixed Use - Meredith SP 

Urban Commercial 
(Meredith International 
Centre Specific Plan) 

West: Vineyard Avenue Vineyard Avenue Vineyard Avenue N/A 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — In April 2015, the City Council approved a General Plan
Amendment (File No. PGPA13-005) and Specific Plan Amendment (File No. PSPA14-003) affecting the 
project site. The applications modified the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan, originally adopted in 
1981, to facilitate the development of approximately 3 million square feet of industrial land uses, up to 600 
hotel rooms, 1.1 million square feet of commercial land uses, and up to 800 residential units on 
approximately 257.7 acres of land located on the north side of the Interstate 10 Freeway between Vineyard 
and Archibald Avenues. 

Item D - 1 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

In March 2015, the Planning Commission approved a Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT14-028 
(PM 19612)) which subdivided the undeveloped portions of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan 
(approximately 238.5 acres) into 22 lots of varying sizes, including three 7.2-acre lots that comprise the 
project site. Planning Commission also approved a Development Plan (File No. PDEV14-055) to construct 
7 industrial buildings totaling approximately 3,000,000 square feet on approximately 143 acres of land 
located at northeast corner of Vineyard Avenue and Fourth Street, which has since been constructed.  

 
In September 2015, the City’s Development Advisory Board approved Development Plan (File No. 

PDEV15-016) to construct a 52,000-square foot automobile dealership (Audi Ontario) on a 5-acres of land 
located east of the project site, on the south side of Inland Empire Boulevard, abutting the Cucamonga 
Creek and Deer Creek Flood Control Channels, which has since been constructed.  

 
In August 2016, the Planning Commission approved a Development Plan (File No. PDEV16-014) 

to construct an 800 multiple-family dwellings on 21.6 acres of land generally located on the north side of 
Inland Empire Boulevard, approximately 300 feet west of Archibald Avenue. Additionally, in March 2019 
the Development Advisory Board approved a Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-033) to construct a 
72,000-square foot automobile dealership (Porsche) on 3 acres of land located east of the project site. Both 
developments are presently under construction. 

 
The proposed Development Plan is being processed concurrently with an Amendment to the 

Meredith International Centre Specific Plan (File No. PSPA19-002). The Specific Plan amendment will 
establish a Mixed-Use Overlay district on 22.39 acres of land within a portion of the Planning Area 2 (Urban 
Commercial) land use district that would allow for residential land uses. Approval of the Development Plan 
shall be contingent upon the approval of the Specific Plan amendment and Addendum to the Meredith 
International Centre Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2014051020) adopted by City 
Council on April 7, 2015.  
 

(b) Site Design/Building Layout — The project site consists of 2 multiple-family 
apartment buildings designed with a first-floor concrete podium slab and bearing walls, each containing a 
lobby, parking garage, refuse collection facilities, and mechanical/electrical rooms. A 3-story wood-framed 
superstructure is designed on top of each podium which contains 462 and 463 dwellings, respectively, in a 
stacked flat configuration, for an overall height of 4 stories (46 to 50 feet, on average, with projections up 
to 62 feet).  
 

The leasing office will abut Building A along Inland Empire Boulevard, located east of the project 
site’s main entrance. Directly west of the main entrance, a 5,000 square foot retail space will front Building 
B with commercial parking spaces along the building’s frontage. Both the leasing office and retail space are 
architecturally integrated into both Buildings A and B for consistent articulation and design. 
 

Eleven different floor plans are proposed, with unit sizes ranging from 498 to 1,239 square feet. 
There are two studio plans, five one-bedroom/one-bathroom plans, three 2-bedroom/2-bathroom plans, 
and one 3-bedroom/2-bathroom floor plan designs are proposed, which, in total, includes 60 studio units, 
458 one-bedroom units, 386 two-bedroom units, and 21 three-bedroom units. The dwelling unit breakdown 
is as follows: 
 

Dwelling Unit Summary – Building A 

Unit No. Unit Type Area No. Percent Unit 
Percent 

S-1 Studio 498 SF 12 2.6% 
5.2% 

S-2 Studio 532 SF 12 2.6% 

Item D - 2 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

Dwelling Unit Summary – Building A 

Unit No. Unit Type Area No. Percent Unit 
Percent 

A-1 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 675 SF 75 5.2% 

49.4% 

A-2 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 675 SF 72 16.2% 

A-3 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 697 SF 11 15.6% 

A-4 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 756 SF 46 2.4% 

A-5 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 805 SF 23 10% 

B-1 2 Bedroom/2 Bathroom 956 SF 87 18.8% 

42.6% B-2 2 Bedroom/2 Bathroom 1,010 SF 72 15.6%% 

B-3 2 Bedroom/2 Bathroom 1,119 SF 38 8.2% 

C-1 3 Bedroom/2 Bathroom 1,239 SF 13 2.8% 2.8% 

TOTAL   462 100% 100% 
 

Dwelling Unit Summary – Building B 

Unit No. Unit Type Area No. Percent Unit 
Percent 

S-1 Studio 498 SF 18 3.9% 
7.8% 

S-2 Studio 532 SF 18 3.9% 

A-1 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 675 SF 81 7.8% 

49.7% 

A-2 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 675 SF 77 17.5% 

A-3 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 697 SF 6 16.6% 

A-4 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 756 SF 45 1.3% 

A-5 1 Bedroom/1 Bathroom 805 SF 21 9.7% 

B-1 2 Bedroom/2 Bathroom 956 SF 72 15.6% 

40.8% B-2 2 Bedroom/2 Bathroom 1,010 SF 83 17.9% 

B-3 2 Bedroom/2 Bathroom 1,119 SF 34 7.3% 

C-1 3 Bedroom/2 Bathroom 1,239 SF 8 1.7% 1.7% 

TOTAL   463 100% 100% 
 

The open space requirements of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan require that the 
project provide a minimum of 60 square feet of private open space, and 250 square feet of common open 
space, per dwelling unit for the Urban Residential land use district. The applicant has proposed a range of 
private open space with 0 square feet for studios, 40 square feet for one-bedroom units, and 50 square feet 

Item D - 3 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

for both 2 and 3-bedroom units. Additionally, approximately 299 square feet of common open space per 
dwelling unit has been provided (totaling 284,281 square feet), which exceeds the minimum common open 
space requirement for the project. 
 

The project is highly amenitized, including a 2-story clubhouse, a large pool and spa courtyard. The 
clubhouse includes interior amenities such as a gym and exercise area, a lounge, restrooms, mail and 
parcel rooms, cabanas (open to the pool/spa courtyard), decorative water feature, outdoor kitchen, 
barbeques, shade canopies, and outdoor seating area. Each building also features a pool and spa courtyard 
with adjacent fitness amenities. 
 

Other amenities provided at various locations throughout the project include densely landscaped 
passive open space areas, outdoor seating with shade structures, decorative water features, tot lots with 
play structures and shade canopies, outdoor fitness areas, volleyball court, and two dog parks.  
 

(c) Site Access/Circulation — The project site is accessed from Inland Empire 
Boulevard by a central signalized vehicular entry point, pursuant to the requirements of the Meredith 
International Centre Specific Plan. The main driveway is intended for use by project residents, visitors, and 
retail consumers. Commercial parking is situated along the retail space, while residential access is 
proposed to be gated and secured, with access to the main gate controlled by a manned guardhouse. 
Residents will be able to access the main gate utilizing an electronic controller, bypassing the guardhouse. 
Visitors will require clearance at the guardhouse before entering the project site. The main gate driveway 
has been designed with a turnaround for vehicles that mistakenly access the driveway. 
 

Two secondary gates along Inland Empire Boulevard for right-in right-out access are proposed to 
the west and east of the main driveway. These secondary gates will not be manned, and like the main gate, 
tenants will access the secondary gate utilizing an electronic controller. The secondary driveway has also 
been designed with a turnaround for vehicles that mistakenly access the driveway. 
 

A system of two-way private drives, with 90-degree resident and visitor parking, provides vehicular 
circulation throughout the project site and access to the parking garages. Pedestrian circulation through the 
site and access to individual buildings is provided by a system of landscaped paseos and walkways 
adjacent to private drives. 
 

(d) Parking — The Project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the “Multi-
Family Residential” and “General Retail” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The off-
street parking calculations for each building are as follows: 
 

The Development Code specifies the following parking requirements for multiple-family residential 
uses: 

 

Item D - 4 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

Type of Use 
Building 

Area and/or 
No. of Units  

Parking Ratio Spaces 
Required 

Spaces 
Provided 

Studio 60 units 1.5 spaces per dwelling, including one space 
in a garage or carport 90 

1,717 
One-Bedroom 458 units 1.75 spaces per dwelling, including one 

space in a garage or carport 802 

2-Bedrooms 386 units 2.0 spaces per dwelling, including one space 
in a garage or carport 772 

3-Bedrooms 21 units 2.5 spaces per dwelling, including one space 
in a garage or carport 53 

Guest/Visitor Parking 925 units Greater than 100 dwelling units—One space 
per 6 dwelling units 154 154 

General Retail 5,000 SF 4 spaces per 1,000 SF of GFA 20 29 

Leasing Office 4,812 SF 1 space per 2,000 SF of GFA (APA PAS 
Report 510/511 for model homes) 3 9 

TOTAL   1,894 1,909 
 

 
(e) Architecture —Architecturally, the proposed buildings incorporate a light sand 

stucco finish, brown and red blend of concrete roof tiles, decorative wrought iron elements, decorative false 
terra cotta gable vents and chimney caps, series of small decorative niches, recessed vinyl windows, metal 
awnings above various windows, faux wood shutters, brick veneer, decorative trellises at ground level over 
pilasters, storefront glazing at building lobbies, and decorative light fixtures. The mechanical equipment will 
be roof-mounted and obscured from public view by the parapet walls and, if necessary, equipment screens, 
which will incorporate design features consistent with the building architecture. 
 

Staff believes that the proposed project illustrates the type of high-quality residential architecture 
promoted by the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan and the City’s Development Code. This is 
exemplified through the use of: 
 

 Articulation in building footprints, incorporating horizontal changes in the in the exterior building 
walls (combinations of recessed and popped-out wall areas) 

 
 Articulation in the building parapet and roof lines, which serves to accentuate the building’s 

entries and openings, and breaks up large expanses of building wall 
 
 Variations in building massing 
 
 A mix of exterior materials, finishes and fixtures 
 

Incorporation of base and top treatments defined by the layering of design elements, including horizontal 
changes in the exterior wall plane, and changes in exterior color (use of color blocking) and materials. 
 

(f) Landscaping — In general, the project provides substantial landscaping the full 
length of the project street frontages, throughout off-street parking areas, and throughout stormwater 
retention areas, for an overall landscape coverage of approximately 33.9% percent. A landscaped setback 
has been provided along the full length of Inland Empire Boulevard street frontage, which varies from 5 feet 
to 40 feet in depth, measured from the street property line to the nearest buildings. Additionally, a series of 

Item D - 5 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

intensely landscaped paseos, which vary from 20-feet to 40-feet in width, provide pedestrian connections 
throughout the site and link the recreation amenities that are dispersed throughout the project. 
 

A variety of accent and shade trees in 24-inch, 36-inch and 48-inch box sizes have been provided 
to enhance the project. Moreover, decorative paving and lighting will be provided at vehicular entries, 
pedestrian walkways, and other key locations throughout the project. 
 

(g) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — All necessary public utilities (water and sewer) were 
previously installed in Inland Empire Boulevard in conjunction with the construction of SRG / Meredith 
International Centre, to serve the project. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water 
Quality Management Plan (PWQMP), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm water 
discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and 
pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces and maximizes low impact development (LID) best 
management practices (BMPs), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. 
The PWQMP proposes the use of vegetated swales which lead to underground stormwater infiltration 
systems installed for the project. Any overflow drainage will be conveyed to the public street by way of 
parkway culverts. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and an initial study has been prepared to determine 
possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with an 
Addendum to the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH# 2014051020) certified by City Council on April 7, 2015, in conjunction with File Nos. PGPA13-005 
and PSPA14-003, and this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 

Item D - 6 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and 
supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified EIR 
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with an Addendum 
to the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 
2014051020) certified by City Council on April 7, 2015. 
 

(2) The Addendum and administrative record have been completed in compliance with CEQA, 
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(3) The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the impacts of 
subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. This Application introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. 
 

(4) The Addendum contains a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts 
associated with the Project, and reflects the independent judgment of the DAB; and 
 

(5) There is no substantial evidence in the administrative record supporting a fair argument 
that the project may result in significant environmental impacts; and 
 

(6) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted by the Certified 
EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the Addendum, all related information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 
1, above, the DAB finds that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required 
for the Project, as the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions 
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 

Item D - 7 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 
Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and. 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was 
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
EIR; or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Certified EIR; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which 
the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (925) and density (47 du/ac) specified in the Available Land Inventory. 
 

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

Item D - 8 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Mixed Use land use district 
of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Urban Commercial land use district of the Meredith International 
Centre Specific Plan. The proposed Development Plan is being processed concurrently with a Specific Plan 
Amendment (File No. PSPA19-002) to establish a Mixed-Use Overlay district on 22.39 acres of land within 
a portion of the Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) land use district. The change, if approved, will be 
reflected in Meredith International Centre Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under 
which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, 
and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario 
Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the proposed 
Mixed-Use Overlay, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (mixed use 
development), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-
street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Meredith International Centre Specific 
Plan are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the 
project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the 
area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities 
and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan that are applicable to the 
proposed Project, including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-
street parking and loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site 
landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically 
related to the particular land use being proposed (mixed use development). As a result of this review, the 
Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the 
conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the 
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan. 
 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

Item D - 9 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item D - 10 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

  

Item D - 11 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 

  

Item D - 12 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 13 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (BUILDING A) 

  

Item D - 13 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 14 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (BUILDING B) 

  

Item D - 14 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 15 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (CLUBHOUSE) 

  

Item D - 15 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 16 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS (GUARD HOUSE) 

  

Item D - 16 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 17 

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN (OVERALL SITE PLAN) 

  

Item D - 17 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 18 

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN (OPEN SPACE) 

 

Item D - 18 of 141



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-025 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item D - 19 of 141



 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV19-025 
 
Related Files: PSPA19-002 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct a mixed-use project consisting of 925 multiple-
family dwellings and 5,000 square feet of retail space on 22.39 acres of land located at the southeast corner 
of Vineyard Avenue and Inland Empire Boulevard, within the Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) land use 
district of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan; APNs: 0110-311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, 
and 0110-311-55; submitted by G.H. Palmer Associates. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item D - 20 of 141



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-025 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department, Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The 
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting 
drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 

and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 

provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 

Item D - 21 of 141



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-025 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.7 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.0 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.10 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.11 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction 
with an Addendum to the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact 
Report (SCH# 2014051020) adopted by City Council on April 7, 2015, in conjunction with File Nos. 
PGPA13-005 and PSPA14-003. This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The 
City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for 
the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are 
adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project approval, 
and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.12 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

Item D - 22 of 141



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-025 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

2.13 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 

 
2.14 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-025) approval is contingent upon the City 
Council approval of related Specific Plan Amendment (File No. PSPA19-002) and Addendum to the 
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2014051020) 
adopted by City Council on April 7, 2015. 

 
(b) The project developer shall continue to coordinate with the Native American Tribes 

through the SB18 consultation process and complete the consultation process prior to the Planning 
Commission meeting on November 26, 2019. The developer shall be required to comply with the agreed 
upon terms of the consultation process with the Native American Tribes.     

Item D - 23 of 141



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

PRELIMINARY PLAN CORRECTIONS 
Sign Off 

 
09/30/2019 

Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV19-025 

Case Planner: 
Jeanie Irene Aguilo 

Project Name and Location:  
Meredith Apartments PA2  
SEC of Vineyard Ave and Inland Empire 
Applicant/Representative: 
G.H. Palmer Associates – Darrel Malamut 
270 North Canon Drive, Penthouse 
Beverly Hills, CA 90210 
 
 
 

 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 09/12/2019) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE. 
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
DIGITAL SUBMITTALS MUST BE 10MB OR LESS. 

 
Civil/ Site Plans 
1. Parkway tree locations shall be shown on civil plans and plans where utilities are proposed. Parkway 

trees are to be 30’ apart. Show and note a 10’ total space, 5’ clearance each side of tree from any 
utility or hardscape including water, sewer, drain lines and driveways; and 10’ clear from street lights. 
Relocate utilities to minimum clearances to allow parkway trees. 

2. Adjust storm water infiltration chambers outside of required landscape areas. Storm water infiltration 
devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and plans approved by the Landscape 
Planning Division prior to permit issuance. Any storm water devices in parkway areas shall not 
displace street trees. 

3. Show transformers set back 5’ from paving all sides to avoid bollards and provide required 
screening. Coordinate with landscape plans. 

4. Show backflow devices set back 4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade 
5. Show existing corner ramp (Vineyard and Inland Empire Blvd) and sidewalk per city standard 

drawing 1213 with max 10’ or 13’ of ramp and sidewalk behind at corners.  
6. Provide the appropriate landscape percentage and calculations for mixed use development (not 

including right of way or paving). 
7. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 ½” below 

finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. 
Landscape Plans 

8. Recycled water shall not be utilized within pool/spa areas. Design and show for potable water in pool 
areas. 

9. Show backflow devices with 36” high strappy leaf shrub screening and trash enclosures and 

Item D - 24 of 141

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


transformers, a 4’-5’ high evergreen hedge screening. Do not encircle utility, show as masses and 
duplicate masses in other locations on regular intervals. 

10. Show corner ramp and sidewalk per city standard drawing 1213. 
11. Show landscaping in the perimeter planters and trees spaced 30’ apart. Provide tall, narrow 

screening trees along the southern and eastern planter areas. 
12. Remove or limit artificial turf and gravel; use low water use groundcovers and shredded bark mulch. 
13. Replace Festuca glauca, Salvia leucantha, and Magnolia; consider Sesleria autumnalis, Salvia 

celvelandii and Quercus ilex. Use Myrica californica as a screening shrub or small accent tree, not 
shade tree. 

14. Show 8’ diameter of mulch only at new trees, 12’ min. at existing trees. Detail irrigation dripline 
outside of mulched root zone. 

15. Designer or developer to provide agronomical soil testing and include report on landscape 
construction plans.  

16. Show concrete mowstrips to identify property lines along open areas or to separate ownership or 
between maintenance areas. 

17. Note that an irrigation audit at build out of project. 
18. Show minimum on-site tree sizes per the Landscape Development standards, see the Landscape 

Planning website. 5% 48” box, 10% 36 box, 30% 24” box, 55% 15 gallon. 
19. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 
20. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 

check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Typical fees are: 
 Plan Check—5 or more acres.................................................$2,326.00 
 Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase).........$278.00 
 Inspection—Field – any additional...............................................$83.00 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 

landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
  
 

Item D - 25 of 141

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 

TO:  Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  June 5, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-025 - A Development Plan to construct a mixed-use project 

consisting of 925 multiple-family dwellings and 5,000 square feet of retail 

space on 22.39 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Vineyard 

Avenue and Inland Empire Boulevard, within the Mixed Use land use 

district of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan (APNs: 0110-

311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, and 0110-311-55). Related File: 

PSPA19-002. 

 

 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 

 

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Not Listed, Type V 

 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 

 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  Varies, Multiple Building Apartments 

 

D. Number of Stories:  4  

 

E. Total Square Footage:  Varies, Multiple Building Apartments 

 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R - 3 

 

 

 

 

Item D - 26 of 141



 

2 of 4  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1.0 GENERAL 

 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 

development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 

current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 

applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 

that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 

For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 

www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 

  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  

 

 

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 

the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 

shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 

See Standard #B-004.   

 

  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 

turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 

  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   

 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 

easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 

properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 

  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 

minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 

  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-

001. 

 

  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four 

(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 

portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 

fire department and other emergency services. 

 

 

Item D - 27 of 141



 

3 of 4  

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 

Appendix B, is 4000  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 4 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 

square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 

  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 

 

  3.3 Buildings that exceed 100,000 square feet in floor area shall provide an onsite looped fire 

protection water line around the building(s.) The loops shall be required to have two or more 

points of connection from a public circulating water main. 

 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 

Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 

availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 

  4.1 On-site private fire hydrants are required per Standard #D-005, and identified in accordance 

with Standard #D-002.  Installation and locations(s) are subject to the approval of the Fire 

Department. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit 

shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done.    

 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 

or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 

copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 

private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 

and shall not cross any public street. 
 

  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard Choose an item.. All new fire sprinkler 

systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or 

more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 

detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 

Department, prior to any work being done.   

 

  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed. 

 

  4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within 

one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street.  Provide 

identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard 

#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet 

either side, per City standards. 

 

Item D - 28 of 141



 

4 of 4  

 

  4.6 A fire alarm system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be 

submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work 

being done.  

 

  4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.  

Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement 

required. 

 

  4.8 A fixed fire extinguishing system is required for the protection of hood, duct, plenum and 

cooking surfaces.  This system must comply with National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 

Standards 17A and 96. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a 

construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done. 

 

    

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 

debris both on and off the site. 

 

  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-

tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 

the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 

the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 

California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 

  5.4 Multiple unit building complexes shall have building directories provided at the main 

entrances.  The directories shall be designed to the requirements of the Fire Department, see 

Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal Code and Standard #H-003. 
 

  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 

requirements of the California Building Code. 

 

  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 

All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard 

#H-001 for specific requirements. 

 
 

Item D - 29 of 141



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Jeanie Aguilo, Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Officer Emily Hernandez, Police Department 

 

DATE:  May 20, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-025 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT 925 PODIUM 

APARTMENT COMPLEX AND 5,000 SQUARE FEET OF RETAIL ON 

MIXED USE LAND AT VINEYARD AVENUE AND INLAND EMPIRE 

BOULEVARD  

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The 

applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including, but not limited 

to, the requirements below. 

 

 Required lighting for walkways, driveways, doorways, parking lots, hallways and other 

areas used by the public shall be provided. Lights shall operate via photosensor. 

Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department and include the types of fixtures 

proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. 

Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. Planned landscaping shall not obstruct 

lighting.  

 The Applicant shall comply with construction site security requirements as stated in the 

Standard Conditions. 

 First floor stairwells shall be constructed so as to either allow for visibility through the 

stairwell risers or to prohibit public access to the areas behind stairwells. 

 The development shall participate in the Crime-Free Multi Housing program offered by 

the Ontario Police Department COPS Division 

 Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the buildings as stated in the Standard Conditions. 

The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint 

on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the 

addressed street. 

 

The Applicant is invited to contact Emily Hernandez at (909) 408-1755 with any questions or 

concerns regarding these conditions.    

 

Item D - 30 of 141



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Jeanie Irene Aguilo 

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: May 08, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PDEV19-025 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 
1. The Site addresses will be:  

Bldg A- 2000 Inland Empire Blvd 
Bldg B- 1900 Inland Empire Blvd 

2. Standard conditions of approval apply.  
 

KS:lr 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item D - 31 of 141



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV19-025 & PSPA19-002

SEC of Vineyard Ave & Inland Empire Blvd

0110-311-52 thru 55

Vacant

A Development Plan to construct 925 apartment units & SPA to establish a mixed-use
overlay to allow for residential land uses

22.39

Yes

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Real Estate Transaction Disclosure is required.

✔

✔

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

11/14/19

2019-067
62 FT

80 - 100 FT

✔

Item D - 32 of 141



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Development Advisory Board 
 
FROM:  Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 
 
DATE:  November 14, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item D – File No. PDEV19-025  
 
 
The Ontario Municipal Utilities Company (OMUC) and the Engineering Department conditions 
will be provided on the day of the meeting.  

Item D - 33 of 141



 
 
 

Meredith International Centre 
Specific Plan Amendment 

 

Environmental Impact Report Addendum 
 

SCH 2014051020 
Administrative Draft 
November 13, 2019 

 
City of Ontario 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Item D - 34 of 141



This document is designed for double-sided printing to conserve natural resources 
 

Item D - 35 of 141



 

i 
 

Article I. Table of Contents 
1. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY ..................................................................................... 1-1 

1.1 PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT ...................................................................................... 1-1 
1.2 ADDENDUM DETERMINATION ................................................................................... 1-2 
1.3 SUMMARY OF ADDENDUM CONCLUSIONS .............................................................. 1-3 

2. PROPOSED PROJECT CHANGES .................................................................................... 2-1 
2.1 CURRENT MEREDITH INTERNATIONAL CENTRE SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT 
AND EIR .............................................................................................................................. 2-1 
2.2 PLANNING AREA 2 CHANGES .................................................................................... 2-2 

3. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PLANNING AREA 2 CHANGES TO MICSPA EIR CONCLUSIONS
 ............................................................................................................................................... 3-1 

3.1 LAND USE AND PLANNING ....................................................................................... 3-13 
3.2 TRAFFIC AND CIRCULATION .................................................................................... 3-14 
3.3 AIR QUALITY .............................................................................................................. 3-19 
3.4 GLOBAL CLIMATE CHANGE AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS ...................... 3-23 
3.5 NOISE ......................................................................................................................... 3-27 
3.6 HAZARD/HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ......................................................................... 3-29 
3.7 PUBLIC SERVICES AND UTILITIES ........................................................................... 3-31 
3.8 HYDROLOGY/WATER QUALITY ................................................................................ 3-35 
3.9 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES ....................................................................................... 3-41 
3.10 GEOLOGY AND SOILS ............................................................................................. 3-42 
3.11 CULTURAL RESOURCES ........................................................................................ 3-44 
3.12 AESTHETICS ............................................................................................................ 3-45 
3.13 POPULATION AND HOUSING ................................................................................. 3-45 
3.14 OTHER CEQA CHECKLIST AREAS NOT EVALUATED IN THE MICSPA EIR ......... 3-46 

3.14.1 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY ...................................................................... 3-46 
3.14.2 ENERGY ............................................................................................................. 3-46 
3.14.3 MINERAL RESOURCES ..................................................................................... 3-47 
3.14.4 RECREATION..................................................................................................... 3-47 
3.14.5 TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES .................................................................... 3-48 
3.14.6 WILDFIRE ........................................................................................................... 3-48 
3.14.7 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS .................................................................................... 3-49 

4.0 PREPARATION TEAM ................................................................................................. 4-1 
5.0 Appendices .................................................................................................................. 5-1 
 
List of Exhibits 
Exhibit 2-1: Existing Land Use ................................................................................................ 2-5 
Exhibit 2-2: Proposed Land Use .............................................................................................. 2-7 
Exhibit 2-3: Conceptual Site Plan ............................................................................................ 2-9 
 
List of Tables 
Table 2-1 Land Use Plan Statistical Summary ........................................................................ 2-1 
Table 2-2 Summary of Proposed Planning Area 2 Changes ................................................... 2-3 
Table 3.4-1 Planning Area 2 Annual GHG Emissions Comparison........................................ 3-25 
Table 3.4-2 Proposed Project Design Features to Reduce GHG Emissions .......................... 3-26 
 

Table 3.8-1 Run Off Rates .................................................................................................... 3-37 
  

Item D - 36 of 141



 

ii 
 

 
 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 
 

Item D - 37 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                            Page 1-1 
 
 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY 
 
1.1 PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 
 
This report has been prepared by the City of Ontario (the Lead Agency)1 as an Addendum to the 
March 2015 Final Environmental Impact Report for the Meredith International Centre Specific 
Plan Amendment (MICSPA EIR) pursuant to the applicable provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Public Resources Code Sections 21000-21189.3) and its 
implementing regulations (the CEQA Guidelines) (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, 
Chapter 3, Sections 15000-15387).  This Addendum describes certain proposed changes to the 
City’s Meredith International Center Specific Plan (MICSP) and evaluates the potential 
environmental effects of such changes in compliance with the requirements of CEQA and the 
CEQA Guidelines.   
 
In March 2015, the City of Ontario (the City) certified the MICSPA EIR. The MICSPA EIR 
consisted of two volumes: (1) a January 2015 Draft EIR, and (2) a March 2015 Final EIR.2  The 
MICSPA EIR addressed the environmental implications of a major amendment to MICSP 
proposed plan encompassing an approximately 257.7-acre area in the City of Ontario.  The 
project addressed in the MICSPA EIR established new land use, development, and urban design 
regulations for a 5-10-year planning period.  
  
The MICSPA EIR addressed the following environmental topics: 
 

• Land Use and Planning 
• Traffic and Circulation  
• Air Quality  
• Global Climate Change and Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
• Noise 
• Hazards/Hazardous Materials  
• Public Services and Utilities  
• Hydrology/Water Quality 
• Biological Resources 
• Geology and Soils 
• Cultural Resources 
• Aesthetics 
• Population and Housing 
• Cumulative Impacts 
• Alternatives to the Proposed Action 

 

 
1 The CEQA Guidelines define the "Lead Agency" as the public agency that has the principal responsibility for carrying 
out or approving a project. 
2 The Meredith International Specific Plan EIR, consisting of the January 2015 Draft EIR and the March 2015 Final EIR 
are available for review on the City’s website:   https://www.ontarioca.gov/government-departments-development-
planning-planning-reports/environmental-impact-reports. 

Item D - 38 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                            Page 1-2 
 
 

 
 

In March 2015, the City approved the MICSPA, a General Plan Amendment, and a Zoning Map 
Amendment and certified the MICSPA EIR. This Addendum quantitatively and qualitatively 
describes changes now proposed within an approximate 22.4-acre portion of Project Area 2 of 
the specific plan. The project proposed for the 22.4-acre site would establish a mixed-use overlay 
zone over the Urban Commercial uses identified in the MICSPA that will permit residential uses. 
This project also includes a Development Plan within the 22.4 acre site for up to 925 multi-family 
residential dwellings and 5,000 square feet of retail space. The Addendum evaluates those 
changes, and compares them to the proposed land uses identified in the original adopted MICSPA 
to determine that the project would qualify for an EIR Addendum under CEQA, and  would not 
result in any of the conditions described in Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines requiring the 
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental environmental impact report.  
 
1.2 ADDENDUM DETERMINATION 
 
The City has determined that preparation of an Addendum to the MICSPA EIR pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines section 15164 is the most appropriate method for evaluation of the revised Planning 
Area 2 changes.   Section 15164(a) of the CEQA Guidelines states: 

 
The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously 
certified EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions 
described in Section 15162 [of the CEQA Guidelines] calling for preparation of a 
subsequent EIR have occurred. 

 
Section 15162(a) of the CEQA Guidelines states: 
 

(a) When an EIR has been certified or a negative declaration adopted for a project, no 
subsequent EIR shall be prepared for that project unless the lead agency 
determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in the light of the whole record, 
one or more of the following: 
 

(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major 
revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement 
of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the 
severity of previously identified significant effects; 

(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which 
the project is undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous 
EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects; or 

(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could 
not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time 
the previous EIR was certified as complete or the negative declaration was 
adopted, shows any of the following: 

(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed 
in the previous EIR or negative declaration; 

(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 
severe than shown in the previous EIR; 

Item D - 39 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                            Page 1-3 
 
 

 
 

(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 
feasible would in fact be feasible, and would substantially reduce 
one or more significant effects of the project, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; 
or 

(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different 
from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce 
one or more significant effects on the environment, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
Based on the information in this report, the City has determined that the necessary changes and 
additions to the MICSPA EIR identified in this report meet the above CEQA criteria requiring 
preparation of an Addendum to the MICSPA EIR.  This document constitutes that Addendum.  
 
1.3 SUMMARY OF ADDENDUM CONCLUSIONS 
 
Section 2 of this Addendum describes the specific differences between the adopted MICSP and 
the proposed modifications.  As explained above, the proposed change would establish a mixed-
use overlay zone over the Urban Commercial uses identified in the MICSPA that will permit 
residential uses.    
 
Section 3 of this Addendum describes how the differences between the adopted MICSP Planning 
Area 2 and the proposed modifications that would affect the impact and mitigation conclusions of 
the MICSPA EIR.  A summary of the impacts and mitigation measures as described in the 
MICSPA EIR adopted in 2015 are provided in Table 1.1, which follows.  Based on the analysis 
provided in Section 3 of this document it can be determined that the changes proposed or the 
“modified project” will not result in a substantial increase in the severity of any of the impacts 
identified in the MICSPA EIR nor would it require implementation of any new or modified mitigation 
measures. 
 
In addition to the findings described, The Ontario Plan (TOP) General Plan analyzed the Meredith 
land area as Mixed-Use.  Table LU-03 Future Buildout of the TOP specifies Meredith is envisioned 
as one of the most intensive developments in Ontario and is intended to accommodate an 
intensive, horizontal and vertical mixture of commercial, office, and residential uses based around 
a transit station. The portion fronting the I-10 freeway will be the most intensive mixture of mid-
rise buildings, regional-serving retail and office centers, while the northern area is generally a 
residential village comprised of single and multi-family residential districts surrounding a vertically 
mixed-use village core. 
 
The MICSPA EIR concluded that the project would result in a total of ten significant unavoidable 
impacts in the following environmental areas: 
 
 Transportation and Circulation (3) 

 Air quality (2) 

 Noise (5) 
 
Upon certification of the MICSPA EIR, the City Council adopted a Statement of Overriding 
Considerations (CEQA Guidelines section 15093) for these significant unavoidable impacts.  This 
Addendum concludes that the Planning Area 2 changes would result in the same significant 

Item D - 40 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                            Page 1-4 
 
 

 
 

unavoidable impacts.  Consistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15162(a), the significant 
unavoidable impacts identified in this Addendum are not new or more severe than those identified 
in the certified MICSPA EIR. 
 
 
  

Item D - 41 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                            Page 2-1 
 
 

 
 

 
2. PROPOSED PROJECT CHANGES 
 
2.1 CURRENT MEREDITH INTERNATIONAL CENTRE SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT AND 
EIR 
 
The current Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment (MICSPA) is a mix of 
industrial, commercial, and residential land uses within five (5) planning areas, as detailed in 
Table 2-1 and presented geographically in Exhibit 2-1 (taken directly form the MICSPA).   
 

Table 2-1 
Land Use Plan Statistical Summary 

 
The primary goal of the project is the development of the subject site with a productive mix of 
industrial, commercial/retail, and residential uses.  Complementary Project Objectives include the 
following:   
 

Planning 
Area Land Use Acreage 

Development Intensity 

Units 

Non-Residential Square 
Footage 

Overnight 
Lodging 
Room 

Multi- 
Family 

Residential 
1 Industrial 146.6 -- -- 

3,007,000 
1A Industrial 2.0 -- -- 

2 Urban 
Commercial 43.7 200B -- 650,000 

3 Urban 
Commercial 25.3 400B -- 480,000 

4 Urban Residential 21.4 -- 800 -- 

5 Urban 
Commercial 2.7 -- -- 13,000A 

-- Circulation 16.0 -- -- -- 

TOTALS 257.7 
600B 800 

4,150,000 
1,400C 

A – Planning Area 5 was fully constructed at the time Specific Plan Amendment No. 1 was prepared.  The building 
square footage of 13,000 SF is approximate. 
B – Overnight lodging rooms are included in the non-residential square footage.  
C – Overnight lodging rooms may be swapped for additional multi-family residences in Planning Area 4 at a ratio of 
1:1.  Alternatively, multi-family residences may be swapped for additional overnight lodging rooms in Planning Areas 
2 and/or 3 at a ratio of 1:1. The number of overnight lodging rooms and residential units combined shall not exceed 
1,400. 

Item D - 42 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                            Page 2-2 
 
 

 
 

• Create an integrated development that provides a full range of employment opportunities 
near residential uses. 

• Create a planned development wherein commercial uses would benefit from the site’s 
freeway visibility.  

• Develop industrial uses that would support the Ontario International Airport and that would 
benefit from the Airport’s proximity. 

• Construct residential uses proximate to employment opportunities and commercial 
services. 

• Provide an industrial park supporting varied warehouse distribution and industrial tenants. 

• Provide safe and convenient access from trucks in a manner that minimizes any potential 
disruption to residential areas. 

• Cluster industrial uses near existing roadways and freeways to reduce traffic congestion 
and air emissions. 

• Facilitate goods movement locally, regionally, nationally, and internationally. 

• Provide land uses that are compatible with surrounding land uses and that would not 
conflict with policies and environmental constraints identified in the Policy Plan. 

• Compete the urbanization of the area north of I-10 and east of Vineyard Avenue with 
necessary infrastructure while incorporating high quality, consistent design standards. 

• Provide infrastructure and public improvements necessary to support each increment of 
Project development, and the Project in total. 

• Establish new development that would further the City’s near-term and long-tern fiscal 
goals.   

 
In March 2015, the City of Ontario City (the City) certified the Final Environmental Impact Report 
for Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment (Meredith International Centre 
Specific Plan Amendment (EIR).  The EIR consisted of two volumes:(1) a January 2015 Draft 
EIR, (and (2) a March 2015 Final EIR.1 The MICSPA EIR addressed the environmental 
implications of the proposed plan for the Planning Area 2 area.  The project addressed in the EIR 
established the new land use, development, and urban design regulations for a 10-year planning 
period. Table 2-1 shows the existing acreage and land use breakdown for the existing MICSPA 
and the six Planning Areas that make up the plan.  Exhibit 2-1 shows the existing land use plan 
for the MICSPA.  The entire plan comprises approximately 257.7 acres and is designed to 
accommodate 800 multi-family dwellings, 600 overnight lodging rooms, 3,007,000 square feet of 
Industrial uses and 1,143,000 square feet of Urban Commercial uses. 
 
2.2 PLANNING AREA 2 CHANGES 
 
The proposed project that is the subject of this Addendum, comprises 22.4 acres located in the 
western part of Planning Area 2 of the MICSPA. Planning Area 2 encompasses approximately 
43.7 acres within the southwesterly portion of the MICSP area. It is bordered on the north by 

 
1 The two separate documents that constitute the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan EIR, the January 2015 
Draft EIR and the March 2015 Final EIR are available for review on the City’s website: 
https://www.ontarioca.gov/government-departments-development-planning-planning-reports/environmental-impact-
reports 

Item D - 43 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                            Page 2-3 
 
 

 
 

Inland Empire Boulevard, on the south by Interstate 10, on the west by North Vineyard Avenue, 
and on the east by the Cucamonga Creek Channel.  
 
Planning Area 2 carries the Urban Commercial designation which would allow for a range of 
commercial uses, including shopping center, furniture stores, automobile sales, sit down and fast 
food restaurants, office uses, entertainment, and overnight lodging (multi-family residences may 
be swapped for additional overnight lodging rooms in Planning Areas 2).  The land use mix 
assessed in Planning Area 2 as part of the MICSP was estimated for analytic purposes to consist 
of up to 355,000 square-feet (sf) of retail shopping center floor area, 180,000 sf of office space, 
and 115,000 sf, 200 room hotel for a total floor area of 650,000 sf and 200 overnight lodging 
units/hotel rooms.   
 
Meredith is envisioned as one of the most intensive developments in Ontario and is intended to 
accommodate an intensive, horizontal and vertical mixture of commercial, office, and residential 
uses based around a possible future transit station.  The portion fronting the I-10 freeway will be 
the most intensive mixture of mid-rise buildings, regional-serving retail and office centers, while 
the northern area is generally a residential village comprised of single and multi-family residential 
districts surrounding a vertically mixed-use village core. The proposed project establishes a 
Mixed-Use Overlay that, in addition to all of the uses permitted in the Urban Commercial 
Designation of the MICSP, would also accommodate up to 925 Multi-family dwellings and 5,000 
square feet of Retail Commercial space being proposed on the westerly 22.4 acres of Planning 
Area 2 or approximately 51.2 percent of Planning Area 2.  In order to compare and evaluate the 
existing land uses to the new land uses proposed under this Addendum, it was estimated that 
floor area dedicated to the different types of land uses would be distributed proportionately 
between the 22.4 acres for the proposed project and the remaining 21.3 acres in the eastern part 
of Planning Area 2. For example, the 355,000 square feet of retail shopping center floor area 
would be distributed, with 173,240 square feet allocated to the eastern part of Planning Area 2, 
and 181,760 for the western part (355,000 SF X 51.2% = 181,760 SF). The building area allocated 
to the western part of the existing Planning Area 2 would be replaced by the 925 dwellings and 
5,000 square feet of retail commercial proposed by this project.  
 
Table 2-2 summarizes the land use breakdowns for Planning Area 2 with the proposed changes 
to the western part. For reference the western part that is affected by the proposed project is 
labelled P.A 2 West and the remaining portion P.A. 2 East.   
 

Table 2-2 
Summary of Proposed Planning Area 2 Changes 

Development Type 
P.A.  2A Mixed-Use 

Overlay 

P.A. 2 (Not Part of 
the Mixed Use 

Overlay) P.A. 2 Total 

Retail  5,000 173,240  178,240 sf 

Office  0 87,840 sf  87,840 sf 

Hotel/Overnight Lodging  0 56,120 sf (98 rooms) 56,120 sf (98 rooms) 

Multifamily Residential 925 dwellings 0 925 dwellings 

 
The Planning Area 2 changes would allow for multi-family residential, parking, retail, and private 
recreational centers.  Exhibit 2-2 shows that part of Planning Area 2 that would be affected by the 

Item D - 44 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                            Page 2-4 
 
 

 
 

proposed project. Exhibit 2-3 is a conceptual site plan which includes two three-story buildings 
with over podium parking (totaling four-stories). The following approvals will be needed to 
implement the project. 
 

• Specific Plan Amendment/Zone Change to re-designate the project site to Mixed-Use 
Overlay in order to accommodate the proposed multifamily residential use. 

• Development Plan approval. 
 
As Lead Agency, the City also intends for this EIR Addendum to provide, in combination with the 
certified MICSPA EIR, the CEQA documentation necessary for consideration of future individual 
development proposals under the amended MICSP by Responsible Agencies1 and Trustee 
Agencies,2 including, for example, The South Coast Air Quality Management District, the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board, and Caltrans. 
 
 

 
1 Under the CEQA Guidelines, the term "Responsible Agency" includes all public agencies, other than the Lead Agency, 
which have discretionary approval power over aspects of the project for which the Lead Agency has prepared an EIR. 
2 Under the CEQA Guidelines, the term "Trustee Agency" means a state agency having jurisdiction by law over natural 
resources affected by the project which are held in trust by the people of California 

Item D - 45 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                                                                                                 City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 2-5 
 
 

 
 

 
Exhibit 2-1: Existing Land Use 
  

Item D - 46 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                                                                                                 City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 2-6 
 
 

 
 

 
 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 
 

Item D - 47 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                                                                                                 City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 2-7 
 
 

 
 

Exhibit 2-2: Proposed Land Use 
 
 
  

Item D - 48 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                                                                                                 City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 2-8 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 

Item D - 49 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                                                                                                 City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 2-9 
 
 

 
 

Exhibit 2-3: Conceptual Site Plan 
 
  

Item D - 50 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                                                                                                 City of Ontario 
November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Page 2-10 
 
 

 
 

 
 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 

Item D - 51 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-1 
 
 
 

 
 

3. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PLANNING AREA 2 CHANGES TO MICSPA EIR 
CONCLUSIONS 
 
This section describes the changes or additions to the certified MICSPA EIR conclusions 
necessary for consideration of the proposed amendments to the Planning Area 2 changes. A 
complete, verbatim listing of the potentially significant impacts and recommended mitigation 
measures from the MICSPA EIR is available on the City’s Website.  
 
The City has determined that preparation of an Addendum to the EIR pursuant to section 15164 
of the CEQA Guidelines (Addendum to an EIR or Negative Declaration) is the most appropriate 
method for evaluation of the proposed project. Section 15164(a) of the CEQA Guidelines states: 
 

1) The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified 
EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in 
Section 15162 [of the CEQA Guidelines] calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have 
occurred. 

 
Section 15162(a) of the CEQA Guidelines (Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations) states: 
 

(a) When an EIR has been certified or a negative declaration adopted for a project, no 
subsequent EIR shall be prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on 
the basis of substantial evidence in the light of the whole record, one or more of the 
following: 

(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of 
the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified 
significant effects; 

(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project 
is undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative 
declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; or 

(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have 
been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was 
certified as complete or the negative declaration was adopted, shows any of the 
following: 

(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous 
EIR or negative declaration; 

(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 
shown in the previous EIR; 

(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 
fact be feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of 
the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative; or 

(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those 
analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant 

Item D - 52 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-2 
 
 
 

 
 

effects on the environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
In accordance with the CEQA Guidelines sections 15162 and 15164, for each environmental topic 
addressed in the MICSPA EIR (e.g., land use and planning; Traffic and Circulation, Air Quality, 
etc.). the discussion in this Addendum section indicates whether: 
 

• Changes or additions to the previously certified MICSPA EIR are necessary to adequately 
address the impacts and mitigation measures of the proposed Planning Area 2 changes, 
and if yes, whether: 

• The changes result in new significant environmental impacts or a substantial increase in 
the severity of the significant impacts identified in the MICSPA EIR; 

• The changes require new mitigations not identified in the MICSPA EIR that the applicant 
[in this case, the City, as the agency implementing the MICSP] declines to adopt; or 

• Changes have occurred since MICSPA EIR certification in the project circumstances 
(environmental setting) which would result in new significant environmental impacts or a 
substantial increase in the severity of a previously identified significant impact. 

 
The subsections and impact discussions below are in the same order as the MICSPA EIR 
chapters. 
 
For each environmental impact identified as "significant" in the MICSPA EIR, this Addendum 
concludes that the proposed Planning Area 2 changes still would result in a “significant" impact 
and would therefore still warrant imposition of the previously adopted mitigation measures in order 
to ensure that the impact would remain "less-than-significant." However, the proposed Planning 
Area 2 would not result in new significant environmental impacts nor increase the severity of any 
of the previously identified significant impacts. 
 
Table 3-1 below provides a checklist summary of the environmental impact areas that were 
screened out of the MICSPA EIR as well as the new Addendum Determination for each potential 
impact area in light of the proposed Project changes. Impacts in Table 3-1 checked “Previously 
Screened Out of MICSPA EIR” were identified in the Initial Study for the MICSPA EIR as not 
having a potentially significant impact and were therefore not further analyzed in the EIR. Those 
topical areas (Agriculture and Forestry, Mineral Resources, etc.) that were found to be Less than 
Significant are discussed in Section 3.14, and impacts in these areas were found to also be Less 
than Significant for the Project proposed I this EIR Addendum. Likewise, the remaining Initial 
Study Checklist questions that were screened out for further review in the EIR are also less than 
significant.  
 
Impacts in Table 3-1 checked “Remain Less Than Significant Impact” have been determined to 
be less than significant with the proposed Project changes. Impacts checked “Remain Less Than 
Significant with Mitigation” have been determined to be less than significant with incorporation of 
the previously adopted mitigation in the MICSPA EIR. Impacts checked “Remain Significant and 
Unavoidable” have been determined to be significant even with incorporation of previously 
adopted mitigation, as was found in the MICSPA EIR. Following Table 3-1 is a more detailed 
discussion of potential impacts of the Project evaluated in this EIR Addendum as compared to 
the potential impacts identified in the MICSPA EIR.

Item D - 53 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-3 
 
 
 

 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED 
 
The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving 
at least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the 
following pages. 
 

 Aesthetics  Agriculture/Forestry 
Resources 

 Air Quality 

 Biological Resources  Cultural Resources  Geology / Soils 

 Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

 Hazards & Hazardous 
Materials 

 Hydrology / Water Quality 

 Land Use / Planning  Mineral Resources  Noise 

 Population / Housing  Public Services  Recreation 

 Transportation   Utilities / Service Systems  Mandatory Findings of 
Significance 

 Tribal Cultural 
Resources 

 Wildfire  Energy 
 

 
DETERMINATION (To be completed by the Lead Agency) 
 
On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

 I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will 
not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to 
by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant"  or "potentially significant unless 
mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an 
earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation 
measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets.  An ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed. 

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because 
all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR pursuant to 
applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR, including 
revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is 
required. 

 
 
 
  November 13, 2019  
Signature Date 
 
Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner  City of Ontario – Planning Department  
Printed Name and Title For 

 

Item D - 54 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-4 
 
 
 

 
 

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately 
supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each 
question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources 
show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g. the project 
falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based 
on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g. the project will not expose 
sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 

2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-
site, cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as 
operational impacts. 

3) Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the 
checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than 
significant with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is 
appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect is significant. If there are one or more 
"Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required. 

4) "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the 
incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant 
Impact" to a "Less than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation 
measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level 
(mitigation measures from the "Earlier Analyses” Section may be cross-referenced). 

5) Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA 
process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or Negative Declaration. 
Section 15063(c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following: 

a) Earlier Analyses Used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within 
the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal 
standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based 
on the earlier analysis. 

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures 
Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from 
the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the 
project. 

6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information 
sources for potential impacts (e.g. general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a 
previously prepared or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to 
the page or pages where the statement is substantiated. 

7) Supporting Information Sources. A source list should be attached, and other sources used or 
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, 
lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a 
project's environmental effects in whatever format is selected. 

9) The explanation of each issue should identify: 

Item D - 55 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-5 
 
 
 

 
 

a) The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and 

b) The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. 
 

Table 3-1 
Environmental Impact Summary Checklist 

 
Issues 

Remain 
Significant 

and 
Unavoidable 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

Previously 
Screened Out 

of MICSPA 
EIR 

1. AESTHETICS. Except as provided in Public 
Resources Code Section 21099, would the project: 

    

a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic 
vista? 

    

b. Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, 
and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 

    

c. In non-urbanized areas, substantially 
degrade the existing visual character or quality of 
public views of the site and its surroundings?  (Public 
views are those that are experienced from publicly 
accessible vantage point).  If the project is in an 
urbanized area, would the project conflict with 
applicable zoning and other regulations governing 
scenic quality? 

    

d. Create a new source of substantial light or 
glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime 
views in the area? 

    

2. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES. In 
determining whether impacts to agricultural resources 
are significant environmental effects, lead agencies 
may refer to the California Agricultural Land 
Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) 
prepared by the California Department of 
Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing 
impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining 
whether impacts to forest resources, including 
timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead 
agencies may refer to information compiled by the 
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
regarding the state’s inventory of forest land, including 
the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the 
Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon 
measurement methodology provided in Forest 
protocols adopted by the California Air Resources 
Board. Would the project: 

    

a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, 
or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as 
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the 
California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

    

b. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural 
use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

    

Item D - 56 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-6 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Issues 

Remain 
Significant 

and 
Unavoidable 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

Previously 
Screened Out 

of MICSPA 
EIR 

c. Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as 
defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or 
timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined 
by Government Code section 51104(g))? 

    

d. Result in the loss of forest land or conversion 
of forest land to non-forest use? 

    

e. Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location or nature, 
could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-
agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-
forest use? 

    

3. AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance 
criteria established by the applicable air quality 
management district or air pollution control district 
may be relied upon to make the following 
determinations. Would the project: 

    

a. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
the applicable air quality plan? 

    

b. Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project 
region is non-attainment under an applicable federal 
or state ambient air quality standard? 

    

c. Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations? 

    

d. Result in other emissions (such as those 
leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial 
number of people? 

    

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:     

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, on any 
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special 
status species in local or regional plans, policies, or 
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

    

b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community 
identified in local or regional plans, policies, 
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

    

c. Have a substantial adverse effect on state or 
federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited 
to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means? 

    

Item D - 57 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-7 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Issues 

Remain 
Significant 

and 
Unavoidable 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

Previously 
Screened Out 

of MICSPA 
EIR 

d. Interfere substantially with the movement of 
any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species 
or with established native resident or migratory wildlife 
corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery 
sites? 

    

e. Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

    

f. Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, 
or state habitat conservation plan? 

    

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:     

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource pursuant to 
Section 15064.5? 

    

b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to 
Section 15064.5? 

    

c. Disturb any human remains, including those 
interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?     

6. ENERGY. Would the project:     

a. Result in potentially significant environmental 
impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary 
consumption of energy resources, during project 
construction or operation? 

    

b. Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan 
for renewable energy or energy efficiency?     

7. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project:     

a. Directly or indirectly cause potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, 
injury or death involving: 

    

i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as 
delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State 
Geologist for the area or based on other substantial 
evidence of a known fault?  Refer to Division of Mines 
and Geology Special Publication 42. 

    

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?     

iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including 
liquefaction?     

iv. Landslides?     

b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss 
of topsoil?     

Item D - 58 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-8 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Issues 

Remain 
Significant 

and 
Unavoidable 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

Previously 
Screened Out 

of MICSPA 
EIR 

c. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of 
the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site 
landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction 
or collapse? 

    

d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table 18 1 B of the Uniform Building Code, creating 
substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property? 

    

e. Have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste 
water disposal systems where sewers are not 
available for the disposal of waste water? 

    

f. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique geologic 
feature? 

    

8. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the 
project:     

a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact 
on the environment? 

    

b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the 
emission of greenhouse gases? 

    

9. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. 
Would the project:     

a. Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through the routine transport, use, or 
disposal of hazardous materials? 

    

b. Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the release of 
hazardous materials into the environment? 

    

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle 
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an 
existing or proposed school? 

    

d. Be located on a site which is included on a 
list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code section 65962.5 and, as a result, 
would it create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment? 

    

e. For a project located within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, 
would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive 
noise for people residing or working in the project 
area? 

    

Item D - 59 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-9 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Issues 

Remain 
Significant 

and 
Unavoidable 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

Previously 
Screened Out 

of MICSPA 
EIR 

f. Impair implementation of or physically 
interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan? 

    

g. Expose people or structures, either directly or 
indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death 
involving wildland fires? 

    

10. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would 
the project:     

a. Violate any other water quality standards or 
waste discharge requirements or otherwise 
substantially degrade surface or ground water quality?  

    

b. Substantially decrease groundwater supplies 
or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 
such that the project may impede sustainable 
groundwater management of the basin?  

    

c. Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river or through 
the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which 
would: 

    

i. result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or off-site;     

ii. substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner which would 
result in flooding on- or offsite; 

    

iii. create or contribute runoff water 
which would exceed the capacity of existing or 
planned stormwater drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or 

    

iv. impede or redirect flood flows?     

d. In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk 
release of pollutants due to project inundation?     

e. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a 
water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater 
management plan? 

    

11. LAND USE AND PLANNING. Would the project:     

a. Physically divide an established community?     

b. Cause a significant environmental impact 
due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 

    

12. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:     

a. Result in the loss of availability of a known 
mineral resource that would be of value to the region 
and the residents of the state? 

    

Item D - 60 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-10 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Issues 

Remain 
Significant 

and 
Unavoidable 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

Previously 
Screened Out 

of MICSPA 
EIR 

b. Result in the loss of availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site delineated 
on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use 
plan? 

    

13. NOISE. Would the project result in:     

a. Generation of a substantial temporary or 
permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the 
vicinity of the project in excess of standards 
established in the local general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

    

b. Generation of excessive groundborne 
vibration or groundborne noise levels?     

c. For a project located within the vicinity of a 
private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of 
a public airport or public use airport, would the project 
expose people residing or working in the project area 
to excessive noise levels? 

    

14. POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the 
project:     

a. Induce substantial unplanned population 
growth in an area, either directly (for example, by 
proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly 
(for example, through extension of road or other 
infrastructure)? 

    

b. Displace substantial numbers of existing 
people or housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

 
 
 
 

    

15. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project:     

a. Result in substantial adverse physical 
impacts associated with the provision of new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, need for 
new or physically altered governmental facilities, the 
construction of which could cause significant 
environmental impacts, in order to maintain 
acceptable service ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for any of the public services: 

    

i. Fire protection?     

ii. Police protection?     

iii. Schools?     

iv. Parks?     

Item D - 61 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-11 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Issues 

Remain 
Significant 

and 
Unavoidable 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

Previously 
Screened Out 

of MICSPA 
EIR 

v. Other public facilities? 
 

    

16. RECREATION. Would the project:     

a. Increase the use of existing neighborhood 
and regional parks or other recreational facilities such 
that substantial physical deterioration of the facility 
would occur or be accelerated? 

    

b. Does the project include recreational facilities 
or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which have an adverse physical 
effect on the environment? 

    

17. TRANSPORTATION. Would the project:     

a. Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or 
policy addressing of the circulation system, including 
transit, roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities? 

    

b. Would the project conflict with or be 
inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, 
subdivision (b)? 

    

c. Substantially increase hazards due to a 
geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or 
dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., 
farm equipment)? 

    

d. Result in inadequate emergency access?     

18. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the 
project cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in 
Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, 
feature, place, cultural landscape that is 
geographically defined in terms of the size and scope 
of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural 
value to a California Native American tribe, and that is 

    

a. Listed or eligible for listing in the California 
Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register 
of historical resources as defined in Public Resources 
Code section 5020.1(k)? 

    

b. A resource determined by the lead agency, in 
its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, 
to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in 
subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code section 
5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision 
(c) of Public Resources Code section 5024.1, the lead 
agency shall consider the significance of the resource 
to a California Native American tribe. 

    

19. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the 
project:     

Item D - 62 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-12 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Issues 

Remain 
Significant 

and 
Unavoidable 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

Previously 
Screened Out 

of MICSPA 
EIR 

a. Require or result in the relocation or 
construction of new or expanded water, wastewater 
treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, 
natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the 
construction or relocation of which could cause 
significant environmental effects? 

    

b. Have sufficient water supplies available to 
serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future 
development during normal, dry and multiple dry 
years?   

    

c. Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may serve the 
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the 
project's projected demand in addition to the provider's 
existing commitments? 

    

d. Generate solid waste in excess of State or 
local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local 
infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of 
solid waste reduction goals? 

    

e. Comply with federal, state, and local 
management and reduction statutes and regulations 
related to solid waste? 

    

20. WILDFIRE. If located in or near state 
responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire 
hazard severity zones, would the project: 

    

a. Substantially impair an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation plan?     

b. Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other 
factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose 
project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a 
wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? 

    

c. Require the installation or maintenance of 
associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, 
emergency water sources, power lines or other 
utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result 
in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment? 

    

d. Expose people or structures to significant 
risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or 
landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope 
instability, or drainage changes? 

 
 
 
 
 
 

    

Item D - 63 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-13 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Issues 

Remain 
Significant 

and 
Unavoidable 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Remain 
Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

Previously 
Screened Out 

of MICSPA 
EIR 

21. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE.     

a. Does the project have the potential to 
substantially degrade the quality of the environment, 
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife 
species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop 
below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a 
plant or animal community, substantially reduce the 
number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered 
plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the 
major periods of California history or prehistory? 

    

b. Does the project have impacts that are 
individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?  
("Cumulatively considerable" means that the 
incremental effects of a project are considerable when 
viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, 
the effects of other current project, and the effects of 
probable future projects.) 

    

c. Does the project have environmental effects 
which will cause substantial adverse effects on human 
beings, either directly or indirectly? 

    

 
Note:  Authority cited:  Public Resources Code sections 21083, 21083.05, 21083.09.   
 
Reference: Gov. Code section 65088.4; Public Resources Code sections 21073, 21074, 21080(c), 21080.1, 21080.3, 
21080.3.1, 21080.3.2, 21082.3, 21083, 21083.3, 21083.5, 21084.2, 21084.3, 21093, 21094, 21095 and 21151; 
Sundstrom v. County of Mendocino (1988) 202 Cal.App.3d 296; Leonoff v. Monterey Board of Supervisors (1990) 222 
Cal.App.3d 1337; Eureka Citizens for Responsible Govt. v. City of Eureka (2007) 147 Cal.App.4th 357; Protect the 
Historic Amador Waterways v. Amador Water Agency (2004) 116 Cal.App.4th 1099, 1109; San Franciscans Upholding 
the Downtown Plan v. City and County of San Francisco (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 656. 

 
 
3.1 LAND USE AND PLANNING 
 
The relationships of the Planning Area 2 (P.A. 2) changes to the previously certified MICSPA EIR 
land use and planning impact and mitigation conclusions are described below. 
 
Physically Divide an Established Community or Result in Land Use Incompatibilities. The 
certified MICSPA EIR determined that this effect would be less than significant. Configuration 
and orientation of land uses under the Project combined with integral development standards and 
design guidelines, act to preclude division or disruption of land uses, whether those land uses be 
internal or external to the Project. Also, physical arrangement of surrounding areas would not be 
modified or otherwise substantively affected by the project. The proposed changes to P.A. 2 
include no changes or new conditions that would alter this conclusion, based on the following 
information: 
 

(1) the boundaries of the 257-acre MICSPA  area would not change; (2) No new roads or 
other infrastructure features are being proposed, and therefore would not divide any 
established community. 

Item D - 64 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-14 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Conflict with Any Applicable Land Use Plan, Policy, or Regulation adopted for the Purpose 
of Avoiding or Mitigating an Environmental Effect. The certified MICSPA EIR determined that 
this impact would be less-than-significant. The MICSPA EIR determined that the Specific Plan 
would establish land use plans, development standards, and design guidelines directing the 
ultimate buildout of the Project site. Land uses and development reflected within the proposed 
Meredith SPA can be feasibly implemented consistent with applicable provisions of the City 
General Plan (as amended) and City Development Code. Prior to issuance of building permits, 
the City would review the final development plans for individual projects within the Specific Plan 
Area to ensure consistency with the Meredith SPA land use plans, design guidelines; and where 
applicable, City Development Code requirements. 
 
The Project is also considered to be consistent with, and would support mobility, economy, and 
sustainability goals and policies articulated in the 2012-2035 RTP/SCS. 
 
The proposed capacity exchange includes no changes or new conditions that would alter this 
conclusion, based on the following information: (1) the boundaries of the 257-acre MICSPA  area 
would not change; (2) The proposed project would continue to apply with all applicable City 
General Plan, Specific Plan, development code requirements and other municipal code 
requirements. (3) the proposed project will not create or exacerbated any potential environmental 
impacts that have not already been addressed by the MICSPA EIR. With the capacity 
exchange, this impact would remain less-than-significant. 
 
Conflict With Any Applicable Habitat Conservation Plan or Natural Communities Plan. The 
Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect 
to this issue. The project site is not located within any applicable habitat conservation plan or 
natural communities conservation plans. As a result, there are no adverse environmental impacts 
and no analysis of this issue was included in the Draft EIR.  
 
Since the boundaries of the MICSPA are not expanding and no habitat conservation plans have 
been enacted with the MICSPA, there would be no new impacts with respect to the proposed 
project. 
 
3.2 TRAFFIC AND CIRCULATION 
 
Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, 
including transit, roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities. The MICSPA EIR addressed 
potential impacts for Existing (2014) Conditions; Year 2017 Conditions reflecting completion and 
occupancy of the Project’s Planning Area 1 industrial land uses, together with development of 
86,000 square feet of commercial/retail uses in Planning Area 2; Year 2020 Conditions reflecting 
buildout of the Project site in total; and Year 2035 Conditions reflecting completion and occupancy 
of the Project in the context of City Buildout Conditions envisioned under The Ontario Plan (TOP). 
The EIR determined that the approved Project’s compliance with the City of Ontario DIF Program 
and payment of Fair Share Fees would fulfill mitigation requirements for Project contributions to 
potentially significant traffic/transportation impacts at facilities under the sole jurisdiction of the 
City of Ontario. However, at extra-jurisdictional or shared jurisdictional locations determined to be 
subject to potentially significant Project-related traffic/transportation impacts, Project compliance 
with the City DIF Program and payment of Fair Share Fees would not ensure timely completion 
of required improvements. Further, at certain Study Area locations, implementation of required 

Item D - 65 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-15 
 
 
 

 
 

improvements would require additional right-of-way, acquisition of which may not feasible. Within 
these discussions, potentially significant Project-related traffic/transportation impacts at extra-
jurisdictional or shared jurisdictional locations; or at locations where additional right-of-way be 
required, were determined to remain significant and unavoidable pending completion of the 
required improvements. 
 
On this basis, pending the completion of required improvements, Project traffic impacts at the 
following Study Area intersections were determined to be cumulatively significant and 
unavoidable under at least one of the analysis scenarios noted above (Existing Conditions, Year 
2017 Conditions, Year 2020 Conditions, and/or Year 2035 Conditions). 
 

• Archibald Avenue at Arrow Route (Intersection #2) 

• Baker Avenue at 8th Street (Intersection #3) 

• Hellman Avenue at 6th Street (Intersection #9) 

• Haven Avenue at 6th Street (Intersection # 12) 

• I-10 EB Ramp at 4th Street (Intersection #14) 

• Vineyard Avenue at 4th Street (Intersection #20) 

• Archibald Avenue at 4th Street (Intersection #23) 

• Haven Avenue at 4th Street (Intersection #25) 

• Archibald Avenue at Inland Empire Boulevard (Intersection #28) 

• Vineyard Avenue at I-10 EB Ramps (Intersection #32) 
 
It was also determined that Project traffic would contribute to cumulatively significant impacts 
affecting analyzed freeway facilities within the Study Area. As discussed within the MICSPA EIR, 
there are no feasible means for the Project Applicant or the City of Ontario to mitigate cumulatively 
significant freeway facilities impacts, and these impacts are accordingly recognized as 
cumulatively significant and unavoidable. All other Project-related traffic and circulation impacts 
would be less-than-significant, or would be reduced to levels that are less-than-significant with 
implementation of the mitigation measures identified herein. 
 
A Trip Generation Assessment for the proposed P.A. 2 project was generated by Linscott, Law & 
Greenspan Engineers (LLG), dated March 28, 2019 (see appendix A). The trip generation 
assessment focuses on the trip generation of the proposed Project in comparison to the land use 
development totals assumed for the approved Project as evaluated in the Traffic Impact Analysis 
for the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment, prepared by LLG, dated January 
22, 2015. 
 
According to the approved MICSPA EIR, Planning Area 2 (PA-2) carries the Urban Commercial 
designation which would allow for a range of commercial uses, including shopping center, 
furniture store, automobile sales, sit-down and fast food restaurants, office uses, entertainment, 
and overnight lodging (multi-family residences may be swapped for additional overnight lodging 
rooms in Planning Areas 2). The land use mix assessed in PA-2 as a part of the MICSPA EIR 
consists of up to 355,000 square-feet (SF) of retail shopping center floor area, 180,000 SF of 
office space, and an 115,000 SF, 200-room hotel for a total floor area of 650,000 SF and 200 
overnight lodging units/hotel rooms.  

Item D - 66 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-16 
 
 
 

 
 

 
As identified the Circulation Plan of the MICSP, access to the western half of PA-2 is limited to 
Inland Empire Boulevard via a right-turn only driveway and a future full access signalized 
intersection. Access to the eastern half of PA-2 is now provided via the signalized intersection of 
Del Rio Place at Inland Empire Boulevard and two right-turn only driveways that serve Audi 
Ontario. 
 
The proposed Project includes development of up to 925 multi-family residential dwelling units 
with 5,000 SF of ground floor retail/commercial space within two (2) four-story buildings on the 
westernmost 22.39± acres of PA-2’s total 44.7± acreage. The remaining 21.3± acres of PA-2 is 
comprised of five (5) separate parcel of land that could be developed with range of commercial 
uses as allowed by the Urban Commercial designation. 
 
Building A, which is located on the eastern half of the Project site, is proposed as a three-story 
apartment podium over a 1-story parking structure with approximately 463 apartments consisting 
of 24 studio units, 229 one-bedroom units, 197 two-bedroom units, and 13 three-bedroom units. 
Building B, which is located on the western half of the Project site, is proposed as a three-story 
apartment podium over a 1-story parking structure with approximately 462 apartment homes 
consisting of 36 studio units, 229 one-bedroom units, 189 two-bedroom units, and 8 three-
bedroom units, with 5,000 SF of ground floor retail/commercial space. Parking for the Project will 
be provided via two (2) single-level parking structures with a combined total of 1,909 spaces, a 
total of 304 surface parking spaces, and an additional 38 spaces assigned for leasing/retail use. 
 
A summary of the proposed Project’s trip generation potential on a daily basis and during the AM 
peak hour and PM peak hour, assuming development of up 925 multifamily residential dwelling 
units and 5,000 SF retail, is presented in Table 4 of the Trip Generation Assessment. This table 
also summarizes the development potential for the five (5) remaining parcels, under the 
assumption that each parcel would be developed with the maximum retail/shopping center uses 
anticipated by the MICSPA EIR, as well as each parcel’s trip generation potential. A comparison 
to each parcels trip budget allocation, which was summarized in Table 1 of the Trip Generation 
Assessment, is provided as well. 
 
According to the Trip Generation Assessment, the trip generation forecast for the proposed 
Project totals 6,027 daily trips, with 452 trips (92 inbound, 360 outbound) during the AM peak hour 
and 558 trips (360 inbound, 198 outbound) during the PM peak hour. The Project’s site trip budget 
allocation of the total Maximum Trip Cap for PA-2 is estimated to total 8,363 daily trips, with 336 
trips (243 inbound, 93 outbound) during the AM peak hour and 609 trips (254 inbound, 355 
outbound) during the PM peak hour. 
 
A comparison of the proposed Project trips with that of the approved Project’s trip budget 
allocation indicates that the net trip generation for the proposed Project would result  in 2,336 
fewer daily trips, 116 more AM peak hour trips and 51 fewer PM peak hour trips (See Table 4 
Row [C]). For the five (5) remaining parcels, a review of the middle and lower portion of Table 4 
shows that on a daily basis, each parcel would generate between 183 and 285 more daily trips 
when compared to each site’s estimated trip budget allocation, but during the weekday peak 
commute hours, each parcel would generate between 16 and 29 fewer AM peak hour trips and 
the same amount of trips during the PM peak hour (See Table 4 Row [F], [I], [L], [O], and [R]). 
 

Item D - 67 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-17 
 
 
 

 
 

From a “trip budgeting” point of view, the AM and PM peak hours typically govern as traffic studies 
focus the potential impact of a development project during the weekday AM peak hour and PM 
peak hour. While daily traffic is of interest, it is not the basis of peak hour service level calculations 
that are conducted during the preparation of traffic studies. 
 
In total, and as shown in the last row of Table 4 (see Row I), the proposed Project plus the five 
(5) remaining parcels of PA-2 have a combined trip generation potential totaling up to 15,249 daily 
trips (one half arriving, one half departing), with 659 trips (219 inbound, 440 outbound) produced 
during the AM peak hour and 1,143 trips (640 inbound, 503 outbound) produced during the PM 
peak hour on a “typical” weekday. 
 
When compared to the Maximum Trip Cap for PA-2 of the MICSPA EIR (See Row II of Table 4), 
which totals 16,399 daily trips (one half arriving, one half departing), with 659 trips (476 inbound, 
183 outbound) produced during the AM peak hour and 1,194 trips (498 inbound, 696 outbound) 
produced during the PM peak hour on a “typical” weekday, the Project plus the five (5) remaining 
parcels of PA-2 would result in 1,150 fewer more daily trips, the same amount of AM peak hour 
trips and 51 fewer PM peak hour trips (See Table 4 Row III). 
 
Based on the results of the trip generation comparison summarized above, it is concluded that 
the proposed Project trip generation fits within the approved trip budget allocation for PA-2 as 
assessed in the MICSPA EIR. 
 
With implementation of the proposed Project, the project site would have a maximum land use 
development potential of 925 multi-family residential units with 5,000 SF of retail space, while the 
five (5) remaining parcels of PA-2, combined, retain the ability to develop, assuming mixed-use 
retail, up to 239,970 SF of floor area. Table 5 of the Trip Generation Assessment presents a 
summary of the maximum development potential for the proposed Project as well as the five (5) 
remaining parcels of PA-2, in comparison to the land use mix assessed in PA-2 as a part of the 
approved Project. 
 
As such, given the results of the trip generation comparison, it is concluded that the peak hour 
trips resulting from implementation of the proposed Project, in combination with the remaining five 
(5) parcels of PA-2 would not create any new traffic impacts beyond those already previously 
identified in January 2015 MICSP TIA. Hence, it is concluded that the findings, conclusions and 
recommendations of the Traffic Impact Analysis for the Meredith International Centre Specific 
Plan Amendment, prepared by LLG, dated January 22, 2015 remain valid. 
 
Conflict with an Applicable Congestion Management Program. Since the revised proposed 
P.A. 2 project would result in fewer vehicle trips than the originally adopted MICSPA EIR, 
congestion management impacts would be no greater (and probably less) than those evaluate in 
the MICSPA EIR. With the capacity exchange, this impact would remain less-than-
significant. 
 
Substantially Increase Hazards Due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment). The MICSPA EIR noted that in 
order to ensure appropriate design and implementation of all Project circulation improvements, 
the final design of the Project site plan, to include locations and design of proposed driveways, 
shall be reviewed and approved by the City Traffic Engineer. In addition, it was noted that 
representatives of the City’s Police and Fire Departments will review the Project’s plans in regard 

Item D - 68 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-18 
 
 
 

 
 

to emergency access. The EIR further noted that efficient and safe operations of the Project would 
be provided by on-site and localized circulation and intersection improvements included as 
components of the approved Project.  
 
On-site traffic signing and striping would be implemented in conjunction with detailed construction 
plans for the approved Project site. Sight distance at each project access point would be reviewed 
with respect to standard Caltrans and City of Ontario sight distance standards at the time of 
preparation of final grading, landscape and street improvement plans. Based on the preceding, it 
was determined that the approved Project would not substantially increase hazards to a design 
feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm 
equipment); or result in inadequate emergency access.  
 
It is also recognized that temporary and short-term traffic detours and traffic disruption could result 
during Project construction activities. These interim and transient impacts would be considered 
potentially significant for the duration of Project construction activities. Management and control 
of construction traffic would be addressed through the preparation and submittal of a construction 
area traffic management plan, to be reviewed and approved by City prior to or concurrent with 
Project building plan review(s). The Project Construction Area Traffic Management Plan (Plan) 
would identify traffic controls for any street closures, detours, or other potential disruptions to 
traffic circulation during Project construction. The Plan would also be required to identify 
construction vehicle access routes, and hours of construction traffic. 
 
As supported by the preceding discussions, the MICSPA EIR determined that the potential for the 
Project to substantially increase hazards to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment); or result in inadequate emergency 
access is considered less-than-significant.  
 
The proposed Project will not include any changes that will substantially increase hazards due to 
a geometric design feature or incompatible uses, or lead to any new substantial increases to 
hazards that were not previously analyzed in the MICSPA EIR. Therefore, impacts will remain 
less than significant.  
 
Result in Change of Air Traffic Patterns. The Ontario International Airport (ONT) is located 
southerly adjacent to these properties, across East Airport Drive. No other airports of airfields are 
located proximate to the Project site or would otherwise be potentially affected by the Project.  
 
As noted in the MICSPA EIR, the approved Project does not propose or require development or 
operations that would conflict with state law, federal regulations and/or adopted master plans and 
land use compatibility plans for the ONT and/or Chino Airport. Nor does the approved Project 
propose elements or aspects that would interfere with or obstruct City coordination with laws, 
regulations or plans for the ONT and/or Chino Airport. The approved Project does not propose or 
require amendment to the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ONT 
ALUCP). Nor would the approved Project otherwise interfere or obstruct the City’s administration 
and maintenance of the ONT ALUCP. The City fulfills its state Airport Land Compatibility 
requirements pursuant to the “Alternative Process.” Under the Alternative Process affected 
agencies are responsible for conducting their own consistency evaluations for new development 
and/or major land use actions within their portions of the ONT AIA. In this regard, the City of 
Ontario is responsible for ALUCP consistency evaluations/determinations for the approved 
Project. 

Item D - 69 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-19 
 
 
 

 
 

 
The MICSPA EIR determined that Land uses and development that would be realized pursuant 
to the approved Project would conform to all applicable provisions and restrictions of the ONT 
ALUCP as determined by the City. In this latter regard, all future development on the Specific 
Plan area would be required to comply with design guidelines established in the Meredith SPA, 
as well as the applicable requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code (please refer to 
City of Ontario Municipal Code Title 9, Development Code, Chapter 1 Zoning and Land Use 
Requirements, Sec. 9-1.2980. Airport Safety Zones). In combination, it was determined that 
compliance with provisions of the Meredith SPA and the City Development Code would preclude 
any potential inconsistencies with the ONT ALUCP, including but not limited to potential for the 
approved Project to result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic 
levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks. As supported by the preceding 
discussion, it was determined that the potential for the approved Project to result in a change in 
air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results 
in substantial safety risks is considered less-than-significant. 
 
Land uses and development that would be realized pursuant to the proposed Project would 
conform to all applicable provisions and restrictions of the ONT ALUCP as determined by the City. 
The proposed Project would also be required to comply with design guidelines established in the 
MICSPA, as well as the applicable requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code. 
Therefore, the potential for the proposed Project to result in a change in air traffic patterns, 
including either an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety 
risks would remain less-than-significant. With the capacity exchange, this impact would 
remain less-than-significant. 
 
3.3 AIR QUALITY 
 
Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan. The MICSPA EIR 
determined that the approved Project would not result in or cause NAAQS or CAAQS violations. 
It was determined that the approved Project’s proposed land use designation for the subject site 
did not materially affect potential development intensities when compared to those assumed in 
the adopted The Ontario Plan Policy Plan, The Ontario Plan EIR, and the current AQMP. Further, 
it was determined that the approved Project’s proposed change in land use designation for the 
subject site would not generate operational-source criteria pollutant emissions not already 
reflected in the current AQMP regional emissions inventory. Based on this, the approved Project 
was considered to be consistent with the AQMP.   
 
However, as discussed in the MICSPA EIR, the approved Project’s construction and operational 
emissions would be significant and unavoidable after implementation of mitigation measures, 
and would therefore result in a violation of an air quality standard and/or contribute substantially 
to an existing or projected air quality violation. The MICSPA EIR determined that maximum daily 
construction-source emissions of volatile organic compounds (VOC), oxides of nitrogen (NOX) 
and Carbon Monoxide (CO) would exceed applicable SCAQMD regional thresholds. It was also 
determined that under 2017 Conditions, maximum daily operational-source emissions of VOC, 
NOX, CO, Particulate Matter ≤10 microns in diameter (PM10), and Particulate Matter ≤2.5 microns 
in diameter (PM2.5), would exceed applicable SCAQMD regional thresholds. Further, the MICSPA 
EIR determined that under Project buildout conditions in 2020, maximum daily operational-source 
emission of VOC, NOX, CO, PM10, and PM2.5 would exceed applicable SCAQMD regional 
thresholds. Each of these impacts was determined to be significant and unavoidable after 

Item D - 70 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-20 
 
 
 

 
 

implementation of mitigation. 
 
Moreover, the South Coast Air Basin, which encompasses the site, is designated as non-
attainment for ozone, PM10, and PM2.5. Therefore, it was determined that construction-source 
VOC and NOX emissions regional threshold exceedances would result in a cumulatively 
considerable net increase in criteria pollutants (ozone and PM10/PM2.5) for which the Project region 
is non-attainment. Additionally, it was determined that operational-source VOC, NOX, PM10, and 
PM2.5 emissions regional threshold exceedances would result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase in criteria pollutants (ozone and PM10/PM2.5) for which the Project region is non-
attainment. These are considered cumulatively significant air quality impacts. 
 
Finally, the MICSPA EIR determined that maximum daily construction-source emissions would 
exceed applicable Localized Significance Thresholds (LSTs) for PM10. However, it was 
determined that application of mitigation would reduce these impacts to levels that would not 
exceed applicable SCAQMD LSTs. With relation to operational-source LSTs, the MICSPA EIR 
determined that maximum daily operational-source emissions concentrations would not exceed 
applicable LSTs, and would not require mitigation. 
 
Similar short-term construction-related and long-term operation-related air quality impacts will 
result from development of the proposed Project. It is anticipated that even with incorporation of 
mitigation, impacts related to violations of air quality standards and/or contributions to an existing 
or projected air quality violation will remain significant and unavoidable. Therefore, the 
proposed Project will conflict with or obstruct implementation of the adopted Ontario Plan Policy 
Plan, Ontario Plan EIR, and the current AQMP. The proposed Project would not result in 
significant construction-related, operation-related, or cumulative air quality impacts not already 
considered and addressed in The Ontario Plan EIR or the MICSPA EIR. With the capacity 
exchange, this impact for the P.A. revised project will not be any greater than the original 
MICSPA EIR. 
 
Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard. The MICSPA EIR determined that even with application of mitigation, maximum daily 
construction-source emissions would exceed SCAQMD regional thresholds for VOC, NOX, and 
CO. Project construction-source emissions of VOC, NOX, and CO were therefore determined to 
be individually and cumulatively significant. The MICSPA EIR determined that under 2017 
conditions, even with the application of mitigation, maximum daily operational-source emissions 
would exceed applicable SCAQMD thresholds for VOC, NOX, CO, PM10, and PM2.5. These 
Project operational-source exceedances were therefore determined to be individually and 
cumulatively significant. Further, the MICSPA EIR determined that under 2020 buildout 
conditions, even with application of mitigation, maximum daily operational-source emissions 
would exceed applicable SCAQMD thresholds for VOC, NOX, CO, PM10, and PM2.5. These 
Project operational-source exceedances were therefore determined to be individually and 
cumulatively significant. 
 
Similar impacts with respect to short-term construction-related air quality emissions and long-term 
operation-related air quality emissions are expected to occur with development of the proposed 
Project. It is anticipated that even with incorporation of mitigation, individually and cumulatively 
considerable net increases in criteria pollutants for which the region is non-attainment will remain 
significant and unavoidable. However, these impacts will be no greater than those analyzed in 

Item D - 71 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-21 
 
 
 

 
 

the MICSPA EIR, and may be slightly less due to the reduction of vehicle trips that would occur  
 
Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. Sensitive receptors are 
defined as populations that are more susceptible to the effects of pollution than the population at 
large. The SCAQMD identifies the following as sensitive receptors: long-term health care facilities, 
rehabilitation centers, convalescent centers, retirement homes, residences, schools, 
playgrounds, child care centers, and athletic facilities. According to the SCAQMD, projects have 
the potential to create significant impacts if they are located within one-quarter mile of sensitive 
receptors and would emit toxic air contaminants identified in SCAQMD Rule 1401. 
 
For chronic noncarcinogenic effects, the MICSPA EIR determined that the SCAQMD hazard 
threshold index of 1.0 would not be exceeded, and a less-than-significant impact would occur. 
Maximum PM10 and PM2.5 emissions concentrations attributable to freeway sources would not 
exceed applicable SCAQMD significance thresholds, and would therefore be less-than-
significant. Maximum CO concentrations attributable to freeway sources, when added to the 
existing background concentration would not cause an exceedance of the CAAQS for CO 
concentrations, and would therefore be less-than-significant. Maximum NO2 concentrations 
attributable to freeway sources when added to the existing background concentration would not 
cause an exceedance of the CAAQS for NO2 concentrations, and would therefore be less-than-
significant.  
 
Offsite Freeway-Source Pollutants 
 
In 2005, the California Air Resources Board (ARB) promulgated an advisory recommendation to 
avoid setting sensitive land uses within 500 feet of a freeway, urban roads with 100,000 vehicles 
per day, or rural roads with 50,000 vehicles per day. The ARB indicates that due to traffic-
generated pollutants, there is an estimated increased cancer risk incidence of 300 to 1,700 per 
million within this domain. At some point however, the increased cancer risk incidence due to the 
effects of freeway/roadway corridor pollutants become indistinguishable from the ambient air 
quality condition. In this regard, the effects of freeway/roadway-source pollutants that may impact 
the proposed Project site are already acknowledged and accounted for within the ambient air 
quality discussions presented within the MICSPA EIR for the approved Project. More specifically, 
the MATES-III Study data for the approved Project site comprehensively reflects increased TAC-
source cancer risks affecting the City and Project site, inclusive of increased cancer risks due to 
freeway/roadway pollutant sources. It is, however, recognized that the effects of freeway traffic 
pollutants on the Project site would likely be more acute and discernible in those areas nearer 
freeway/roadway corridors, including the proposed Plan amendment area which is immediately 
adjacent to the I-10 Freeway and would include residential land uses. 
 
The MICSPA EIR noted that Planning Area 4 within the proposed Meredith Specific Plan 
Amendment Project (Meredith SPA, SPA, Project) proposes Urban Residential land uses that 
would be located approximately 1,000 feet northerly of the Interstate 10 (I-10) freeway. Separating 
and buffering these Urban Residential land uses from adverse air pollutant, noise, and light and 
glare effects of I-10 freeway traffic, the Meredith SPA appropriately proposes intervening 
commercial land uses which are less susceptible to the effects of freeway traffic. Substantial 
landscaping/screening elements separating the Project Urban Residential land uses from the I-
10 Freeway were also proposed as elements of the Meredith SPA. Please refer also to land use 
planning, design/development, and landscape/screening discussions presented in the MICSPA 
EIR. 

Item D - 72 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-22 
 
 
 

 
 

 
The 2005 ARB guidance noted previously, information made available through the MATES-III 
Study, and it was determined that the configuration and design of the approved Project suggested 
that further assessment of freeway-source pollutant impacts was not warranted. Notwithstanding, 
the MICSPA EIR included an Off-Site Freeway-Source Air Toxic and Criteria Pollutant Health Risk 
Assessment, which was intended to: 
 

• Comply with and support CEQA Section 15003 (i) policies addressing adequacy, 

completeness, and a good-faith effort at full disclosure; 

• Disaggregate potential freeway-source air pollutant health effects from other background 

conditions; and 

• Identify means to reduce the specific effects of freeway-source pollutants at the Project 
site. 

 
The approved Project Off-Site Freeway-Source Air Toxic and Criteria Pollutant Health Risk 
Assessment (included as MICSPA EIR Appendix D) fully evaluated potential off-site freeway 
mobile source air toxic and criteria pollutant health risk impacts that may affect the residential 
component (Planning Area 4) of the proposed Meredith Specific Plan Amendment. Findings and 
conclusions of the Assessment are summarized below. 
 
For carcinogenic exposures, it was determined that the incremental increased risk at the 
maximum exposed residential receptor (MEIR) totaled 20 in one million, which would exceed the 
SCAQMD threshold of 10 in one million. However, it was noted that this level of exposure is 
consistent with and is already recognized within the SCAQMD Multiple Air Toxics Exposure Study 
in the South Coast Air Basin (MATES-III Study) data for the approved Project area. In this regard, 
the MATES-III Study indicates that irrespective of the Project, exposure to ambient toxic air 
contaminants (TACs) in total (inclusive of TACs generated by I-10 freeway traffic) would result in 
increased local carcinogenic exposures ranging from 1,096 in one million to 1,426 in one million. 
The MATES-III Study estimates the average ambient cumulative TAC-source cancer risk for the 
Basin as whole at 1,200 incidents per million population. This was considered to be a potentially 
significant impact in the approved MICSPA EIR. As such, mitigation measure 4.3.6 was 
incorporated. It was determined that with incorporation of mitigation measure 4.3.6, freeway 
source carcinogenic health risks at the Project site would total 7.14 in one million, which would 
not exceed the SCAQMD cancer risk threshold of 10 in one million. Therefore, it was determined 
that impacts would be less than significant with mitigation. 
 
The proposed Project will incorporate mitigation measure 4.3.6, which will require residential units 
within the Project site to include installation and maintenance of air filtration systems. With 
incorporation of mitigation, impacts from freeway-source pollutants on proposed residential 
receptors will be less than significant. 
 
Additionally, in the California Building Industry Association v. Bay Area Air Quality Management 
District (2015), 62 Cal. 4th 369 (CBIA) case the California Supreme Court determined that CEQA 
does not generally require an impacts analysis of the existing environmental conditions on the 
future residents of a proposed project and generally only requires an analysis of the proposed 
project’s impact on the environment. However, the CBIA case also stated that when a proposed 
project brings development and people into an area already subject to specific hazards and the 

Item D - 73 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-23 
 
 
 

 
 

new development/people exacerbate the existing hazards, then CEQA requires an analysis of the 
hazards and the proposed project’s effect in terms of increasing the risks related to those hazards. 
In regard to air quality hazards, TACs are defined as substances that may cause or contribute to 
an increase in deaths or in serious illness, or that may pose a present or potential hazard to 
human health. As such, if a proposed project would not exacerbate pre-existing hazards (e.g., 
TAC health risks) then an analysis of those hazards and the proposed project’s effect on 
increasing those hazards is not required. The proposed Project is a mixed-use commercial-
residential project and will not be a source of toxic air contaminants. The existing conditions on 
the Project site only include vacant land that does not contain any operational land uses that emit 
toxic air contaminants. Therefore, the proposed Project does not exacerbate pre-existing hazards 
and therefore, the impact is considered less than significant.   
 
Mitigation:  

 
MM 4.3.6 Residential units within the Project site shall include the installation and 

maintenance of air filtration systems with efficiencies equal to or exceeding 
a Minimum Efficiency Reporting Value (MERV) 13 as defined by the 
American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air Conditioning Engineers 
(ASHRAE) Standard 52.2. 

 
Create Objectional Odors affecting a substantial number of people. The MICSPA EIR 
determined that the approved Project did not propose land uses or activities typically associated 
with emitting objectionable odors. However, it was concluded that the approved Project could 
generate localized odors due to construction equipment exhaust, application of asphalt and 
architectural coatings during construction activities, and temporary storage of typical solid waste. 
Any construction-source odor emissions were determined to be temporary and intermittent in 
nature and would cease upon completion of construction. With regard to the approved Project’s 
operations, it was determined that Project-generated solid waste would be stored and disposed 
of according with regulations and the Project would also be required to comply with SCAQMD 
Rule 402, acting to minimize potential occurrences of public nuisance odors. Therefore, it was 
determined that the potential for the approved Project to create objectionable odors affecting a 
substantial number of people would be less than significant and no mitigation was required. 
 
The proposed Project will have similar short-term, construction-related and long-term, operation-
related impacts related to odors. The proposed Project does not proposed any land uses or 
activities typically associated with emitting objectionable odors. Construction-related odors will be 
short-term and will cease at the end of construction. Therefore, impacts related to objectionable 
odors will remain less than significant.  With the capacity exchange, this impact would remain 
less-than-significant. 
 
 
3.4 GLOBAL CLIMATE CHANGE AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
 
Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the environment. The MICSPA EIR determined that the approved 
Project’s GHG emissions impacts would be less than significant with compliance with State 
policies and requirements and application of operational-source air quality Mitigation Measure 
4.3.4. Therefore, it was determined that the approved Project was consistent with, or otherwise 
not in conflict with, recommended measures and actions in the CARB Scoping Plan. The Scoping 

Item D - 74 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-24 
 
 
 

 
 

Plan establishes strategies and measures that would achieve GHG reductions goals set forth in 
the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (AB 32). More specifically, the CARB Scoping Plan 
calls for an approximately 28.5 percent reduction in GHG emissions when compared to BAU 
conditions. Similarly, The Ontario Plan EIR indicates that AB 32 compliance would be achieved 
through an approximately 30.0 percent reduction in GHG emission when compared to a BAU 
Scenario. It was also determined that the approved Project was consistent with the applicable 
City of Ontario Policy Plan Goals and Policies, would comply with and implement applicable The 
Ontario Plan EIR Air Quality/ GHG Emissions mitigation measures. The MICSPA EIR analysis 
showed that the approved Project GHG emissions would be reduced by approximately 
32.81percent when compared to a 2020 BAU Scenario. It was also shown that the approved 
Project would generate an estimated 73,645.72 metric tons CO2e emissions when compared to 
existing conditions. In context, the City of Ontario 2008 GHG emissions as estimated under the 
CCAP totaled 2.5 million metric tons CO2e.7 Project GHG emissions would represent 
approximately 3 percent of the City’s estimated 2008 GHG emissions total. As discussed in the 
CCAP: 
 
An individual project cannot generate enough GHG emissions to influence global climate change. 
The project participates in this potential impact by its incremental contribution combined with the 
cumulative increase of all other sources of GHGs, which when taken together may have a 
significant impact on global climate change . . . Because the City’s CAP addresses GHG 
emissions reduction, is in concert with AB 32 and international efforts to address global climate 
change, and includes specific local requirements that will substantially lessen the cumulative 
problem, compliance with the CAP fulfills the description of mitigation found in CEQA Guidelines 
§15130(a)(3) and §15183.5. (CCAP, p. 2-5). As such, it was determined that the approved 
Meredith SPA Project would be consistent with the CCAP, would be in concert with AB 32 and 
international efforts to address global climate change, and would reflect specific local 
requirements that would substantially lessen cumulative GHG emissions impacts. The approved 
Meredith SPA Project would therefore also fulfill the description of mitigation found in CEQA 
Guidelines §15130(a)(3) and §15183.5. It was determined the approved Project’s incremental 
contribution to GHG emissions impacts would therefore not be cumulatively considerable. 
 
A Technical Memorandum was prepared for the proposed Project by Taha Environmental 
Planners, and dated May 1, 2019. The Technical Memorandum assesses the potential GHG 
emissions impacts associated with construction and operation of the proposed Project and 
focuses on the incremental difference in future GHG emissions that would result from 
implementation of urban residential and commercial (retail) development in lieu of the urban 
commercial development assessed in the CalEEMod was used to estimate annual GHG 
emissions that would result from implementation of the proposed project in conjunction with other 
maximum potential development in Parcels 12–16. Table 3-2 presents the annual GHG emissions 
estimates for the proposed project and the maximum potential development in the remaining 
Planning Area 2 parcels, as well as the approved uses from the Meredith DEIR for an operational 
year of 2022. 
 
As shown in Table 3-2, below, implementation of the Proposed Project would generate 
approximately 11,740.4 MTCO2e of GHG emissions annually. When combined with the maximum 
expected development in the other five Planning Area 2 parcels, the total annual GHG emissions 
would be approximately 22,055.8 MTCO2e, which represents an increase of approximately 
1,597.9 MTCO2e annually relative to the approved uses in the Meredith DEIR. The increase in 
operational emissions is predominantly attributed to the additional energy and water demand 

Item D - 75 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-25 
 
 
 

 
 

associated with residential development, as well as the change in trip types and lengths compared 
to commercial shopping center trips. The land uses modeled in Parcels 12–16 were speculatively 
conservative, in that the maximum potential development permitted by the approved Meredith 
DEIR were assumed to be built to full capacity. The incremental increase in Planning Area 2 GHG 
emissions would represent a two percent increase relative to the GHG emissions that were 
assessed in the Meredith DEIR for the entire Specific Plan area and would increase annual GHG 
emissions from 73,645.7 MTCO2e to 75,243.6 MTCO2e. The total annual GHG emissions would 
represent a 31.3 percent reduction relative to the BAU scenario assessed in the Meredith DEIR, 
which would exceed the 30 percent reduction required for consistency with AB 32 compliance as 
determined in The Ontario Plan EIR. 
 

Table 3-2 
Planning Area 2 Annual GHG Emissions Comparison 

 
 
The emissions estimates presented in Table 3-2 represent a conservative characterization of the 
proposed project’s GHG emissions for several reasons: 
 

• Construction emissions for proposed Planning Area 2 uses include all construction 
emissions previously analyzed for Planning Area 2 in the Meredith DEIR in addition to 
those for the proposed project, and therefore are partially duplicative; actual Planning Area 
2 construction emissions would likely be less than 390.5 MTCO2e annually. 

• Maximum potential development was assumed for each of Parcels 12–16; it is possible 
that actual development within these parcels would not be built to capacity, reducing 
annual emissions. 

Item D - 76 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-26 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Furthermore, the City of Ontario 2014 CCAP Appendix B, Greenhouse Gas Emissions CEQA 
Thresholds and Screening Tables, provides screening tables for assessing project design 
features that will reduce GHG emissions relative to conventional building practices. Instructions 
for employing the Screening Table for Implementation of GHG Reduction Measures for 
Residential Development state that, “[p]rojects that garner at least 100 points will be consistent 
with the reduction quantities anticipated in the City’s CAP. As such, those projects that garner a 
total of 100 points or greater would not require quantification of project specific GHG emissions. 
Consistent with CEQA Guidelines, such projects would be determined to have a less than 
significant individual and cumulative impact for GHG emissions.” Table 3-3 presents and overview 
of the design features incorporated into the proposed project that would reduce GHG emissions. 
As shown in Table 3-3, the proposed Project would garner 120 points in the screening table. 
Therefore, GHG emissions that would be generated by the proposed Project would be less-
than-significant. 
 

Table 3-3 
Proposed Project Design Features to Reduce GHG Emissions 

 
Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emissions of greenhouse gases. The MICSPA EIR determined that the approved Project 
was consistent with and supports AB 32 and the CARB Scoping Plan; is consistent with applicable 
City of Ontario Policy Plan Goals and Policies; and would comply with and implement applicable 
TOP EIR mitigation measures. At present, there are no other applicable plans, policies or 
regulations adopted for the purpose of reducing the Project’s GHG emissions. It was noted that 
City/CARB AB 32 compliance would be achieved provided there was a minimum 30.0 percent 
reduction in statewide Business As Usual GHG emissions, when considering the time frame 1990 
to 2020. Project GHG emissions levels that are consistent with the noted 30.0 percent GHG 
emissions reductions targets would be considered compliant with AB 32, and potential Project 

Item D - 77 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-27 
 
 
 

 
 

GHG emissions/Global Climate Change impacts would be considered less-than-significant. 
Based in this, it was determined that the approved Project would be consistent with and would 
support to applicable plans, policies and regulations adopted for the purpose of reducing the 
emissions of greenhouse gases. The potential for the Project to conflict with an applicable plan, 
policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases is 
therefore considered less-than-significant. 
 
The proposed project (6,027 trips) and other Planning Area 2 uses (9,222 trips) would result in 
1,150 fewer daily vehicle trips (15,249 trips) than the approved uses in the Meredith DEIR (16,399 
trips). Although the annual GHG emissions would increase by up to approximately 1,597.9 
MTCO2e relative to the approved uses, total specific plan GHG emissions would represent a 31.3 
percent reduction relative to the business-as-usual scenario analyzed in the Meredith DEIR, which 
exceeds The Ontario Plan reduction goal of 30 percent. Additionally, as shown in Table 6-2, the 
proposed project would implement design features sufficient to accrue 120 points in the Screening 
Table for Implementation of GHG Reduction Measures for Residential Development, 
demonstrating that the proposed project is consistent with the reduction goals set forth in the 2014 
CCAP, which was designed to be consistent with AB 32 and statewide GHG emissions reduction 
efforts. As such, implementation of the proposed project would not conflict with any applicable 
plan, policy, or regulation adopted related to reducing GHG emissions, and this impact would be 
less-than-significant. With the capacity exchange, this impact would remain less-than-
significant. 
 
3.5 NOISE 
 
Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in 
the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or 
noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies. The MICSPA EIR noted that 
construction is not considered a source of permanent noise increases. As it pertains to substantial 
temporary increases in ambient noise levels, it was determined in the EIR that even with 
incorporation of mitigation measures 4.5.1 through 4.5.5 (see Table 1-1 for text of mitigation 
measures), construction noise levels will still likely exceed the City’s 65 dBA Leq construction 
noise level threshold due to the Project’s close proximity to noise-sensitive receptors. While 
mitigation measures 4.5.1 through 4.5.5 would reduce construction noise to the extent feasible, it 
is anticipated that noise associated with the construction of the approved Project would exceed 
applicable City of Ontario standards. As such, it was determined that Project construction 
activities would result in a substantial temporary and periodic increase in ambient noise levels in 
the Project vicinity above levels existing without the Project.  
 
As it pertains to off-site vehicular-source noise impacts, the MICSPA EIR determined that the 
approved Project would create a substantial permanent increase in traffic-related noise levels and 
expose persons to noise levels in excess of the exterior noise level standards at the adjacent land 
uses along certain study area roadways. In these instances, because Project vehicular-source 
noise would be additive to already unacceptable and cumulatively significant ambient noise 
conditions, Project vehicular-source noise impacts would also be cumulatively considerable. 
However, no feasible mitigation measures exist that would reduce off-site vehicular-source noise 
impacts to less-than-significant levels. The results of this analysis are consistent with the findings 
of the City of Ontario Policy Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR) which states: “No mitigation 
measures are available that would prevent noise levels along major transportation corridors from 
increasing as a result of substantial increases in traffic volumes...” As such, off-site vehicular-

Item D - 78 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-28 
 
 
 

 
 

source noise impacts as a result of the Project were determined to be significant and 
unavoidable. 
 
As it pertains to on-site exterior noise impacts, the MICSPA EIR determined that patios of future 
residential uses facing Archibald Avenue, Inland Empire Boulevard, and the I-10 Freeway would 
experience exterior noise levels in excess of the City of Ontario’s exterior noise level criteria for 
multi-family residential developments. However, with implementation of mitigation measure 4.5.6, 
it was determined that the mitigated future exterior noise levels will range from 51.7 to 65.0 dBA 
CNEL, which meets the City of Ontario 65 dBA CNEL exterior noise level standard. Therefore, 
this impact was considered less than significant with the incorporation of mitigation measure 4.5.6 
 
As it pertains to on-site interior noise impacts, the MICSPA EIR indicates that under a windows 
closed condition and with a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g., air conditioning), future noise 
levels at the first and second floor building façades at buildings facing Archibald Avenue and the 
I-10 Freeway City of Ontario 45 dBA CNEL interior noise level standards can be satisfied using 
standard windows. Additionally, standard windows are sufficient to satisfy interior noise level 
standards at first floor building façades along Inland Empire Boulevard. However, noise levels 
received at the second story windows along this façade may exceed City standards and are 
considered potentially significant. With implementation of mitigation measures 4.5.7 and 4.5.8, 
mitigated interior noise levels will range from 35.9 to 44.0 dBA CNEL, which is below the City 
standard of 45 dBA CNEL. As such, this impact was determined to be less than significant with 
mitigation.  
 
As it pertains to operational stationary area-source noise impacts, the MICSPA EIR determined 
that under two development scenarios (Option A or B), Project operational stationary area-source 
noise would not cause or result in an exceedance of the maximum acceptable ambient condition 
(65 dBA daytime/45 dBA nighttime). Nor would the approved Project operational stationary area-
source noise result in an increase of 1.5 dBA or greater in instances where noise levels without 
the Project already exceed the maximum acceptable ambient condition. On this basis, it was 
determined that Project operational noise would not result in exposure of persons to, or generation 
of, noise levels in excess of standards established in the City’s General Plan or Noise Ordinance. 
However, to further reduce potential operational noise levels received at adjacent residential land 
uses, the MICSPA EIR incorporated mitigation measures 4.5.9 through 4.5.13. 
 
The proposed Project will have similar impacts to the approved Project. A Noise Technical 
Memorandum was prepared by Taha Environmental Planners, and dated July 2, 2019. The 
Technical Memorandum noted that it is important for new residential land uses be located in noise 
compatible environments and comply with the 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standard for any 
habitable room under the State of California Title 24 requirement. As discussed above, the 
proposed Project will result in substantial temporary increases in ambient noise levels related to 
construction. These increases will remain significant and unavoidable for the proposed Project 
even with mitigation incorporated. As it pertains to permanent increases in ambient noise levels 
related to vehicle traffic, on-site interior and on-site exterior noise impacts can be reduce to less 
than significant through mitigation. When it comes to operational stationary area-source noise, 
impacts will remain less than significant with mitigation.  
 
With the capacity exchange, overall impacts would be similar to those analyzed in the 
MICSPA EIR. 
 

Item D - 79 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-29 
 
 
 

 
 

Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels. The MICSPA 
EIR determined that receiver location R4, located in the City of Rancho Cucamonga, is expected 
to experience peak vibration levels exceeding the City of Rancho Cucamonga vibration standards 
with levels approaching 0.0046 in/sec., and mitigation measure 4.5.15 was incorporated. It was 
determined that although mitigation measure 4.5.14 will avoid impacts to receiver location R4 
when feasible, construction of Planning Area 1 is still expected to generate vibration levels 
exceeding applicable City of Rancho Cucamonga vibration significance criteria. It is also noted 
that construction-source vibration impacts would be intermittent and transitory, occurring only 
when construction equipment is operating proximate to the Project site perimeter. Construction 
activities at the Project site would be restricted to daytime hours consistent with City requirements, 
thereby precluding potential construction-source vibration impacts during sensitive nighttime 
hours. 
 
The proposed Project will have similar vibration impacts to the approved Project. Vibration 
impacts at receiver location R4 will remain significant and unavoidable with incorporation of 
mitigation.  
 
Mitigation: 

 
MM 4.5.14 The operation of heavy equipment shall only occur between the hours of 7:00 

a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, or Saturdays, and between 9:00 a.m. and 
6:00 on Sundays, and avoided at the Project site boundary nearest receiver 
location R4 whenever feasible. 

 
Impacts for the revised proposed P.A. 2 project will be similar to those analyzed in the 
MICSPA EIR. 
 
For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or noise impact zones of the 
airport land use compatibility plan for ONT and Chino Airports, would the project expose 
people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels. The MICSPA EIR 
determined that noise impacts related to airports will be less than significant. Therefore, the 
proposed Project would have similar less than significant impacts. 
 
 
3.6 HAZARDS/HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 
The relationships of the Planning Area 2 changes to the previously certified MICSPA EIR hazards 
and hazardous materials impact and mitigation conclusions are described below.  
 
Hazardous Materials Transport, Use, or Disposal Impacts. The Initial Study prepared for the 
MICSPA EIR determined that there would be less than significant impact with respect to this issue. 
The Initial Study determined that during construction activities, the project will require limited 
transport of potentially hazardous materials (e.g., paints, solvents, fertilizer, etc.) to and from the 
project site. Additionally, operation of the project could involve the temporary storage and handling 
of potentially hazardous materials such as pesticides, fertilizers, or paint products that are pre‐
packaged for distribution and use. This type of storage, transfer, use and disposal of potentially 
hazardous materials is extensively regulated at the local, State and federal levels. It was not 
anticipated that the development of the project would result in conditions that are not currently 
addressed by existing regulations. On this basis, potential impacts due to routine transport, use, 

Item D - 80 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-30 
 
 
 

 
 

or disposal of hazardous materials were considered less‐than‐significant, and no adverse 
environmental impacts and no additional analysis of this issue was included in the Draft EIR.  
 
The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional effect beyond those 
evaluated in the Initial Study. Transport and use and disposal of hazardous materials will continue 
to be extensively regulated and there is nothing new or unique about the currently proposed 
project that would result in potential impacts with respect to this issue. With the capacity 
exchange, this impact would remain less-than-significant. 
 
Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably 
foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the likely release of hazardous 
materials into the environment  
 
The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be less than 
significant impact with respect to this issue and no additional analysis of this issue was included 
in the EIR. The Initial Study determined that during construction activities, the project will require 
limited transport of potentially hazardous materials (e.g., paints, solvents, fertilizer, etc.), and, 
similar to the preceding impact issue, handling, transport, use and disposal of such materials is 
highly regulated. 
 
The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional effect beyond those 
evaluated in the Initial Study. Transport and use and disposal of hazardous materials will continue 
to be extensively regulated and there is nothing new or unique about the currently proposed 
project that would result in potential impacts with respect to this issue. With the capacity 
exchange, this impact would remain less-than-significant. 
 
Emissions or Handling of Hazardous Materials With ¼ mile of Schools. The certified 
MICSPA EIR determined that this impact would be less-than-significant with mitigation (See Table 
1-1 to review the mitigation measures). The EIR identified one school, Italo M. Bernt School, 
located along the south side of 4th street within the boundary of the MICSPA. However, this school 
has since been demolished and there are no other schools within 1/4 miles of P.A. 2. Therefore, 
the proposed capacity exchange would not result in any additional or more sever impacts with 
respect to this issue. With the capacity exchange, this impact would remain less-than-
significant. 
 
Located on a Site Included on a List of Hazardous Materials Sites (Gov’t Code Section 
65962.5). The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no 
impact with respect to this issue and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. The MICSPA 
does not encompass sites listed on the hazardous materials sites list compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5.  The currently proposed project does not change this 
condition so it would not create any additional impacts. With the capacity exchange, this impact 
would remain less-than-significant. 
 
Safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area for a project located within 
an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a 
public airport or public use airport. The certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact 
would be less-than-significant. The EIR indicated the Project site is located approximately 0.5 
miles northerly of the Ontario International Airport and is located within the identified Airport 
Influence Area. As such, the Project is subject to the ONT ALUCP, which sets limits on future land 

Item D - 81 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-31 
 
 
 

 
 

uses and development near the airport in response to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. The EIR further indicates the Project is 
located outside of all identified safety zones for the Airport and would be developed in accordance 
with all City regulations and the ONT ALUCP, precluding significant impacts with respect to safety. 
None of the characteristics of the proposed changes to P.A. 2 would create new or increase the 
severity of impacts with respect to this issue. With the capacity exchange, this impact would 
remain less-than-significant. 
 
Projects Within the Vicinity of a Private Airstrip. The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA 
EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect to this issue and no additional analysis 
was included in the EIR. No private airstrips are located within two miles of the MICSPA. With 
the capacity exchange, this impact would remain less- than-significant. 
 
Exposure of People or Structures to Significant Risk of Loss, Injury or Death Due to 
Wildfires. The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no 
impact with respect to this issue and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. The MICSPA 
is located in an urbanizing area and no wildlands are located within it’s vicinity. With the capacity 
exchange, this impact would remain less- than-significant. 
 
3.7 PUBLIC SERVICES AND UTILITIES 
 

a. Substantial adverse physical effects from the construction of new or altered government 
facilities needed to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other 
performance objectives for fire or police protection services, schools, parks, or other public 
facilities.  

b. Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality 
Control Board.  

c. Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 
environmental effects.  

d. Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects.  

e. Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and 
resources or are new or expanded entitlements needed.  

f. Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve 
the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in 
addition to the provider’s existing commitments.  

g. Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project’s 
solid waste disposal needs.  

h. Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste.  
 
Impact Questions for Public Services (Item “a’ above) 
 
The certified EIR concluded that impacts to fire or police protection services, schools, parks, or 
other public facilities was less than significant.  
 
Fire Protection Services. The project area is served by the Ontario Fire Department and Station 
5 is less than 1 mile from the Project.  The certified EIR noted that there would be an incremental 
increase in demand for fire and EMS services.  However, all developmental plans for projects in 

Item D - 82 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-32 
 
 
 

 
 

the Project area would be subject to review by the City and the Fire Department to ensure 
compliance with the following (1) the inclusion of emergency access and fire flow requirements; 
(s) any fire prevention, protection, and/or suppression requirements as specified under existing 
City Ordinances; payment of  development impact fees, and (3) applicable Building Code and Fire 
Code provisions. Additionally, project developers will be required to contribute developmental 
impact fees and tax revenue attributable to the Project will, in part, pay for fire protection services.  
 
Police Protection Services. The certified EIR determined that this impact would be less-than- 
significant. The proposed project includes no changes or new conditions that would alter this 
conclusion, based on the following information: (1) the Ontario Police Department, City Planning 
Department, and City Building Department would continue to evaluate individual future 
development proposals for safety and security; (2) developmental fees along with property taxes 
and sales taxes will provide supplemental funding for police protections services in the Project 
area.  
 
Schools. The certified EIR determined that this impact would be less-than- significant.  Project 
area K-12 schools are provided by The Cucamonga Elementary School District and the Chaffey 
Joint Union High School District.  The Project amendment which includes an increase in the 
number of residential units within Planning Area 2 would create incremental increases of demand 
for school services at the local districts. Consistent with the certified EIR, school impacts would 
be mitigated with the payment of school impact fees paid with the issuance of the building permit.  
 
Parks. As stated in the Meredith International Centre SPA Initial Study from 2014, impacts to 
Parks would be less than significant as the Projects in the Specific Plan area would be required 
to pay park developmental fees.  Impacts could be further mitigated by residential uses 
incorporating onsite recreational facilities to serve residents.  As such, impacts to Parks would 
remain less than significant.   
 
Other Public Facilities.  The Meredith International Centre SPA Initial Study from 2014 states 
that the Project would require established public agency oversight by City Planning and the 
Building and Safety Divisions as well as the Public Works Department. The initial study notes 
these tasks as routine and the Project would not require provision of new facilities.  This would 
not change under this amendment.  
 
Summary for Public Services and Comparison the P.A. 2 Project. The certified EIR 
determined that impacts to public services would be less-than-significant. This amendment to 
the EIR does not change these findings.  Although there would still be an incremental increase in 
demand for public facilities and services, the impacts would be offset by the payment of 
developmental impact fees and subsequent property and sales taxes.  Additionally, if new public 
facilities were deemed necessary in the future, these facilities would undergo environmental 
review, as required under CEQA. With the amendment, this impact would remain less-than-
significant. 
 
Utilities 
 
Water Supply.    Water supply in Ontario is provided by multiple sources including the Chino 
Groundwater Basin, the Chino Desalter Authority, Treated State Water Project and Water 
Facilities Authority sources, and recycled water from the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA). 
The Water Supply Assessment (WSA) completed as a part of the certified EIR notes that the City 

Item D - 83 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-33 
 
 
 

 
 

has an existing water supply of 103.04 million gallons per day (mgd) and maximum demand of 
about half (53.87 mgd) of the available supply (See Appendix D).   
 
Under the certified EIR, it was anticipated that water demand would be 151,400 gallons per day 
(gpd) or approximately 170 acre-feet per year (AFY). For comparison, water use under the 
amendment is calculated in two steps. First, water use in the remaining parcels (those within 
Planning Area 2 not considered in this amendment). Next water use is calculated for the 
residential units and retail area considered under this amendment. The remaining parcels consist 
of 21.75 acres of urban/commercial use, using the loading factors as included in the WSA 
(completed for the certified EIR), water use is calculated as follows: 
 

21.75 acres x 2,200 gpd/ac = 47,850 gpd (54 AFY) 
 
The residential water use estimate was provided by the WSA completed as a part of the certified 
EIR. There were no estimates of water use for retail or commercial uses in square feet; as such, 
the loading factor was obtained from a City if Los Angeles EIR (2003) that includes estimates of 
water use by land use type.   
 

925 urban residential units x 152 gpd/dwelling unit = 140,600 gpd (157 AFY) 
 

5000 square feet commercial x 88 gpd/1000 square feet = 440 gpd (0.5 AFY) 
 
As such, total water consumption in Planning Area 2 is anticipated to be approximately 188,890 
gpd (212 AFY), an increase of 42 AFY as compared to the certified EIR. The WSA notes that the 
demand for the entire Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Area represents 0.8% of the 
available supply within the City. The additional 42 AFY projected under this amendment 
represents 0.05% of the available supply.  
 
Wastewater Treatment. Wastewater within the project area is conveyed via trunk sewers to two 
wastewater treatment plants operated by IEUA (Regional Water Reclamation Plants No. 1 and 
No. 5).  According to the certified EIR, the plants have approximately 15 mgd available capacity 
and the capacity was anticipated to increase due to planned facility upgrades. IEUA treats water 
to meet discharge requirements consistent with water reuse as recycled water. The certified EIR 
conservatively assumes that 100% of the water serving the project would also need to be treated.  
As such, this analysis assumes that 188,890 gpd (or 0.2 mgd) would need to be treated as water 
treatment facilities.  
 
Stormwater Drainage. Planning Area 2 is identified as being within “Watershed 5” as identified 
in the certified EIR. Runoff from this area will flow south easterly on the surface and within storm 
drain systems and discharge into the existing private storm drain system located along the 
southerly property line, adjacent to the Caltrans property. The private storm drain discharges 
directly into the Cucamonga Creek Channel. This project will incorporate all necessary drainage 
and storm water management systems to accept and manage stormwater drainage consistent 
with local and state regulations. 
 
Solid Waste The certified EIR applies the City’s solid waste generation rates to project annual 
solid waste generation. These factors are applied below to develop an estimate of solid waste 
generation under the amendment.  The EIR notes that the amount of solid waste expected to be 
generated under the Specific Plan (97,738 tons per year) was substantially less (about one 

Item D - 84 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-34 
 
 
 

 
 

quarter) as compared to calculations under The Ontario Plan EIR (33.345 tons per year).  Most 
of the waste within the City is sent to the El Sobrante Landfill in Corona.  
 
Impact Questions for Utilities 
 
Regional Water Quality Control Board wastewater treatment Impacts. The Initial Study for 
the Meredith International Center Specific Plan Amendment noted that this impact was less than 
significant, and no additional analysis was provided in the EIR. According to the Initial Study, the 
project proposes typical residential, commercial and residential uses and would not result in a 
discharge of pollutants that were not accommodated by the regional treatment facilities. The 
amendment does not change the overall type of land uses and therefore the impact would 
remain less than significant and similar to the impacts analyzed in the MICSPA.  
 
Water Supply Impacts.  The certified EIR determined that this impact would be less-than-
significant.  The project would create an incremental increase in areawide demand for water. As 
noted above, the Project area has the available water to serve the changes considered under 
this amendment. As noted above, the project is anticipated to create an additional 42 AFY 
demand for water representing 0.05% of the supply available within the City’s service area and 
this would not require the construction of new water supply facilities.  Additionally, the project 
will pay Developmental Impact Fees and construction of onsite infrastructure to provide drinking 
water to the project area.  This impact would remain less- than-significant. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Impacts. The certified EIR noted this impact to be less than significant.  
The project would create an incremental increase in areawide demand for wastewater treatment. 
As noted above, the Project area has the available wastewater treatment capacity to serve the 
area considered under this amendment. The certified EIR conservatively assumes that 100% of 
the water serving the project would also need to be treated.  As such, this analysis assumes that 
188,890 gpd (or 0.2 mgd) would need to be treated as water treatment facilities (well within 
available capacity). Additionally, the project applicant would be required to pay sewer connection 
fees established by the City to pay for any future required improvements. The impact remains 
less than significant and similar to the impacts analyzed in the MICSPA EIR.  
 
Stormwater Drainage Impacts.  The certified EIR determined that this impact would be less-
than-significant. The proposed amendment  includes no changes or new conditions that would 
alter this conclusion, based on the following information: (1) surface  runoff is determined by a 
parcel’s impervious surface and not by land use or density; (2) all new developments still would 
be subject to the stormwater regulations that require post-development storm water discharge to 
be equal to or less than pre-development discharge.  
 
Solid Waste Impacts.  Impacts related to solid waste were determined by the certified EIR as 
being less than significant.  The project will generate incremental increases in demand on landfill 
capacity. However, the certified EIR determined that adequate capacity was available at regional 
landfills (including the El Sobrante Landfill in Corona).  The project will also participate in City 
recycling programs, pay developmental fees related to solid waste management, Additionally, 
the project will comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid 
waste. This impact would remain less- than-significant and similar to the impacts 
analyzed in the MICSPA EIR.  
 

Item D - 85 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-35 
 
 
 

 
 

3.8 HYDROLOGY/WATER QUALITY 
 
Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise 
substantially degrade surface or ground water quality. As determined in the MICSPA EIR, 
the approved Project is mandated to acquire all necessary permits, and comply with City of 
Ontario and SARWQCB requirements, acting to preclude, or substantively reduce the potential of 
the Project to violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements. More 
specifically, consistent with established building code regulations, a site-specific drainage studies 
reflecting precise pad locations, proposed drainage structures, detention facilities, etc., are 
required prior to the issuance of building permits. 
 
It was determined that the approved Project would connect to the existing sanitary sewer system 
serving the Project area, and does not propose or require septic systems or other alternative 
treatment of wastewater. Further, the approved Project’s plans for connection to existing sanitary 
sewer infrastructure facilities are subject to review and approval by the City. The Project Applicant 
will also be required to apply for service and pay a mandated Connection Fee and ongoing Service 
Fees. Fees paid by the approved Project will be applied toward maintenance and expansion of 
City conveyance and treatment facilities. Wastewater generated by the approved Project will be 
typical of urban generators and wastewater resulting for the approved Project uses will not require 
treatment beyond that provided by existing City facilities. 
Moreover, it was determined that the approved Project will be developed and operated in 
compliance with City/SARQWCB regulations and water quality standards. More specifically, the 
approved Project will provide connection to, and interface with, existing and proposed drainage 
systems in the least invasive manner possible. Design, configuration, and locations of proposed 
drainage system improvements will be reviewed and approved by the City prior to, or concurrent 
with, application for grading permits.  
 
It was also determined that, to the extent feasible, the approved Project design will employ 
permeable materials and landscaped areas to enhance on-site capture and absorption of 
stormflows. The approved Project will also provide for elimination/reduction of pollutant 
discharges, including capture and treatment of dry weather and first flush runoff in a manner 
consistent with City and SARWQCB policies and requirements. 
 
All storm water discharges from the approved Project were noted to be required to comply with 
applicable provisions of the County’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permit. Consistent with SARWQCB and City requirements, waste materials will not be discharged 
to drainage areas, streambeds, or streams from the approved Project. Nor will spoil sites be 
located in areas that could result in spoil materials being washed into a water body.  
 
Consistent with SARWQCB and City requirements, it was determined that appropriate Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) will be employed throughout construction processes, thereby 
controlling potential discharge of pollutants, preventing sewage spills, and avoiding discharge of 
sediments into streets, storm water channels, or waterways. As reflected in the approved Project’s 
required Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), selected BMPs will act to: 
 

• Control and prevent potential contaminant spills; 

• Prevent runoff from off-site areas from flow across the construction site(s); 

• Slow runoff rates across the site; 

Item D - 86 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-36 
 
 
 

 
 

• Provide soils stabilization; and 

• Remove sediment from on-site runoff before it leaves the site. 

 
Similarly, it was noted that the approved Project’s mandated WQMP will act to control potential 
discharge of pollutants, prevent sewage spills, and avoid discharge of sediments into streets, 
storm water channels, or waterways due to operational activities over the life of the Project. All 
required drainage improvements will be designed and implemented to the satisfaction of the City 
and SARWQCB. 
 
Based on the preceding discussion, it was concluded that the potential for the approved Project 
to violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially 
degrade water quality is determined to be less-than-significant. 
 
The proposed Project will also be required to acquire all necessary permits, and comply with City 
of Ontario and SARWQCB requirements, acting to preclude, or substantively reduce the potential 
of the Project to violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements. More 
specifically, consistent with established building code regulations, a site-specific drainage studies 
reflecting precise pad locations, proposed drainage structures, detention facilities, etc., are 
required prior to the issuance of building permits. All the same requirements of the approved 
Project will be required for the proposed Project. Therefore, impacts will remain less than 
significant.  
 
Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, and; 
 
Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, 
in a manner which would substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a 
manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site, and; 
 
Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, 
in a manner which would create or contribute runoff water that would exceed the capacity 
of the existing or planned storm water drainage systems or provide substantial additional 
sources of polluted runoff. 
 
It was determined in the MICSPA EIR that the approved Project Stormwater Management System 
addresses potential post-development hydrologic impacts. The approved Project would 
incorporate all necessary drainage and storm water management systems, and will comply with 
all storm water system design, construction, and operational requirements mandated under the 
City Municipal Code and within regulations established by other agencies, such as the 
SARWQCB and California Department of Water Resources. In combination, the Project’s storm 
water management components, and compliance with regulatory requirements act to preclude 
potentially adverse drainage and storm water runoff impacts. The Project drainage concept will 
maintain the site’s primary drainage patterns, and will implement drainage systems and detention 
areas to accept developed storm water discharges from the Project site and off-site sources. 
Table 3-4 presents a comparison of the pre-development and post-development runoff rates from 
the Project site. 
 

Item D - 87 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-37 
 
 
 

 
 

Table 3-4 
Runoff Rates 

 
As shown above, it was determined that impervious surfaces implemented by the approved 
Project could potentially increase runoff by up to 259.5 cfs. However, storm water conveyance 
and detention capabilities will be required to ensure that post-development storm water runoff 
volumes and velocities do not exceed pre-development conditions. This will be accomplished 
through the use of natural swales and mechanical detention systems that will allow measured 
storm water releases in a manner that will not increase the overall burden downstream. The 
precise system and detailed design will be developed, and approved by the City, at the time each 
increment of the Project is developed. The detention systems will be designed consistent with the 
recommendations of the required site-specific drainage studies. 
 
The Project storm water management system will be developed and operated in compliance with 
City/SARWQCB regulations and water quality standards. The Project will provide connection to 
existing and proposed drainage systems in the least invasive manner possible. Design, 
configuration, and locations of proposed drainage system improvements will be reviewed and 
approved by the City/SARWQCB prior to, or concurrent with, application for grading permits. As 
such, it was determined that implementation of the approved Project storm water management 
system would maintain existing drainage patterns and would not contribute runoff water which 
would exceed the capacity of the existing or planned storm water drainage systems. 
 
The MICSPA EIR also determined that the approved Project’s SWPPP and compliance with 
regulatory requirements addresses construction source water quality impacts. During site 
preparation activities prior to construction, existing groundcover will be removed from the site, 
exposing the Project area to increased wind and water erosion potentials. Further, construction 
site runoff may carry increased loads of sediment, heavy metals and petroleum hydrocarbons 
(from machinery) which could degrade water quality. In accordance with NPDES requirements, 
the Project Applicant will be required to prepare a construction activities erosion control plan to 
alleviate potential sedimentation and storm water discharge contamination impacts of the Project. 
 
It was determined that the approved Project Applicant would be responsible for compliance with 
the General Construction NPDES permit from the SARWQCB by filing a Notice of Intent to 
Commence Construction Activities. Under the General Construction Permit, discharge of 
materials other than storm water is prohibited. The Applicant would be required to prepare, retain 
at the construction site, and implement a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) which 
identifies the sources of sediments and other pollutants that affect the quality of storm water 
discharge, and implement practices to reduce sediment and other pollutants to storm water 

Item D - 88 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-38 
 
 
 

 
 

discharge. The SWPPP also identifies both construction and post-construction BMPs to reduce 
sediments and other pollutants. BMPs mandated by the requisite NPDES permit typically include 
installation of filter fabric fences, sandbars and check-dams. Proposed construction BMPs to be 
incorporated in the approved Project include, but are not limited to, the following:  
 

• Silt Fences 

• Check Dams 

• Gravel Bag Berms 

• Street Sweeping and Vacuuming 

• Sand Bag Barriers 

• Storm Drain Inlet Protection 

• Wind Erosion Control 

• Stabilized Construction Entrance/Exit 

• Entrance/Exit Tire Wash 
 
As such, it was determined that implementation of the Project SWPPP and compliance with 
applicable NPDES and SARWQCB requirements will reduce potential construction-source water 
quality impacts of the approved Project below the level of significance. 
 
Finally, it was determined in the MICSPA EIR that the approved Project WQMP and compliance 
with regulatory requirements would address operational-source water quality impacts. Over the 
life of the approved Project, contaminants such as oil, fuel and grease that are spilled or left 
behind by vehicular traffic, collect and concentrate on paved surfaces. During storm events, these 
contaminants are washed into the storm drain system and may potentially degrade receiving 
water quality. It was noted that storm water runoff from paved surfaces within the developed 
Project area could carry a variety of urban wastes, including greases and oils and small amounts 
of metals which are common by-products of vehicular travel. In addition, it was noted that storm 
runoff will likely contain residual amounts of fertilizers and plant additives washed off from 
landscaped areas within the Project site. 
 
Recognizing the potential hazards of such urban runoff, the EPA has issued regulations which 
required municipalities to participate in the NPDES. As part of this program, San Bernardino 
County has received an NPDES permit for urban runoff. Compliance with the provisions specified 
in the NPDES permit ensures proper management and disposal of urban runoff from the Project. 
 
It was determined that the approved Project Applicant would be responsible for obtaining a 
General Permit for storm water discharge from the SARWQCB, in accordance with the Notice of 
Intent instructions. Under the General Permit, discharge of materials other than storm water is 
prohibited. In support of the above requirements, the Project Applicant shall also develop and 
implement a Project-specific Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) addressing all post-
construction pollutant discharges. BMPs to be implemented under the WQMP include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 
 
Source Control/Non-Structural BMPs 
 

Item D - 89 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-39 
 
 
 

 
 

• Education or Property Owners 

• Spill Contingency Plan 

• Employee Training/Education Program 

• Street Sweeping of Private Streets and Parking Lots 

• Common Area Catch Basin Inspection 

• Landscape Planning 

• Hillside Landscaping 

• Roof Runoff Controls 

• Efficient Irrigation 

• Protection of Slopes and Channels 

• Storm Drainage Signage 

• Inlet Trash Racks 

• Energy Dissipaters 

• Trash Storage Areas and Litter Control 

• Maintenance Bays and Docks Drainage Controls 

• Outdoor Material Storage Area Drainage Controls 
 
Site Design/Structural BMPs 
 

• Infiltration and Biofiltration Basins 

• Maximize Permeable Areas 

• Minimize Street, Sidewalk, and Parking Lot Aisle Widths 

• Minimize Impervious Hardscape Features 

• Maintain Natural Drainage Patterns 

• Incorporate Drought-Tolerant Landscaping 

• Perforated Pipes and Gravel Filtration Areas 

• On-Site Vegetated Swales 

• Convey Runoff to Landscaping/Permeable Areas Prior to Discharge to Storm 

Drains 

• Drain Sidewalks and Walkways to Adjacent Landscape Areas 

• Integration of Landscaping and Drainage Designs 
 
Based on compliance with applicable NPDES requirements, and implementation of the Project 
WQMP to include any additional requirements stipulated by the City and/or SARWQCB, the 
potential for the approved Project to: result in a potential for discharge of storm water pollutants 

Item D - 90 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-40 
 
 
 

 
 

from post-construction activities; otherwise result in any other potential impacts to storm water 
runoff from post-construction activities; or otherwise substantially degrade water quality, was 
determined to be less-than-significant. Based on the preceding discussion, the potential for the 
approved Project to substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including 
through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site, result in 
substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site, create or contribute runoff water which would exceed 
the capacity of the existing or planned storm water drainage systems, or provide substantial 
additional sources of polluted runoff, was determined to be less-than-significant. 
 
The proposed Project will also incorporate all necessary drainage and storm water management 
systems, and will comply with all storm water system design, construction, and operational 
requirements mandated under the City Municipal Code and within regulations established by 
other agencies, such as the SARWQCB and California Department of Water Resources. Similar 
to the approved Project, in combination, the proposed Project’s storm water management 
components, and compliance with regulatory requirements act to preclude potentially adverse 
drainage and storm water runoff impacts. The proposed Project drainage concept will maintain 
the site’s primary drainage patterns, and will implement drainage systems and detention areas to 
accept developed storm water discharges from the Project site and off-site sources. Storm water 
conveyance and detention capabilities will also be required of the proposed Project to ensure that 
post-development storm water runoff volumes and velocities do not exceed pre-development 
conditions. This will be accomplished through the use of natural swales and mechanical detention 
systems that will allow measured storm water releases in a manner that will not increase the 
overall burden downstream. The precise system and detailed design will be developed, and 
approved by the City, at the time each increment of the Project is developed. The detention 
systems will be designed consistent with the recommendations of the required site-specific 
drainage studies. The proposed Project storm water management system will also be developed 
and operated in compliance with City/SARWQCB regulations and water quality standards. The 
proposed Project will provide connection to existing and proposed drainage systems in the least 
invasive manner possible. Design, configuration, and locations of proposed drainage system 
improvements will be reviewed and approved by the City/SARWQCB prior to, or concurrent with, 
application for grading permits. Implementation of the proposed Project storm water management 
system would maintain existing drainage patterns and would not contribute runoff water which 
would exceed the capacity of the existing or planned storm water drainage systems. Further, 
implementation of the proposed Project SWPPP and compliance with applicable NPDES and 
SARWQCB requirements will reduce potential construction-source water quality impacts of the 
proposed Project below levels of significance. Finally, the proposed Project Applicant will be 
responsible for obtaining a General Permit for storm water discharge from the SARWQCB, in 
accordance with the Notice of Intent instructions. Under the General Permit, discharge of 
materials other than storm water is prohibited. In support of the above requirements, the Project 
Applicant shall also develop and implement a Project-specific Water Quality Management Plan 
(WQMP) addressing all post-construction pollutant discharges. 
 
Based on compliance with applicable NPDES requirements, and implementation of the Project 
WQMP to include any additional requirements stipulated by the City and/or SARWQCB, the 
potential for the proposed Project to: result in a potential for discharge of storm water pollutants 
from post-construction activities; otherwise result in any other potential impacts to storm water 
runoff from post-construction activities; or otherwise substantially degrade water quality, will 
remain less-than-significant. Based on the preceding discussion, the potential for the proposed  

Item D - 91 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-41 
 
 
 

 
 

Project to substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of surface 
runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site, result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or off-site, create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of the 
existing or planned storm water drainage systems, or provide substantial additional sources of 
polluted runoff, will remain less-than-significant. With the capacity exchange, overall impacts 
would be similar to those analyzed in the MICSPA EIR. 
 
In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release pf pollutants due to project 
inundation.  As previously mentioned, the westerly portion of the Project site is located within the 
dam inundation area for San Antonio Dam. Catastrophic failure of the San Antonio Dam when it 
is at or near capacity could spread water two to four feet deep over the western and central parts 
of the City. The Draft EIR prepared for The Ontario Plan concluded that the probability of 
catastrophic failure is very low. Furthermore, the City of Ontario Fire Department maintains a list 
of emergency procedures to be followed in the event of a failure. Because the likelihood of 
catastrophic failure of the San Antonio Dam is very low and the City is prepared in the event of 
such failure, impacts were determined to be less-than-significant for the approved Project. This 
determination holds for the proposed Project and impacts will remain less than significant. 
 
3.9 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 
 
The relationships of the proposed P.A. 2 capacity exchange to the previously certified MICSPA 
EIR biological resources impact and mitigation conclusions are described below. 
 
Substantial Effects on Special-Status Species and Sensitive Natural Communities. The 
certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact would be potentially significant with respect to 
two sensitive species, the California horned lark and the burrowing owl, unless mitigation is 
provided.   
 
The EIR also indicated the onsite drainage may be subject to the jurisdiction of the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers 404 program and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife 1600 
program; consequently, consultation with these agencies is required to confirm this conclusion. 
As such, permitting may be required through these agencies, as well as the California Regional 
Water Quality Control Board; however, this issue is unlikely to affect P.A. 2 as the only ephemeral 
natural drainage identified within the MICSPA is near the eastern boundary of the specific plan 
near Archibald Avenue. 
 
In order to address potential impacts to the California horned lark and the burrowing owl, the 
MICSPA EIR imposes mitigation measures 4.9.1 through 4.9.4 which provide for pre-construction 
surveys, methods for avoiding nesting birds and, if burrowing owls are found, relocation and site-
specific mitigation plans to offset potential impacts. The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 
would not result in any additional impacts beyond those evaluated in the MICSPA EIR as it would 
still be subject to the mitigation measures in the MICSPA EIR.  With the capacity exchange, 
this impact would remain less- than-significant with mitigation. 
 
Substantial Adverse Effect on Riparian Habitat or Other Sensitive Natural Communities.  
The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with 
respect to this issue and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. The Initial Study indicated 
that the project site is not in a sensitive biological area, does not contain riparian habitat or other 

Item D - 92 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-42 
 
 
 

 
 

sensitive natural community. The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any 
additional impacts beyond those evaluated in the Initial Study.  With the capacity exchange, 
there would still be no impact. 
 
Substantial Adverse Effect on Federally Protected Wetlands. The Initial Study prepared for 
the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect to this issue and no 
additional analysis was included in the EIR. The Initial Study indicated that the MICSPA and 
surrounding areas do not contain federally protected wetlands. The revised proposed project 
within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts beyond those evaluated in the Initial Study.  
With the capacity exchange, this impact would remain less- than-significant. 
 
Interfere Substantially With the Movement of Native Resident or Migratory Fish or Wildlife 
Species, Migratory Corridors or Wildlife Nursery Sites. The Initial Study prepared for the 
MICSPA EIR determined that there would be a less than significant impact with respect to this 
issue and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. The Initial Study indicated that due to 
the disturbed nature of the MICSPA project site and surrounding roadways and development, the 
potential for native wildlife species to use the project site as a migratory corridor or nursery site is 
unlikely. The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts 
beyond those evaluated in the Initial Study.  With the capacity exchange, this impact would 
remain less than significant. 
 
Conflict With Local Policies or Ordinances Protection Biological Resources.  The Initial 
Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect to 
this issue and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. The Initial Study indicated that the 
City of Ontario does not have any ordinances protecting biological resources. The revised 
proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts beyond those evaluated 
in the Initial Study.  With the capacity exchange, there would still be no impact. 
 
Conflict With an Adopted Habitat Conservation Plan or Natural Community Conservation 
Plan.  The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact 
with respect to this issue and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. The Initial Study 
indicated that the project is not part of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional or state habitat conservation plan. The 
revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts beyond those 
evaluated in the Initial Study.  With the capacity exchange, there would still be no impact. 
 
3.10 GEOLOGY AND SOILS 
 
Expose people or structures to potentially substantial adverse effects, including the risk 
of loss, injury or death involving seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction; or 
be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the Project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse. The MICSPA EIR noted that the approved Project 
Geotechnical Investigation concluded that that site is not subject to significant ground rupture, 
liquefaction, lateral spreading, or landslide hazards. However, the near-surface native soils vary 
in density and composition, and laboratory testing indicates that some of the near surface soils 
may be collapsible and subject to minor consolidation under the anticipated loads. Based on their 
variable strengths and densities, these soils could result in excessive post-construction 
settlement. This was determined to be a potentially significant impact. 

Item D - 93 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-43 
 
 
 

 
 

 
The Geotechnical Study prepared for the approved Project is considered preliminary since precise 
development and grading plans were not yet available. The study recommends remedial grading 
to remove the upper portion of the alluvial soils, and states that the underlying soils are of higher 
strength. Following excavation, the subgrade soils should be evaluated by a geotechnical 
engineer to verify their suitability. These on-site conditions and recommendations will be verified 
within a Final Geotechnical Study, typically prepared when specific development plans are 
prepared. The approved Project was required to conform to all recommendations presented within 
the Final study, as required by mitigation measure 4.10.1. With mitigation incorporated, the 
MICSPA EIR determined that this impact would be less than significant. 
 
The proposed Project will also be subject to the same risks associated with excessive post-
construction settlement. However, with incorporation of mitigation measure 4.10.1, these risks will 
be reduced to less than significant. No new significant impacts have been identified with the 
proposed Project. 
 
Mitigation:  
 

MM 4.10.1 Design and development of the Project shall comply with 
recommendations and performance standards identified within the Final 
Geotechnical Study. Where the Project Geotechnical Study is silent, 
requirements of the California Building Code as adopted and 
implemented by the City shall prevail. 

 
Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 
(1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property. As discussed in the 
MICSPA EIR, the California Building Code establishes methodologies and guidelines for 
identification of expansive soils, and establishes responsive design standards which act to avoid 
potentially adverse effects of expansive soils on facilities. Section 1802.3 of the 2010 California 
Building Code directs expansive soil tendency be graded by its Expansion Index. A soil’s 
Expansion Index is defined by its potential to swell when wet or saturated. The CBC mandates 
that “special [foundation] design consideration” be employed if the Expansion Index is 20, or 
greater. 
 
Unmitigated effects of expansive or otherwise unstable soils may adversely affect roadway 
subgrades, concrete slabs-on-grade, and building foundations. It was determined that in the event 
of a severe earthquake in the vicinity of the Project, structural foundations and floors may be 
damaged if constructed in, or over, expansive or unstable soils. 
 
It was also determined that the near-surface sediments in the northern and central parts of the 
City (where the Project site is located) are composed primarily of granular soils, which are usually 
non-expansive or have very low expansion potential. Additionally, as discussed in the Project 
Geotechnical Study . . . “Laboratory testing performed on a representative sample of the near 
surface soils indicates that these materials possess very low expansion potential (EI = 0). Based 
on these test results, no design considerations related to expansive soils are considered 
warranted for this site.” 
 
It is also noted in the MICSPA EIR that, as a matter of course, a final geotechnical study will be 
prepared for the site to verify all conclusions made within the preliminary study. The proposed 

Item D - 94 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-44 
 
 
 

 
 

Project would also be required to prepare a final geotechnical study and be required to comply 
with all recommendations presented within the final study. 
 
As supported by the preceding discussion, the potential for the proposed Project to be located on 
expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the California Building Code (2010)6 is considered 
less-than-significant.   
 
3.11 CULTURAL RESOURCES 
 
The relationships of Planning Area 2 changes to the previously certified MICSPA EIR cultural and 
historic resources impact and mitigation conclusions are described below. 
 
Impacts on Historical and Archaeological Resources. The certified MICSPA EIR determined 
that this impact would be less-than-significant. The EIR indicates that the project site is clear of 
any significant historical or archaeological resources, that the potential to for identifying prehistoric 
or historic archaeological resources is very low.  Despite the determination in the EIR that impacts 
would be less than significant Mitigation Measures 4.11.1 through 4.11.7 (See Table 1.1 for the 
text of the Mitigation Measures) have been incorporated into the EIR.  The mitigation measures 
address grading monitoring, coordination with affected tribes, and procedures related to the 
discovery, evaluation and disposition of artifacts that are found to fully ensure the protection of 
cultural resources that may be present.   
 
The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts beyond 
those evaluated in the MICSPA EIR as it would still be subject to the mitigation measures in the 
MICSPA EIR.  With the capacity exchange, this impact would remain less- than-significant 
with existing mitigation. 
 
Impacts on Paleontological Resources.   The certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact 
would be less-than-significant with mitigation (See Table 1-1 to review mitigation measures). The 
EIR indicated that no evidence of paleontological resources was identified during the cultural 
resources survey of the site and none was expected in the younger alluvial deposits. However, 
the potential for evidence of fossil-bearing soils is still possible, depending on the nature of the 
project related excavations and site preparation. If older alluvial deposits are encountered, there 
is a potential for the identification of fossil specimens and the area(s) should be considered 
sensitive for such resources. In order to address this potential impact, Mitigation Measure 4.11.8 
has been imposed by the EIR to require monitoring of grading and excavation activities in older 
alluvial deposits, including any excavation that exceeds eight feet in depth.  
 
With implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.11.8 impacts would be less than significant. The 
revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts beyond those 
already evaluated in the MICSPA EIR as it would still be subject to the Cultural Resources 
mitigation measure (4.11.8) in the MICSPA EIR.  With the capacity exchange, this impact 
would remain less than significant with mitigation. 
 
Disturbance of Human Remains.  The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined 
that there would be a less than significant impact with respect to this issue and no additional 
analysis was included in the EIR. The Initial Study indicated that the likelihood of encountering 
human remains in the course of Developing the MICSP is minimal. The revised proposed project 
within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts beyond those evaluated in the Initial Study.  

Item D - 95 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-45 
 
 
 

 
 

With the capacity exchange, there would still be no impact. 
 
3.12 AESTHETICS 
 
The relationships of the Planning Area 2 changes to the previously certified MICSPA EIR 
aesthetics and shadows impact and mitigation conclusions are described below. 
 
Impacts on Scenic Vistas.  As discussed in the MICSPA EIR, prior to the issuance of 
development permits, plans for individual projects within the Specific Plan Area would be reviewed 
by the City to ensure conformance with provisions of the Meredith SPA, the City Development 
Code, and Policy Plan Goals and Policies; thereby ensuring that the Project and the proposed 
changes Planning Area 2, as developed, would not substantially degrade the existing visual 
character or quality of the site and its surroundings.  With P.A. 2 changes, this impact would 
remain less then significant.  No Designated scenic vista exists in the City.  With the capacity 
exchange this impact would remain less than significant. 
 
Substantial Damage to Scenic Resources Within a State Scenic Highway.  The Initial Study 
prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect to this issue 
and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. There are no State scenic highways that are 
visible from the project site. Therefore, there can be no impacts for this issue associated with the 
P.A. 2 changes.  With the capacity exchange there would still be no impact. 
 
Impacts/Degradation of Visual Character. The MICSPA EIR determined that impacts would be 
less than significant. The MICSPA would implement an integrated and cohesive mixed-use 
development. The plan includes an array of design guidelines to ensure that development is 
visually attractive and does not degrade the visual character of the project site or its surroundings. 
These design guidelines address building form and materials, colors and textures, landscaping, 
and building massing and screening. The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result 
in any additional impacts beyond those evaluated in the MICSPA EIR. With the P.A. 2 changes, 
this impact would remain less than significant. 
 
Light and Glare Impacts. The certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact would be less- 
than-significant. The Planning Area 2 changes would be directed under the zoning and design 
requirements of the MICSPA.   With the Planning Area 2 changes, this impact would remain 
less-than-significant. 
 
3.13 POPULATION AND HOUSING 
 
The relationships of the Planning Area 2 changes to the previously certified MICSPA EIR 
population and housing impact and mitigation conclusions are described below. 
 
Induce Substantial Population Growth. The certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact 
would be less than significant. The EIR indicates that the Industrial, commercial/retail, and 
residential development, and supporting infrastructure improvements described in the Meredith 
International Centre Specific Plan Amendment would accommodate anticipated population 
growth within the City and region. In this regard, the MICSPA is not considered growth-inducing, 
but rather is a response to current and anticipated demands for industrial, commercial/retail, and 
residential products that would act to further, and would not conflict with, the Policy Plan Vision 
(General Plan) and associated growth projections for the City and the subject site.  

Item D - 96 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-46 
 
 
 

 
 

 
The proposed change to P.A. 2 reduces the estimated buildout from 650,000 square feet to 
322,200 square feet of non-residential floor area and would add another 925 multi-family 
dwellings for a total of 1,725 dwellings (including 800 dwellings in Planning Area 4).  Although the 
proposed change would increase dwellings and associated population, according to the MICSPA 
EIR the total of 1,725 dwellings would be well below the 2,958 residential units assumed in the 
Policy Plan (General Plan) buildout. Therefore, the increase in residential units would be 
consistent with Citywide policy and growth projections and potential impacts from the P.A. 2 
changes will be less than significant, and similar to the adopted MICSPA. With the capacity 
exchange this impact would remain less than significant. 
 
Displacement of Housing and People. The certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact 
would be less-than-significant. The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that 
there would be no impact with respect to this issue and no additional analysis was included in the 
EIR. There is no existing housing or persons residing within the MICSP. The proposed capacity 
exchange includes no changes or new conditions that would alter this fact. With the capacity 
exchange, this impact would remain less-than-significant. 
 
 
3.14 OTHER CEQA CHECKLIST AREAS NOT EVALUATED IN THE MICSPA EIR 
 
This section discusses CEQA “appendix G” Checklist topical areas that were either completely 
screened out for further review in the MICSPA EIR based on findings of the Initial Study prepared 
for the EIR or were included as part of the State CEQA Checklist after the certification of the 
MICSPA EIR. 
 

(b) 3.14.1 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY 
 
The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with 
respect to any of the issue areas under the topic of Agriculture and Forestry and no additional 
analysis was included in the EIR. The MICSPA site does not include any land classified as 
farmland, there are no agriculture or timber operations on the project site nor is there any land 
within or adjacent to the project site that is zoned for agricultural or timber production uses. None 
of the project site is subject to a Williamson Act Land Conservation Contract. The revised 
proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts beyond those evaluated 
in the Initial Study. With the capacity exchange, there would still be no impact. 
 

(c) 3.14.2 ENERGY 
 
The State CEQA Guidelines were revised at the beginning of 2019 and included the addition of 
Energy Question in the “Appendix G:” Environmental Checklist. Two questions were included. 
 
Would the project result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, 
inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy sources, during project construction 
or operation? 
 
Would the project conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or 
energy efficiency? 
 

Item D - 97 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-47 
 
 
 

 
 

Although these CEQA checklist questions did not exist when the MICSPA EIR was certified in 
2015, energy use was evaluated extensively in the EIR (See Section 5-6 starting on page 5-103). 
Based on this analysis, the MICSPA EIR determined that construction and operations for 
development within the MICSPA would not result in the inefficient, wasteful or unnecessary 
consumption of energy, and potential project impacts in these regards are less-than-significant. 
Mitigation Measure 4.3.4 also requires all development projects to achieve a minimum 5% 
increase in energy efficiencies beyond incumbent California Building Code Title 24 performance 
standards. The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 will also comply with the requirements of 
the City’s Climate Action Plan (CAP).  Compliance with the CAP will be achieved through the 
implementation of an array of project design features that will conserve or reduce energy use, 
(i.e. improved insulation, water use reduction, use of recycled water, solar energy, etc.).  
 

(d) 3.14.3 MINERAL RESOURCES 
 
The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would less than significant 
impacts with respect to any of the issue areas under the topic of Mineral Resources and no 
additional analysis was included in the EIR.  
 
Analysis in the Initial Study indicated that there are two (2) areas in the entire City that are 
designated by the California Geological Survey as Resource Sectors containing construction 
aggregate of “regional significance.” These are the Deer and Day Fans Resource Sector and the 
Day Creek Fan, Mira Loma Area Resource Sector. The MICSPA is located within the Deer and 
Day Fans Resource Sector, D-14. The Initial Study reference the EIR for The Ontario Plan (Page 
5.11-6) which indicates that Resource Sector D-14, (approximately 268 acres) is vacant but it is 
entirely surrounded by residential, commercial, and industrial uses. Therefore, the use of 
Resource Sector D-14 for mineral extraction is likely to be infeasible because of adjacent 
residential uses. 
 
The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts beyond 
those evaluated in the Initial Study.   
 

(e) 3.14.4 RECREATION 
 
The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would less than significant 
impact with respect to any of the issue areas under the topic of Recreation and no additional 
analysis was included in the EIR. Issues considered under this topic include potential increase in 
the use of parks or other recreational facilities that would lead to the deterioration of such facilities 
or require the construction or expansion of other facilities. 
 
Analysis in the Initial Study indicates that all new residential development is required to participate 
in the City’s established Park Development Impact Fee program, which was established pursuant 
to the Quimby Act (Government Code Section 66477). The City currently requires five (5) acres 
of developed parkland per 1,000 residents. As part of the City’s standard development review 
process, the total area of the MICSPA parkland dedication will be determined upon submittal of 
development plans and an in-lieu fee will be assessed and paid by project applicants prior to the 
issuance of occupancy permits. 
 
Additionally, private open space/recreation amenities are required as part of multi-family 
development proposals. As such, a portion of the proposed apartment project’s recreational 

Item D - 98 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-48 
 
 
 

 
 

demands will be met by these on-site amenities. 
 
Since the revised proposed project within P.A. 2 will be required to pay park fees or provide In-
lieu land dedications, and will be required to provide private open space/recreation amenities, 
potential Recreation impacts would be offset and there  would not be any additional impacts 
beyond those evaluated in the Initial Study. 
 

(f) 3.14.5 TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 
 
The State CEQA Guidelines were revised in 2016 and included the addition of Tribal Cultural 
Resources in the “Appendix G:” Environmental Checklist which addresses whether a project 
would: 
 
Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in 
Public Resources Code § 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is 
geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object 
with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is: 
 

i) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local 
register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section5020.1(k), or 

ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial 
evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resources Code § 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resource Code § 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource 
to a California Native American tribe. 

 
Although some of the aspects of these questions are similar to those addressed under the Cultural 
Resources topic, these questions focus directly on Native American cultural resources. The 
analysis provided in the Cultural Resources section of the MICSPA EIR did not identify any 
historical or archaeological resources including Native American Resources. In addition, no 
comments were received from Native American tribes on the Draft EIR when it was circulated for 
public review.   
 
The MICSPA does include a suite of Cultural Resource Mitigation Measures to address Native 
American resources (see Mitigation Measures 4.11 through 4.17 in Table 1-1). These measures 
include requirements for Native American monitors during excavation/grading, procedures for 
halting work if artifacts are found, and provisions for notification/consultation with affected tribes 
regarding the recovery, treatment and disposition of artifacts.   
 

(g) 3.14.6 WILDFIRE  
 
The State CEQA Guidelines were revised at the beginning of 2019 and included the addition of a 
new topic to address Wildfire in the “Appendix G:” Environmental Checklist. This new topic 
contains four questions that address various issues related to Wildfire risk such as evacuation 
routes and procedures, exposure to conditions conducive to wildfires and potential exposure to 
post fire risks due to flooding, mudslides or landslides. Analysis of these conditions are only 
required for a project that is near or within State Responsibility Areas or areas or lands classified 
as very high fire hazard severity zones; since the MICSPA is surrounded by developed and does 
not meet any of these conditions this item does not apply to the proposed P.A. 2 project.  

Item D - 99 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                         City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                 Page 3-49 
 
 
 

 
 

 
(h) 3.14.7 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS 

 
Cumulative impacts refer to two or more individual effects which, when considered together, are 
considerable or which compound or increase other environmental impacts” (CEQA Guidelines 
section 15355). 
 
Cumulative impacts on transportation and circulation are discussed separately in section 3.6 
above because cumulative conditions are evaluated within the sequence of quantitative traffic 
modeling. In addition, the certified MICSPA EIR determined that cumulative impacts related to 
the following environmental topics would be less-than-significant: 
 

• land use and planning 

• traffic and circulation 

• air quality’ 

• global climate change and greenhouse gas emissions 

• population and housing 

• public services and utilities 

• hydrology and water quality 

• biological resources 

• cultural resources 

• aesthetics  

• population and housing 
 
Consistent with potential “project” impacts resulting from the MICSP itself, the MICSPA EIR 
determined that cumulative impacts related to the following topics (except transportation and 
circulation; see section 3.6) would be significant and unavoidable: 
 

• Construction-source emissions of VOC, NOx, and CO would exceed applicable SCAQMD 
regional thresholds.  

• Operational-source VOC, NOx, PM10, and PM2.5 emissions would exceed applicable 
SCAQMD regional thresholds. 

• Project-vehicular-source noise contributions to ambient noise conditions along certain 
Study Area roadway segments would be individually significant and cumulatively 
considerable. 

 
As concluded by the MICSPA EIR, none of the cumulative impacts required mitigations beyond 
those already identified for MICSP-specific impacts. 
 
Conclusion. As evidenced by the analyses in this Addendum, the proposed Planning Area 
2 change would not change any of the cumulative impact conclusions, and no new 
mitigation is required. 

Item D - 100 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-50 
 
 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS AND MITIGATION 
The impacts and mitigation measures shown in Table 3-5, below, were taken directly and verbatim from the original MICSPA EIR and 
is provided in this documents for ease of reference.  
 

Table 3-5 
Summary of Impacts and Mitigation 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 

4.1 Land Use Planning 
Physically divide an established 
community or result in land use 
incompatibilities. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Conflict with any applicable land use 
plan, policy, or regulation of an agency 
with jurisdiction over the Project 
(including, but not limited to the general 
plan, specific plan, local coastal 
program, or zoning ordinance) adopted 
for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 
 

4.2 Traffic and Circulation 
Conflict with an applicable plan, 
ordinance or policy establishing 
measures of effectiveness for the 
performance of the circulation system, 
taking into account all modes of 
transportation including mass transit 
and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system, 
including but not limited to 
intersections, streets, highways and 
freeways, pedestrian and bicycle 
paths, and mass transit. 

Potentially Significant 
at Study  Area 
intersections. 

4.2.1 
• Prior to the issuance of building permits, 

the Project Applicant shall pay requisite 
fees toward the construction of the 
improvements summarized at Table 4.2-
21 at the intersection of: I-10 EB Ramp 
at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 
14); 

 
• Prior to the issuance of the first 

Certificate of Occupancy for the Project, 
the Project Applicant shall construct the 
improvements summarized at Table 4.2-
21 at the intersection of: Haven Avenue 

Less-Than-Significant Impacts. 
The Project Applicant would timely 
construct required improvements at 
Haven Avenue at Inland Empire 
Boulevard (Study Area Intersection 
30), reducing impacts to levels that 
are less-than-significant.  
 
Significant and Unavoidable 
Impacts.  
The Project would pay requisite 
fees toward mitigation of potentially 
significant cumulative traffic 
impacts, thereby fulfilling the 
Project’s mitigation requirements. 

Item D - 101 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-51 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
at Inland Empire Boulevard (Study Area 
Intersection 30; 

 
4.2.2 Prior to the issuance of building permits, 

the Project Applicant shall pay requisite 
fees toward the construction of Year 
2017 improvements as summarized at 
Table 4.2-21 at the intersections of:   
• Archibald Avenue at Arrow Route 

(Study Area Intersection 2); 
• I-10 EB Ramp at 4th Street (Study 

Area Intersection 14); and 
• Haven Avenue at 4th Street (Study 

Area Intersection 25). 
 

4.2.3 Prior to the issuance of building permits, 
the Project Applicant shall pay requisite 
fees toward the construction of Year 
required 2020 improvements as 
summarized at Table 4.2-21 at the 
intersections of: 
• Archibald Avenue at Arrow Route 

(Study Area Intersection 2); 
• I-10 EB Ramp at 4th Street (Study 

Area Intersection 14); 
• Archibald Avenue at 4th Street 

(Study Area Intersection 23) 
• Haven Avenue at 4th Street (Study 

Area Intersection 25); 
• Archibald Avenue at Inland Empire 

Boulevard (Study Area Intersection 
28); and 

Notwithstanding,  due to 
jurisdictional limitations and/or 
right(s)-of-way constraints. Project 
traffic impacts at the following  Area 
Study intersections are considered 
cumulatively significant and 
unavoidable under at least one of 
the TIA analysis scenarios (Existing 
Conditions, Year 2017 Conditions, 
Year 2020 Conditions, and/or Year 
2035 Conditions): 

• Archibald Avenue at Arrow 
Route (Study Area 
Intersection 2); 

• Baker Avenue at 8th Street 
(Study Area Intersection 3); 

• Hellman Avenue at 6th 
Street (Study Area 
Intersection 9); 

• Haven Avenue at 6th Street 
(Study Area Intersection 
12); 

• I-10 EB Ramp at 4th Street 
(Study Area Intersection 
14);6 

• Vineyard Avenue at 4th 
Street (Study Area 
Intersection 20); 

• Archibald Avenue at 4th 
Street (Study Area 
Intersection 23); 

 
6 Significant impacts at I-10 EB Ramp at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 14) under the “Existing Plus Project” analytic scenario are considered       
Project-specific. 

Item D - 102 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-52 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
• Vineyard Avenue at I-10 EB Ramps 

(Study Area Intersection 32) 
 

4.2.4  Prior to the issuance of building permits, 
the Project Applicant shall pay requisite 
fees  toward the construction of Year 
2035 improvements as summarized at 
Table 4.2-24 at the  intersections of:   

• Archibald Avenue at Arrow Route 
(Study Area Intersection 2); 

• Baker Avenue at 8th Street (Study 
Area Intersection 3); 

• Hellman Avenue at 6th Street 
(Study Area Intersection 9); 

• Haven Avenue at 6th Street 
(Study Area Intersection 12); 

• Vineyard Avenue at 4th Street 
(Study Area Intersection 20); 

• Archibald Avenue at 4th Street 
(Study Area Intersection 23); 

• Haven Avenue at 4th Street 
(Study Area Intersection 25); and 

• Archibald Avenue at Inland 
Empire Boulevard (Study Area 
Intersection 28) 

 
4.2.5 Prior to the issuance of building permits, 

the Project applicant shall participate in 
the City’s DIF program and in addition 
shall pay the Project’s fair share for the 
improvements identified at Mitigation 
Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 in the 
amount(s) agreed to by the City and 
Project Applicant. The City shall ensure 
that the improvements specified at 
Mitigation Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 

• Haven Avenue at 4th Street 
(Study Area Intersection 
25); 

• Archibald Avenue at Inland 
Empire Boulevard (Study 
Area Intersection 28); and 

• Vineyard Avenue at I-10 EB 
Ramps (Study Area 
Intersection 32). 

Item D - 103 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-53 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
which are under the City of Ontario 
jurisdiction be  constructed pursuant to 
the fee program at that point in time 
necessary to avoid identified potentially 
significant impacts. 

4.2.6 Certain of the improvements identified at 
Mitigation Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 
are proposed for intersections that 
either share a mutual border with the 
City of Rancho Cucamonga or are 
wholly located within the City of Rancho 
Cucamonga. Because the City of 
Ontario does not have plenary control 
over intersections that share a border 
with the City of Rancho Cucamonga or 
are wholly located within the City of 
Rancho Cucamonga, the City of Ontario 
cannot guarantee that such 
improvements will be constructed. Thus, 
the following additional mitigation is 
required: The City of Ontario shall 
participate in a multi-jurisdictional effort 
with the City of Rancho Cucamonga to 
develop a study to identify fair share 
contribution funding sources attributable 
to and paid from private and public 
development to supplement other 
regional and State funding sources 
necessary to implement the 
improvements identified at Mitigation 
Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 that are 
located in the City of Rancho 
Cucamonga. The study shall include 
fair-share contributions related to 
private and or public development 
based on nexus requirements contained 

Item D - 104 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-54 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
in the Mitigation Fee Act (Govt. Code § 
66000 et seq.) and 14 Cal. Code of 
Regs. §15126.4(a)(4) and, to this end, 
the study shall recognize that impacts 
attributable to City of Rancho 
Cucamonga facilities that are not 
attributable to development located 
within the City of Ontario are not paying 
in excess of such developments’ fair 
share obligations. The fee study shall 
also be compliant with Government 
Code § 66001(g) and any other 
applicable provisions of law. The study 
shall set forth a timeline and other 
agreed-upon relevant criteria for 
implementation of the recommendations 
contained within the study to the extent 
the other agencies agree to participate 
in the fee study program. Because the 
City of Ontario and the City of Rancho 
Cucamonga are responsible to 
implement this mitigation measure, the 
Project Applicant shall have no 
compliance obligations with respect to 
this Mitigation Measure. 

 
4.2.7 Fair-share amount(s) agreed to by the 

City and Project Applicant for non-DIF 
improvements at intersections that 
share a mutual border with the City of 
Rancho Cucamonga, or are wholly 
located within the City of Rancho 
Cucamonga, shall be paid by the 
Applicant to the City of Ontario prior to 
the issuance of the Project's final 
certificate of occupancy. The City of 

Item D - 105 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-55 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
Ontario shall hold the Project 
Applicant’s Fair Share Contribution in 
trust and shall apply the Project 
Applicant’s Fair Share Contribution to 
any fee program adopted or agreed 
upon by the City of Ontario and the City 
of Rancho Cucamonga as a result of 
implementation of Mitigation Measure 
4.2.6. If, within five (5) years of the date 
of collection of the Project Applicant’s 
Fair Share Contribution the City of 
Ontario and the City of Rancho 
Cucamonga do not comply with 
Mitigation Measure 4.2.6, then the 
Project Applicant’s Fair Share 
Contribution shall be returned to the 
Project Applicant. 

 
4.2.8 Certain of the improvements identified at 

Mitigation Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 
are proposed for intersections under 
shared City of Ontario/Caltrans 
jurisdiction. Because the City of Ontario 
does not have plenary control over 
intersections under shared City of 
Ontario/Caltrans jurisdiction, the City of 
Ontario cannot guarantee that such 
improvements will be constructed. Thus, 
the following additional mitigation is 
required: The City of Ontario shall 
participate in a multi-jurisdictional effort 
with Caltrans to develop a study to 
identify fair share contribution funding 
sources attributable to and paid from 
private and public development to 
supplement other regional and State 

Item D - 106 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-56 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
funding sources necessary to implement 
the improvements identified at Mitigation 
Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 that are 
under shared City of Ontario/Caltrans 
jurisdiction. The study shall include fair-
share contributions related to private and 
or public development based on nexus 
requirements contained in the Mitigation 
Fee Act (Govt. Code § 66000 et seq.) and 
14 Cal. Code of Regs. §15126.4(a)(4) 
and, to this end, the study shall recognize 
that impacts attributable to Caltrans 
facilities that are not attributable to 
development located within the City of 
Ontario are not paying in excess of such 
developments’ fair share obligations. The 
fee study shall also be compliant with 
Government Code § 66001(g) and any 
other applicable provisions of law. The 
study shall set forth a timeline and other 
agreed-upon relevant criteria for 
implementation of the recommendations 
contained within the study to the extent 
the other agencies agree to participate in 
the fee study program. Because the City 
of Ontario and Caltrans are responsible 
to implement this mitigation measure, the 
Project Applicant shall have no 
compliance obligations with respect to 
this Mitigation Measure.   

 
4.2.9 Fair-share amount(s) agreed to by the 

City and Project Applicant for non-DIF 
improvements at intersections that are 
under City of Ontario/Caltrans 
jurisdiction, shall be paid by the Applicant 

Item D - 107 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-57 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
to the City of Ontario prior to the issuance 
of the Project's final certificate of 
occupancy. The City of Ontario shall hold 
the Project Applicant’s Fair Share 
Contribution in trust and shall apply the 
Project Applicant’s Fair Share 
Contribution to any fee program adopted 
or agreed upon by the City of Ontario and 
Caltrans as a result of implementation of 
Mitigation Measure 4.2.8. If, within five 
(5) years of the date of collection of the 
Project Applicant’s Fair Share 
Contribution the City of Ontario and 
Caltrans do not comply with Mitigation 
Measure 4.2.8, then the Project 
Applicant’s Fair Share Contribution shall 
be returned to the Project Applicant. 

 

Potentially Significant 
at Study Area freeway 
facilities. 

Mitigation of freeway facilities impacts is 
addressed through regional improvements 
plans and programs. Germane to the Project, 
1-10 Corridor Project and I-15 Corridor Project 
and Comprehensive Corridor Study would, 
when implemented, act to improve regional 
freeway operations, including freeways serving 
the Project. However, all freeway facilities 
within the Study Area are under Caltrans 
jurisdiction, and there is no mechanism by 
which the Lead Agency (City of Ontario) or the 
Project Applicant can autonomously construct, 
or guarantee the construction of, any 
improvements to these freeways segments. 
Traditional funding mechanisms used to 
improve the freeway mainline include San 

Significant and Unavoidable. 
Project traffic would contribute to 
cumulatively significant impacts 
affecting at analyzed freeway 
facilities within the Study Area. 
There are no feasible means for the 
Project Applicant or the City of 
Ontario to mitigate cumulatively 
significant freeway facilities 
impacts, and these impacts are 
accordingly recognized as 
cumulatively significant and 
unavoidable. 7 

 
7 Under Existing Plus Project Conditions (Project Buildout) Project-specific traffic contributions to eastbound 1-10 between Milliken Avenue and I-15 (Study Area 
freeway segment No. 21) would be considered significant. 

Item D - 108 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-58 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
Bernardino County’s Measure “I” retail sales 
tax revenue for transportation, state and 
federal gas tax, and formula distributions from 
vehicle registration fees. Future 
employees/patrons of the project contribute 
indirectly to freeway improvements through 
these sources. State Highway improvements 
are programmed pursuant to the State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).   

Conflict with an applicable congestion 
management program, including, but 
not limited to level of service standards 
and travel demand measures, or other 
standards established by the county 
congestion management agency for 
designated roads or highways. 

Potentially Significant. Please refer to Mitigation Measures 4.2.1 
through 4.2.9. 

Significant and Unavoidable. 
The Project would pay all requisite 
fees for improvements at Study 
Area CMP facilities. However, 
based on jurisdictional constraints 
and/or right(s) of way limitations, 
timely completion of improvements 
required for mitigation of 
cumulatively significant impacts at 
CMP facilities within the Study Area 
cannot be assured. Pending 
completion of required 
improvements, Project 
contributions to impacts affecting 
Study Area CMP facilities are 
therefore considered cumulatively 
considerable. 

Substantially increase hazards to a 
design feature (e.g., sharp curves or 
dangerous intersections) or 
incompatible uses (e.g., farm 
equipment); or result in inadequate 
emergency access. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Result in a change in air traffic 
patterns, including either an increase in 
traffic levels or a change in location 
that results in substantial safety risks. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Item D - 109 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-59 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
 
 
 
4.3 Air Quality 
Conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of the applicable air 
quality plan. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary.  Not applicable. 

Violate any air quality standard or 
contribute substantially to an existing 
or projected air quality violation. 

Potentially Significant. 4.3.1 The following requirements shall be 
incorporated into Project plans and 
specifications in order to ensure 
implementation of SCAQMD Rule 403 
and limit fugitive dust emissions: 
• All clearing, grading, earth-moving, 

or excavation activities shall cease 
when winds exceed 25 miles per 
hour; 

• The contractor shall ensure that all 
disturbed unpaved roads and 
disturbed areas within the Project 
site are watered at least three (3) 
times daily during dry weather. 
Watering, with complete coverage of 
disturbed areas, shall occur at least 
three times a day, preferably in the 
mid-morning, afternoon, and after 
work is done for the day; 

• The contractor shall ensure that 
traffic speeds on unpaved roads and 
Project site areas are reduced to 15 
miles per hour or less; and 

Significant and Unavoidable.  
Even with the application of 
mitigation, the following impacts 
would remain significant: 

• Project construction-source 
emissions would exceed 
applicable SCAQMD 
regional thresholds for VOC, 
NOx, and CO. 

• Under 2017 conditions, 
Project operational-source 
VOC, NOx, CO, PM10, and 
PM2.5 emissions would 
exceed applicable regional 
thresholds.9 

•   Under 2020 conditions, 
Project operational-source 
VOC, NOx, CO, PM10, and 
PM2.5 emissions would 
exceed applicable regional 
thresholds. 

 
9 Under 2017 Interim Development Conditions, the Project AQIA indicates the operational-source PM 2.5 emissions would not exceed SCAQMD regional thresholds. 
If employing the Draft Warehouse Truck Trip Study protocols and assumptions, there would be a PM 2.5 emissions regional threshold exceedance under 2017 
Interim Development Conditions. Conservatively, and as a matter of public disclosure, operational-source PM 2.5 emissions are recognized as significant and 
unavoidable under 2017 Interim Development Conditions. Please refer also to the supplemental air quality analyses presented at EIR Appendix D.   

Item D - 110 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-60 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
• Only “Zero-Volatile Organic 

Compounds” paints (no more than 
150 gram/liter of VOC) and/or High 
Pressure Low Volume (HPLV) 
applications consistent with South 
Coast Air Quality Management 
District Rule 1113 shall be used. 

 
4.3.2 Grading plans shall reference the 

requirement that a sign shall be posted 
on-site stating that construction 
workers need to shut off engines at or 
before five minutes of idling. 

 
4.3.3  During grading activity, all rubber tired 

dozers and scrapers (≥ 150 
horsepower) shall be CARB Tier 3 
Certified or better. Additionally, during 
grading activity, total horsepower-
hours per day for all equipment shall 
not exceed 149,840; and the maximum 
(actively graded) disturbance area 
shall not exceed 26 acres per day. 

4.3.4   Prior to the issuance of building permits, 
the Project Applicant shall submit 
energy demand calculations to the City  
(Planning and Building Departments) 
demonstrating that the increment of the 
Project for which building permits are 
being requested would achieve a 
minimum 5% increase in energy 
efficiencies beyond incumbent 
California Building Code Title 24 
performance standards. 
Representative energy 
efficiency/energy conservation 

Item D - 111 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-61 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
measures to be incorporated in the 
Project would include, but would not be 
limited to, those listed below (it being 
understood that the items listed below 
are not all required and merely present 
examples; the list is not all-inclusive 
and other features that would 
comparably reduce energy 
consumption and promote energy 
conservation would also be 
acceptable):   
• Increase in insulation such that 

heat transfer and thermal bridging 
is minimized; 

• Limit air leakage through the 
structure and/or within the heating 
and cooling distribution system; 

• Use of energy-efficient space 
heating and cooling equipment; 

• Installation of electrical hook-ups 
at loading dock areas; 

• Installation of dual-paned or other 
energy efficient windows; 

• Use of interior and exterior energy 
efficient lighting that exceeds then 
incumbent California Title 24 
Energy Efficiency performance 
standards; 

• Installation of automatic devices to 
turn off lights where they are not 
needed; 

• Application of a paint and surface 
color palette that emphasizes light 
and off-white colors that reflect 
heat away from buildings; 

Item D - 112 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-62 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
• Design of buildings with “cool 

roofs” using products certified by 
the Cool Roof Rating Council, 
and/or exposed roof surfaces 
using light and off-white colors; 

• Design of buildings to 
accommodate photo-voltaic solar 
electricity systems or the 
installation of photo-voltaic solar 
electricity systems; and 

• Installation of ENERGY STAR-
qualified energy-efficient 
appliances, heating and cooling 
systems, office equipment, and/or 
lighting products. 

 
4.3.5 The developer of the industrial phase of 

the Project (Planning Area 1) will install 
on the roofs of the warehouse buildings 
a photo-voltaic electrical generation 
system (PV system) capable of 
generating 1,600,000 kilowatt hours per 
year.8 The developer may install the 
required PV system in phases on a pro 
rata square foot basis as each building 
is completed; or if the PV system is to be 
installed on a single building, all of the 
PV system necessary to supply the PV 
estimated electrical generation shall be 
installed within two years (24 months) of 
the first building that does not include a 
PV system receives a certificate of 
occupancy. 

 

 
8 3 This electricity generation estimate is based on the amount of electricity to be consumed within Planning Area 1 at buildout and full occupancy. 

Item D - 113 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-63 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
Expose sensitive receptors to 
substantial pollutant concentrations. 

Potentially Significant. 
(Project exposure to 
freeway-source 
pollutants)   

4.3.6 Residential units within the Project site 
shall include the installation and 
maintenance of air filtration systems 
with efficiencies equal to or exceeding a 
Minimum Efficiency Reporting Value 
(MERV) 13 as defined by the American 
Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air 
Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 
Standard 52.2. 

Less-Than-Significant. 
Application of Mitigation Measure 
4.3.6 would ensure that Project 
sensitive receptors (Project 
residential uses) would not be 
exposed to substantial pollutant 
concentrations 

Create objectionable odors affecting a 
substantial number of people. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Result in a cumulatively considerable 
net increase of any criteria pollutant for 
which the Project region is non-
attainment under an applicable federal 
or state ambient air quality standard, 
including releasing emissions which 
exceed quantitative thresholds for 
ozone precursors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Potentially Significant. Please refer to Mitigation Measures 4.3.1 
through 4.3.5. 

Significant and Unavoidable. 
Mitigation Measures 4.3.1 through 
4.3.5 would reduce Project 
construction-source and 
operational-source emissions to 
the extent feasible. However, 
construction-source VOC and NOx 
emission exceedances, and 
operational-source VOC, NOx, 
PM10, and PM2.5 emissions 
exceedances would persist, and 
would result in a cumulatively 
considerable net increase in ozone, 
PM10, and PM2.5 for which the 
Project region is non-attainment 
under an applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality standard. These 
impacts would be cumulatively 
considerable even with the 
application of mitigation.   
 
 
 
 

Item D - 114 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-64 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
4.4 Global Climate Change and Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
Conflict with an applicable plan, policy 
or regulation adopted for the purpose 
of reducing the emissions of 
greenhouse gases.  

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. GHG emissions 
would nonetheless be reduced coincident with 
criteria pollutant emissions reductions 
achieved by Mitigation Measures 4.3.1 through 
4.3.6. 

Not applicable. 

Generate greenhouse gas emissions, 
either directly or indirectly, that may 
have a significant impact on the 
environment. 
 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. GHG emissions 
would nonetheless be reduced coincident with 
criteria pollutant emissions reductions 
achieved by Mitigation Measures 4.3.1 through 
4.3.6. 

Not applicable. 

4.5 Noise 
Project construction activities and 
associated noise would result in 
exposure of persons to, or generation 
of, noise levels in excess of standards 
established in the local general plan or 
noise ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other agencies.   

Potentially Significant. 4.5.1 Prior to approval of grading plans and/or 
issuance of building permits, plans shall 
include a note indicating that noise-
generating Project construction 
activities shall occur between the 
permitted hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 
p.m. on weekdays, or Saturdays, and 
between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on 
Sundays. The Project construction 
supervisor shall ensure compliance with 
the note and the City shall conduct 
periodic inspection at its discretion.   

 
4.5.2 Install temporary noise control barriers 

that provide a minimum noise level 
attenuation of 10.0 dBA when Project 
construction occurs near existing noise-
sensitive structures.  The noise control 
barrier must present a solid face from 
top to bottom.  The noise control barrier 
must be high enough and long enough 
to block the view of the noise source. 

Significant and Unavoidable.  
Even with the incorporation of 
Mitigation Measures 4.5.1 through 
4.5.5, construction-source noise 
levels would likely exceed 
applicable standards at certain 
receptors. 

Item D - 115 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-65 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
Unnecessary openings shall not be 
made.   
• The noise barriers must be maintained 

and any damage promptly repaired.  
Gaps, holes, or weaknesses in the 
barrier or openings between the 
barrier and the ground shall be 
promptly repaired. 

•  The noise control barriers and 
associated elements shall be 
completely removed and the site 
appropriately restored upon the 
conclusion of the construction 
activity. 

 
4.5.3 During all Project site construction, the 

construction contractors shall equip all 
construction equipment, fixed or mobile, 
with properly operating and maintained 
mufflers, consistent with manufacturers’ 
standards. The construction contractor 
shall place all stationary construction 
equipment so that emitted noise is 
directed away from the noise sensitive 
receivers nearest the Project site. 

 
4.5.4 The construction contractor shall locate 

equipment staging in areas that will 
create the greatest distance between 
construction-related noise sources and 
noise sensitive receivers nearest the 
Project site (i.e., to the south) during all 
Project construction. 

 
4.5.5 The construction contractor shall limit 

haul truck deliveries to the same hours 

Item D - 116 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-66 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
specified for construction equipment 
(between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 
6:00 p.m. on weekdays, or Saturdays, 
and between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on 
Sundays). The Project Applicant shall 
prepare a haul route exhibit for review 
and approval by the City of Ontario 
Planning Division prior to 
commencement of construction 
activities.  The haul route exhibit shall 
design delivery routes to minimize the 
exposure of sensitive land uses or 
residential dwellings to delivery truck-
related noise. 

Project construction activities and 
associated noise would result in a 
substantial permanent increase in 
ambient noise levels in the Project 
vicinity above levels existing without 
the Project.   

Construction noise is 
not considered a 
source of permanent 
noise increases, and 
associated threshold 
questions are not 
germane. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable. 

Project construction activities and 
associated noise would result in a 
substantial temporary or periodic 
increase in ambient noise levels in the 
Project vicinity above levels existing 
without the Project.   

Potentially Significant. Please refer to Mitigation Measures 4.5.1 
through 4.5.5. 

Significant and Unavoidable. 
While the preceding Mitigation 
Measures 4.5.1 through 4.5.5 will 
reduce construction noise to the 
extent feasible, it is anticipated that 
noise associated with the 
construction of the Project would 
result in a substantial temporary or 
periodic increase in ambient noise 
levels in the Project vicinity above 
levels existing without the Project. 
 

Project vehicular source noise would 
result in exposure of persons to, or 
generation of, noise levels in excess of 

Potentially Significant. 4.5.6 First floor residential patio areas 
adjacent to Inland Empire Boulevard 

Less-Than-Significant Impacts. 
Implementation of Mitigation 
Measures 4.5.6 through 4.5.8 

Item D - 117 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-67 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
standards established in the City’s 
General Plan or Noise Ordinance, or 
other applicable standards of other 
agencies. 

shall include the construction of 6-foot 
high noise barriers. 

 
4.5.7    All residential uses proposed within the 

Specific Plan shall be equipped with a 
means of mechanical ventilation (e.g., 
air conditioning). 

4.5.8 All second floor residential façades 
facing Inland Empire Boulevard shall 
require upgraded windows with a 
minimum STC rating of 29. 

would reduce on-site exterior and 
interior noise to less-than-
significant levels consistent with 
applicable standards.  
 
Significant and Unavoidable 
Impacts.  
Project vehicular-source noise 
contributions to ambient noise 
conditions affecting certain Study 
Area roadways would exceed 
applicable standards, and would be 
individually significant and 
cumulatively considerable. No 
mitigation measures are available 
that would prevent noise levels 
along major transportation 
corridors from increasing as a result 
of substantial increases in traffic 
volumes. 

Project vehicular source noise would 
result in a substantial temporary or 
periodic increase in ambient noise 
levels in the Project vicinity above 
levels existing without the Project.  
 
 
 
 
 
  

Vehicular-source noise 
is addressed as a 
permanent source of 
noise, rather than a 
temporary or periodic 
source of noise 
increases. As such, 
associated threshold 
questions are not 
germane. 
 
 
 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable. 

Project vehicular source noise would 
result in a substantial permanent 
increase in ambient noise levels in the 

Potentially Significant. Please refer to Mitigation Measures 4.5.6 
through 4.5.8. 

Less-Than-Significant Impacts. 
Implementation of Mitigation 
Measures 4.5.6 through 4.5.8 

Item D - 118 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-68 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
Project vicinity above levels existing 
without the Project.   

would reduce on-site exterior and 
interior noise to levels not 
considered to be a substantial 
permanent increase in ambient 
noise levels in the Project vicinity 
above levels existing without the 
Project.    
 
Significant and Unavoidable 
Impacts.  
Project vehicular-source noise 
contributions to ambient noise 
conditions along affecting certain 
Study Area roadways would 
represent a substantial permanent 
increase in ambient noise levels in 
the Project vicinity above levels 
existing without the Project. No 
mitigation measures are available 
that would prevent noise levels 
along major transportation 
corridors from increasing as a result 
of substantial increases in traffic 
volumes. 

Project operational noise would result 
in exposure of persons to, or 
generation of, noise levels in excess of 
standards established in the City’s 
General Plan or Noise Ordinance. 

Less-Than-Significant. 4.5.9 If the Project is developed under the 
Option A scenario: 

   •       Construct the recommended 8-foot 
high noise barriers at the western 
and eastern boundaries of 
Planning Area 4, as shown on 
Exhibit 10-A of the Noise Impact 
Analysis. 

 
4.5.10 If the Project is developed under the 

Option B scenario: 

To further reduce potential 
operational noise levels received at 
adjacent residential land uses, 
Project Noise Impact Analysis 
recommendations are incorporated 
here as mitigation. 

Item D - 119 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-69 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
• Construct the recommended 8-foot 

high noise barriers at the western 
and eastern boundaries of 
Planning Area 4, as shown on 
Exhibit 10-B of the Noise Impact 
Analysis. 

• Construct the recommended 8-foot 
high noise barrier at the southern 
property boundary at the existing 
school, as shown on Exhibit 10-B 
of the Noise Impact Analysis. 

4.5.11 All trucks, tractors, and forklifts shall be 
operated with proper operating and 
well maintained mufflers. 

 
4.5.12 Maintain quality pavement conditions 

that are free of bumps to minimize truck 
noise. 

 
4.5.13 The truck access gates and loading 

docks within the truck court on the 
project site shall be posted with signs 
which state: 
• Truck drivers shall turn off engines 

when not in use; 
• Diesel trucks servicing the Project 

shall not idle for more than five (5) 
minutes; and 

• Post telephone numbers of the 
building facilities manager to report 
violations. 

 
 

Project operational noise would result 
in a substantial temporary or periodic 
increase in ambient noise levels in the 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Item D - 120 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-70 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
Project vicinity above levels existing 
without the Project.   
Project operational noise would result 
in a substantial permanent increase in 
ambient noise levels in the Project 
vicinity above levels existing without 
the Project.   

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

For a project located within an airport 
land use plan or, where such a plan 
has not been adopted, within two miles 
of a public airport or public use airport, 
the project would expose people 
residing or working in the project area 
to excessive noise levels. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Exposure of persons to, or generation 
of, excessive groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise. 

Potentially Significant. 4.5.14 The operation of heavy equipment 
shall only occur between the hours of 
7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, 
or Saturdays, and between 9:00 a.m. 
and 6:00 p.m. on Sundays, and 
avoided at the Project site boundary 
nearest receiver location R4 whenever 
feasible. 

Significant and Unavoidable.   
Even with the incorporation of 
Mitigation Measures 4.5.14 
construction-source vibration levels 
would likely exceed applicable 
standards at certain receptors. 

4.6 Hazards/Hazardous Materials 
Create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment through 
emitting hazardous emissions or 
handling acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-
quarter of a mile of an existing or 
proposed school. 

Potentially Significant. 4.6.1 Prior to the issuance of grading permits, 
soil samples shall be taken from various 
areas of the Project site. Any soils found 
to contain pesticide levels in excess of 
the residential and/or 
industrial/commercial soil screening 
levels (presented in Table 4.6-1 of this 
EIR) shall be treated onsite or disposed 
of offsite, consistent with Section 4.6.4.5 
of this EIR. Additional samples shall be 
collected from the perimeter and bottom 
of the excavation to confirm that 

Less-Than-Significant. 
Application of Mitigation Measures 
4.6.1 and 4.6.2 would ensure that 
the potential for the Project to 
create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment through 
emitting hazardous emissions or 
handling acutely hazardous 
materials, substances, or waste 
within one-quarter of a mile of an 
existing or proposed school is 

Item D - 121 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-71 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
pesticide concentrations in excess of 
the screening levels do not remain. Any 
additional impacted soil identified during 
this process shall be removed and 
additional confirmatory samples shall be 
obtained until non-actionable 
concentrations are obtained. 

 
4.6.2 Prior to demolition or major renovations 

to the Italo M. Bernt School, a 
comprehensive asbestos and LBP 
survey shall be completed of suspect 
materials. If discovered, ACMs and 
peeling LBP shall be removed and 
disposed of by a State-licensed 
abatement contractor prior to 
demolition/renovation.  Similarly, if 
during grading activities, buried 
asbestos-containing transite pipes are 
discovered, these materials shall also 
be removed and disposed of by a State-
licensed abatement contractor.  

          The Project developer shall submit 
documentation to the City Building 
Department that asbestos and lead-
based paint issues are not applicable to 
their property, or that appropriate 
actions, as detailed in Section 4.6.4.5 of 
this EIR, will be taken to abate asbestos 
or lead-based paint issues prior to 
development of the site. 

 
 

reduced to a level that is less-than-
significant. 

Result in a safety hazard for people 
residing or working in the project area 
for a project located within an airport 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Item D - 122 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-72 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
land use plan or, where such a plan 
has not been adopted, within two miles 
of a public airport or public use airport. 

4.7 Public Services and Utilities 
Result in or cause substantial adverse 
physical impacts associated with the 
provision of new or physically altered 
governmental facilities; or result in the 
need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the 
construction of which could cause 
significant environmental impacts, in 
order to maintain acceptable service 
ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for fire or 
police protection services or schools. 
 
 
 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Require or result in the construction of 
new water or wastewater treatment 
facilities or expansion of existing 
facilities, the construction of which 
could cause significant environmental 
effects. 
 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Require or result in the construction of 
new storm water drainage facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the 
construction of which could cause 
significant environmental effects. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Have sufficient water supplies 
available to serve the project from 
existing entitlements and resources, or 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Item D - 123 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-73 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
are new or expanded entitlements 
needed. 
Result in a determination by the 
wastewater treatment provider which 
serves or may serve the project that it 
has adequate capacity to serve the 
project’s projected demand in addition 
to the provider’s existing commitments. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Be served by a landfill with sufficient 
permitted capacity to accommodate 
the project’s solid waste disposal 
needs; Comply with federal, state, and 
local statutes and regulations related to 
solid waste. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

4.8 Hydrology and Water Quality 
Violate any water quality standards or 
waste discharge requirements or 
otherwise substantially degrade water 
quality. 
 
 
 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Substantially alter the existing 
drainage pattern of the site or area, 
including through the alteration of the 
course of a stream or river, or 
substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner 
which would result in flooding or 
substantial erosion or siltation on- or 
off-site; Create or contribute runoff 
water which would exceed the capacity 
of the existing or planned storm water 
drainage systems or provide 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

Item D - 124 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-74 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
substantial additional sources of 
polluted runoff. 
Expose people or structures to a 
significant risk of loss, injury, or death 
involving flooding, including flooding as 
a result of the failure of a levee or dam. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

4.9 Biological Resources 
Substantially affect, either directly or 
through habitat modifications, any 
species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in 
local or regional plans, policies, or 
regulations, or by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife 
(CDFW) or United States Fish and 
Wildlife Service (USFWS).   

Potentially Significant. 4.9.1 Avoidance of Nesting Migratory Birds: If 
possible, all vegetation removal 
activities shall be scheduled from 
August 1 to February 1, which is outside 
the general avian nesting season. This 
would ensure that no active nests would 
be disturbed and that removal could 
proceed rapidly. If vegetation is to be 
cleared during the nesting season, all 
suitable habitat will be thoroughly 
surveyed within 72 hours prior to 
clearing for the presence of nesting 
birds by a qualified biologist (Project 
Biologist). The Project Biologist shall be 
approved by the City and retained by the 
Applicant. The survey results shall be 
submitted by the Project Applicant to the 
City Planning Department. If any active 
nests are detected, the area shall be 
flagged and mapped on the construction 
plans along with a minimum 300-foot 
buffer, with the final buffer distance to be 
determined by the Project Biologist. The 
buffer area shall be avoided until, as 
determined by the Project Biologist, the 
nesting cycle is complete or it is 
concluded that the nest has failed. In 
addition, the Project Biologist shall be 

Less-Than-Significant. 
Application of Mitigation Measures 
4.9.1 through 4.9.7 would ensure 
that the potential for the Project to 
substantially affect, either directly 
or through habitat modifications, 
any species identified as a 
candidate, sensitive, or special 
status species in local or regional 
plans, policies, or regulations, or by 
the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (CDFW) or United 
States Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS) is reduced to a level that 
is less-than-significant. 

Item D - 125 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-75 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
present on the site to monitor the 
vegetation removal to ensure that any 
nests, which were not detected during 
the initial survey, are not disturbed. 

 
4.9.2 Burrowing Owl Avoidance: Breeding 

season avoidance measures for the 
burrowing owl including, but not limited 
to, those that follow shall be 
implemented. A pre-construction survey 
for resident burrowing owls shall be 
conducted by a qualified Project 
Biologist within 30 days prior to 
construction activities. If ground-
disturbing activities are delayed or 
suspended for more than 30 days after 
the pre-construction survey, the site will 
be resurveyed for owls. Pre-
construction survey methodology shall 
be based on Appendix D (Breeding and 
Non-breeding Season Surveys and 
Reports) of the CDFW Staff Report on 
Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFW) 
March 7, 2012 (CDFW Burrowing Owl 
Mitigation Staff Report). Results of the 
pre-construction survey shall be 
provided to CDFW and the City. If the 
pre-construction survey does not 
identify burrowing owls on the Project 
site, then no further mitigation shall be 
required. If burrowing owls are found to 
be utilizing the Project site during the 
pre-construction survey, measures shall 
be developed by the Project Biologist in 
coordination with CDFW to avoid 
impacting occupied burrows during the 

Item D - 126 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-76 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
nesting period. These measures shall 
be based on the most current CDFW 
protocols and would minimally include 
establishment of buffer setbacks from 
occupied burrows and owl monitoring 
during Project construction activities. 

 
4.9.3 Burrowing Owl Passive Exclusion: 

During the non-breeding season 
(September 1 through January 31), if 
burrows occupied by migratory or non-
migratory resident burrowing owls are 
detected during a pre-construction 
survey, then burrow exclusion and/or 
closure may be used to passively 
exclude owls from those burrows. 
Burrow exclusion and/or closure shall 
only be conducted by the Project 
Biologist in consultation and 
coordination with CDFW employing 
incumbent CDFW guidelines. 

 
4.9.4 Mitigation for Displaced Owls: In 

consultation with the City, Project 
Applicant, Project Biologist, and 
CDFW, and consistent with mitigation 
strategies outlined in the CDFW 
Burrowing Owl Mitigation Staff Report, 
a mitigation plan shall be developed for 
the “take” of any owls displaced 
through Project construction activities. 
Strategies may include, but are not 
limited to, participation in the 
permanent conservation of off-site 
habitat replacement area(s), and/or 

Item D - 127 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-77 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
purchase of available burrowing owl 
conservation bank credits. 

 
4.9.5 Prior to the issuance of any grading 

permits and prior to any physical 
disturbance of any possible 
jurisdictional areas, the Applicant shall 
obtain a Regional Board 401 
Certification, or a written waiver of the 
requirement for such an agreement or 
permit, from the California Regional 
Water Quality Control Board.  Written 
verification of such a permit or waiver 
shall be provided to the City of Ontario 
Planning Department. 

 
4.9.6 Prior to the issuance of any grading 

permits and prior to any physical 
disturbance of any possible 
jurisdictional areas, the Applicant shall 
obtain a stream bed alteration 
agreement or permit, or a written waiver 
of the requirement for such an 
agreement or permit, from the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife.  
Information to be provided as part of the 
Streambed Alteration Agreement (if 
required) shall include but not be limited 
to the following: 
• Delineation of lakes, streams, and 

associated habitat that will be 
temporarily and/or permanently 
impacted by the proposed project 
(include an estimate of impact to 
each habitat type); 

Item D - 128 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-78 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
• Discussion of avoidance measures 

to reduce project impacts; and, 
• Discussion of potential mitigation 

measures required to reduce the 
project impacts to a level of 
insignificance. 

 
Written verification of such a streambed 
alteration agreement/permit, or waiver, shall be 
provided to the City of Ontario Planning 
Department. 
 
4.9.7 Prior to the issuance of any grading 

permits and prior to any physical 
disturbance of any possible 
jurisdictional areas, the Applicant shall 
obtain a 404 permit, or a written waiver 
of the requirement for such an 
agreement or permit, from the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers. Written 
verification of such a permit or waiver 
shall be provided to the City of Ontario 
Planning Department. 

4.10 Geology and Soils 
Exposure of people or structures to 
potentially substantial adverse effects, 
including the risk of loss, injury or death 
involving seismic-related ground 
failure, including liquefaction; Location 
on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become 
unstable as a result of the Project, and 
potentially result in on- or off-site 
landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse. 

Potentially Significant. 4.10.1  Design and development of the Project         
shall comply with recommendations 
and performance standards identified 
within the Final Geotechnical Study. 
Where the Project Geotechnical Study 
is silent, requirements of the California 
Building Code as adopted and 
implemented by the City shall prevail. 

Less-Than-Significant. 
Application of Mitigation Measure 
4.10.1 would ensure that the 
potential for the Project to result in 
exposure of people or structures to 
potentially substantial adverse 
effects, including the risk of loss, 
injury or death involving seismic-
related ground failure, including 
liquefaction; Location on a geologic 
unit or soil that is unstable, or that 

Item D - 129 of 141

http://www.migcom.com/
http://www.webtaha.com/
http://www.webtaha.com/
http://www.llgengineers.com/


MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-79 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
would become unstable as a result 
of the Project, and potentially result 
in on- or off-site landslide, lateral 
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction 
or collapse is reduced to a level that 
is less-than-significant. 

Location on expansive soil, as defined 
in Table 18-1-B of the California 
Building Code (2010), thereby creating 
substantial risks to life or property. 

Less-Than-Significant. No mitigation is necessary. Not applicable. 

4.11 Cultural Resources 
Cause a substantial adverse change in 
the significance of historic and 
archaeological resources as defined in 
§15064.5. 

Less-Than-Significant. 4.11.1 Prior to development approval on the 
Project site and issuance of any 
grading, building, or other permit 
authorizing ground-disturbing activity, 
the Project applicant(s) shall include 
the following wording on all 
construction contract documentation: 

 
“If during grading or construction 
activities, cultural resources are 
discovered on the Project site, work 
shall be halted immediately within 50 
feet of the discovery and the resources 
shall be evaluated by a qualified 
archeologist and any affected Tribes 
(Tribes). Any unanticipated cultural 
resources that are discovered shall be 
evaluated and a final report prepared 
by the qualified archeologist. The 
report shall include a list of the 
resources discovered, documentation 
of each site/locality, and interpretation 
of the resources identified, and the 
method of preservation and/or 

Although the likelihood for 
archaeological and historic 
resources to exist onsite is 
considered extremely low, 
Mitigation Measures 4.11.1 through 
4.11.7 have been incorporated to 
fully ensure the protection of 
cultural resources that may be 
present in a buried context within 
the Project area. 

Item D - 130 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-80 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
recovery for identified resources. In the 
event the significant resources are 
recovered and if the qualified 
archaeologist and the Tribe determines 
the resources to be historic or unique, 
avoidance and/or mitigation would be 
required pursuant to and consistent 
with CEQA Guidelines Sections 
15064.5 and 15126.4 and Public 
Resources Code Section 21083.2 and 
the Cultural Resources Treatment and 
Monitoring Agreement required under 
Mitigation Measure 4.9.2.” 
 

4.11.2  At least 30 days prior to seeking a 
grading permit, the Project 
applicant(s) shall contact potentially 
affected Tribes to notify the Tribes of 
grading, excavation, and the 
monitoring program and to coordinate 
with the City of Ontario and the Tribes 
to develop a Cultural Resources 
Treatment and Monitoring Agreement. 
The agreement shall include, but not 
be limited to, outlining provisions and 
requirements for addressing the 
treatment of cultural resources; 
Project grading and development 
scheduling; terms of compensation for 
the monitors; and treatment and final 
disposition of any cultural resources, 
sacred sites, and human remains 
discovered on the site; and 
establishing on-site monitoring 
provisions and/or requirements for 
professional Tribal monitors during all 

Item D - 131 of 141



MICSPA EIR ADDENDUM                                                                                                                          City of Ontario 
Draft November 13, 2019                                                                                                                                    Page 3-81 
 
 
 

 
 

Impact 
Level of Significance 

Without Mitigation Mitigation Measures 
Level of Significance with 

Mitigation/Remarks 
ground-disturbing activities. A copy of 
this signed agreement shall be 
provided to the Planning Director and 
Building Official prior to the issuance 
of the first grading permit. 

 
4.11.3 Prior to development approval on the 

Project site and issuance of any 
grading, building, or other permit 
authorizing ground-disturbing activity, 
the Project applicant(s) shall include 
the following wording on all 
construction contract documentation: 

 
“If human remains are encountered, 
California Health and Safety Code 
Section 7050.5 requires that no further 
disturbance shall occur until the 
Riverside County Coroner has made 
the necessary findings as to origin. 
Further, pursuant to California Public 
Resources Code Section 5097.98(b), 
remains shall be left in place and free 
from disturbance until a final decision 
as to the treatment and disposition has 
been made. If the San Bernardino 
County Coroner determines the 
remains to be Native American, the 
Native American Heritage Commission 
shall be contacted within a reasonable 
time frame. Subsequently, the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall 
identify the “most likely descendant” 
within 24 hours of receiving notification 
from the coroner. The most likely 
descendant shall then have 48 hours to 

Item D - 132 of 141



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
November 18, 2019 

DECISION NO.: 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-038 

DESCRIPTION:  A Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-038) to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru 
restaurant (Starbucks Coffee) with a 480 square foot outdoor patio on 0.36 acres of land, located at the 
northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid 
Avenue Overlay) zoning districts; submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. Planning Commission action is 
required.  

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

HANNIBAL PETROSSI, (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-038, as described in the subject of this Decision (hereinafter 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 0.36-acre of land located at the north
west corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street (110 West E. Street and 511 N. Euclid Avenue), and is depicted 
in Exhibit A—Project Location, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and 
specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: 
Parking Lot/ 
Commercial 

Downtown Mixed-Use 
District 

MU-1 (Downtown 
Mixed Use) N/A 

North: Commercial Downtown Mixed-Use 
District 

MU-1 (Downtown 
Mixed Use) N/A 

South: Commercial Downtown Mixed-Use 
District 

MU-1 (Downtown 
Mixed Use) N/A 

East: Single-Family 
Residential 

Downtown Mixed-Use 
District 

MU-1 (Downtown 
Mixed Use) N/A 

West: Religious Assembly Downtown Mixed-Use 
District 

MU-1 (Downtown 
Mixed Use) N/A 

(2) Project Description:

Background — The Applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to construct to construct a 2,430 
square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee) with a 480 square foot outdoor patio. The Application 
was filed in conjunction with a Planned Unit Development (Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD - File No. 
PUD19-001), which establishes allowed land uses, development standards and design guidelines to 
facilitate the proposed development project. The project site is located the along the frontage of Euclid 
Avenue. The public right-of-way of Euclid Avenue, from Philadelphia Street to the I-10, was designated as 
Local Landmark No. 67 on January 16, 2001. On August 10, 2005, the public right-of-way of Euclid Avenue. 
from Philadelphia Street in Ontario to 24th Street in Upland, was listed on the National Register of Historic 

Item E - 1 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

Places as a significant cultural landscape. To ensure the proposed development (design, scale/massing 
and site layout) is appropriate to the character of the historic Euclid Avenue frontage (Right-of-way), a 
Certificate of Appropriateness (File No. PHP19-009) application has also been submitted with the 
Development Plan Application.   
 

(a) Site Design/Building Layout — The project site is currently developed with a 
parking lot on the southeast area of the site, a commercial building (Furniture store) on the north and 
residential structure that has been converted to a commercial use on the west. Both the buildings are 
proposed to be demolished to facilitate the development of the site.   
 
The 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee) and 480 square foot outdoor patio (see 
Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached) is oriented with the building entry and patio fronting onto Euclid Avenue. 
The patio will have a solid roof cover and enclosed by 4-foot high decorative metal fence.  A 3-foot 
landscape setback, behind the sidewalk, has been provided along the Euclid Avenue frontage of the 
building.  The drive-thru lanes, pick-up window, and off-street parking facilities are oriented toward the rear 
building and not visible from Euclid Avenue. The Drive-thru lane will be screened from view of a public 
street through building orientation, landscaping, and low screen wall.  
 
 

(b) Site Access/Circulation — Primary vehicular access to the project site will be from 
a driveway on E Street. A second separate driveway, to the west of the primary driveway, is proposed for 
drive-thru land access only. From E Street, the drive-thru lanes continue north, along the outer edge of the 
parking lot, looping east and south along the west side of the building. The drive-thru lane will have enough 
stacking to accommodate 11 vehicles behind the drive-thru pickup window (a minimum of 6 stacking spaces 
is required). The menu board and order canopy will be located within a landscape planter along the north 
loop of the drive-thru lane. Primary pedestrian access will be from the sidewalk, along the Euclid Avenue 
frontage, into the front entrance of the building. From the rear parking lot, secondary pedestrian and 
handicap access will be taken through the patio entry door into the south entry of the building. The rear 
patio entrance is located to the south of the pick-up window across the exit lane of the drive-thru.  
 

(c) Parking — As established in the Ontario Development Code, a fast food restaurant 
use requires 13.3 parking stalls for every 1,000 square feet of gross floor area (GFA) which includes outdoor 
seating area up to 25 percent of GFA. Restaurants with a drive-thru may be credited one space for each 
24 lineal feet of drive-thru lane behind the pickup window. As demonstrated in the Parking Summary Table 
below, project development proposes 2,430 square feet of restaurant with a 480 square foot patio (20 
percent of GFA) with a credit of 11 drive-thru spaces resulting in 21 required parking spaces. The subject 
property will be developed with 12 on-site parking spaces, resulting in a parking shortage of 9 spaces. 
However, the Ontario Development Code allows parking to be analyzed using the Downtown Ontario 
Parking Model Based on the proposed floor plan and the existing land uses on the block, a parking analysis 
was performed using the Parking Model. The project site is located on Block 21 (Exhibit D: Parking Block 
21) of the parking model. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item E - 2 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

 
 
With the proposed development, the block will have 133 available parking spaces. Of the total spaces, 92 
are off-street and 41 are on-street. The analysis found adequate parking availability to fulfill the requirement 
of 9 spaces (21 less the 12 on-site spaces). The tables below illustrate available parking for the project site 
(Block 21) with the existing and proposed uses. 
 
Available Public Parking with Proposed Use: Day Hours (8:00 a.m.–3:00 p.m.) 
 

 8 a.m. 9 a.m. 10 a.m. 11 a.m. 12 p.m. 1 p.m. 2 p.m. 3 p.m. 

Block 21 59 44 38 34 25 23 19 31 
 
Available Public Parking with Proposed Use: Evening Hours (3:00 p.m.–10:00 p.m.) 
 

 4 p.m. 5 p.m. 6 p.m. 7 p.m. 8 p.m. 9 p.m. 10 p.m. 

Block 21 47 67 91 96 108 124 132 
 
 

(d) Architecture — As outlined within the Section 6.8 (Architectural Character\Details) 
of the proposed Euclid Avenue and E Street PUD (File No. PDU19-001) for the project site, the project must 
comply with the Ontario Downtown Design Guidelines of the historic downtown area.  The Downtown 
Ontario Design Guidelines were adopted in 1998 to guide the physical revitalization of Ontario’s historic 
downtown.  The Guidelines provide architectural and design principals, as well as design concepts for 
downtown districts. The project area is located within the Historic Retail District, a mixed-use area with a 
focus on housing, commercial and retail.  

 
The design principles and desired architectural features required by the PUD are derived from the 
architectural style and elements set forth in Section 3.5.3 of the Downtown Design Guidelines and in Section 
2A.4.3.2 Design Guidelines for Context Buildings in the 1950’s styles Subdistrict for new in-fill development. 
The guidelines focus on key design elements such as storefront modulation, entrances, roof design, 
mechanical equipment, building elements (cornices, storefront frame, mid-floor panel, transom windows, 
bulkheads), awnings, materials and colors. 
 
An Art Deco inspired modern architectural style is proposed to complement the historic buildings and 
context of the historic downtown area (see Exhibit D-1—Exterior Elevations, attached). The modern 
architectural style building is proposed as a single story, with a two-story massing consistent with the 
existing buildings south of the project site along Euclid Avenue. The height of building is 26 feet to the top 
of the roof parapet and 31 feet to the top of the entry tower. The architectural character of the building 

Parking Summary Table  

Land Use Square 
Feet 

Parking Ratio Required 
Parking 

Total Parking 
Provided 

Fast Food 
Restaurant 

2,460 
 

480 SF 
(Patio) 

13.3 spaces per 1,000 SF 
(0.0133/SF) of GFA (includes 
outdoor seating area up to 25 percent 
of GFA). Restaurants with drive-thru 
may be credited one space for each 
24 lineal FT of drive-thru lane behind 
the pickup window 

32 12 
 

11 
(Drive-Thru 

Spaces) 

Total 2,940  32 23 (-9) 

Item E - 3 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

complements the various style of buildings within the historic downtown by using similar proportions (scale 
and massing), building details and building materials.  
 
The building utilizes horizontal and vertical changes in the wall plane, with a vertical tower element, vertical 
pilasters, color, and horizontal wood material banding. Architectural elements proposed include: 
 

• Entry tower element (31-feet in height) with an aluminum L- panel cornice (aged bronze color) 
treatment with redwood horizontal banning below the eves of the tower; 

• 10-foot-high store front windows along frontage of the building;  
• Decorative metal transom design element above the storefront windows with an aluminum L- panel 

(aged bronze color) eyebrow awnings below transom;   
• Redwood horizontal banding along the top portions of the building frontage, wrapping back along 

the top of the north elevation and transitioning into vertical column pattern along key areas of the 
rear (west) elevation; 

• 12’X24” decorative porcelain tile wainscot treatment, with bullnose cap, along the base of the 
building; 

• Vertical pilasters, with horizontal expansions joints, flanking the storefront windows on the right 
and left sides;  

• Covered aluminum L- panel awning (aged bronze color) over the drive-thru pick-up that extends 
out 6 feet from the building plane. 

•  Aluminum L- panel (aged bronze color) exterior on the patio columns and along the roof facia of 
the patio and a decorative Art Deco design 4-foot high metal fencing (dark bronze) patio enclosure.  

 
(e) Landscaping — Landscaping elements provide significant contributions to the 

aesthetic quality and character of the Euclid Avenue and the historic downtown area, with respect to public 
and private spaces. The proposed landscape plan design provides a  transition from adjacent uses, defines 
the circulation pattern on the lot, screens the drive-thru/parking lot from the street, highlight entries, provide 
shade for parking as well as the patio area, and to soften the appearance of the building. 

 
The project provides an overall landscape coverage of 21 percent, including a 5 to 7-foot landscaped 
setback provided along the project’s E street frontage and wrapping around the corner to Euclid Avenue. 
The project will also include the construction of a 5-foot wide landscape parkway along the frontage of E 
Street.  Along Euclid Avenue, a three-foot-wide planter is proposed along the base of the storefront 
windows, to help soften the building appearance from the sidewalk (see Exhibit E—Landscape Plan, 
attached).  In addition, the frontage along Euclid Avenue will be improved with new sidewalk and tree wells. 
The drive-thru lane will be flanked on each side by landscaping planters that range in width from 3 to 10 
feet. Along the eastern portion of the drive-thru, adjacent to the west (rear) elevation of the building, two 
16-foot high metal trellises with vine planning is proposed along the building plane.   The drive-thru exit 
portion of the drive-thru land will be screened from public view by a combination 4-foot-high decorative wall 
and dense shrub planting (Strappy-Leaf Screen Shrubs).  
 
The proposed plant palette includes many varieties of low and medium shrubs and groundcover to screen 
and enhance the areas around the patio, building and parting lot. The tree palette (15 to 48 gallon in size) 
for the project includes: 
 

 Engelmann Oak and True Green Elm for parking lot shade trees; 
 Arbutus Standard and Chinese Pistache for patio shade trees;   
 Maidenhair Tree, Holly Oak and Chinkapin Oak for street parkway trees; and  
 Gold Medallion Tree, Western Redbud multi-trunk, and Tuscarora Crape Myrtle for accent trees.   

 
(f) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to 

serve the project. Additionally, the Applicant has submitted a completed Preliminary Water Quality 
Management Plan (“PWQMP”) form, which established that the project is listed under one of the categories 

Item E - 4 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

subject to the requirements of the San Bernardino County Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Permit 
(“MS4 Permit”); therefore, the proposed development will be required to design and install Site Design Low 
Impact Development (“LID”) Best Management Practices (“BMPs”) or Treatment Control BMPs to treat a 
two-year, 24-hour storm event. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 

Item E - 5 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which consists of projects characterized as infill development, meeting the following conditions: 
 

 The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general 
plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations 

 The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres, 
and is substantially surrounded by urban uses 

 The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species 
 Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, 

or water quality 
 The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services 

 
(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 

forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 
(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 

 
SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 

Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed 

Item E - 6 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

Use) zoning district. The Policy Plan specifies that the Downtown Mixed-Use Area is to be implemented 
through the approval of an Area Plan or Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) prior to the development of 
properties within the Area. In compliance with this requirement, the Applicant has submitted the Euclid 
Avenue and E Street PUD, which is consistent with this vision, and the goals and policies of the Policy Plan. 
The development standards within the PUD and conditions under which the proposed Project will be 
constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy 
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the MU-1 
(Downtown Mixed Use) zoning district, Euclid Avenue Overlay District and the Euclid Avenue and E Street 
PUD, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (Fast food restaurant), as-well-as 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Euclid Avenue and E Street Planned 
Unit Development are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general 
welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in 
harmony with the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City 
Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Euclid Avenue and E Street Planned Unit Development that are applicable 
to the proposed Project, including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount 
of off-street parking and loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, 
on-site landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines 
specifically related to the particular land use being proposed (Fast food restaurant). As a result of this 
review, the Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction 
with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described 
in the Euclid Avenue and E Street Planned Unit Development. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission APPROVE 
the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included as 
Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 

Item E - 7 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item E - 8 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION 
 
  

Project Site  

Item E - 9 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN  

Item E - 10 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit C—FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS 
  

Item E - 11 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

 
Exhibit D-1—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS  

Item E - 12 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 13 

 
Exhibit E—LANDSCAPE PLAN 

 
 

Item E - 13 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-038 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item E - 14 of 44



 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV19-038 
 
Related Files: PUD19-001 and PHP 19-009 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-038) to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-
thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee) with a 480 square foot outdoor patio on 0.36 acres of land, located at 
the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid 
Avenue Overlay) zoning districts; submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. Planning Commission action is 
required.  
 
Prepared By: Rudy Zeledon, Assistant Planning Director  

Phone: 909.395.2422 (direct) 
Email: rzeledon@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 

 
(b) The Development Plan approval is contingent upon Planning Commission 

Approval of related Certificate of Appropriateness, File No. PHP19-009, and City Council Approval of 
Planned Unit Development File No. PUD19-001. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item E - 15 of 44



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV18-038 
Page 2 of 5 

 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading) and the 
Downtown Ontario Parking Model. 
 

(b) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 
and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

 
(c) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 

provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(d) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(e) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 

 
(f) Drive-thru businesses shall not disrupt the pedestrian activity of adjacent or nearby 

commercial uses or commercially zoned property. Furthermore, the use shall not interfere with the normal 
use of adjoining properties or potential for planned commercial development. 

 
  

Item E - 16 of 44



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV18-038 
Page 3 of 5 

 
 

2.6 Maintenance. 
 

(a) The premises shall be kept clean, and the operator shall make all reasonable 
efforts to see that no trash or litter originating from the use is deposited on adjacent properties. 
 

(b) Adequate trash containers shall be provided on a daily basis, and employees shall 
be required to pick up trash originating from the site, both on site and within 50 feet of the perimeter of the 
site. 

(c) No undesirable odors shall be generated on-site. 
 

(d) All merchandise, wares, crates in the form of temporary and permanent storage, 
displays, and goods offered for sale shall be maintained wholly within the building. Storage of any kind shall 
be contained completely within an enclosed structure. 

 
2.7 Site Lighting. 

 
(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 

pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 
 

2.9 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.10 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.11 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 

 
(a) Noise emanating from sound systems, including intercom and public address 

systems, shall not be audible beyond the property line. 
 

2.12 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
which consists of infill development projects that are consistent with the following conditions: 

Item E - 17 of 44



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV18-038 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 
 

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and 
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

(ii) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no 
more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or 
threatened species; 

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and 
public services. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.13 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.14 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.15 Additional Requirements. 
 
 

(a) All on-site improvements and the final architectural design of the approved building 
shall be consistent with the approved plans on file with the Planning Department and the herein-stated 
conditions of approval. The final designs shall be subject to review and approval by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 

 
(b) The two drive approaches of E Street shall be provided with an enhanced 

pavement treatment. The enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, 
to the first intersecting drive aisle or parking space. The enhanced paving materials may be pavers or 
scored colored concrete or other materials, subject to Planning Department review and approval. 

Item E - 18 of 44



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV18-038 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 

 
  

(c) The applicant shall work with staff on up/down lighting for the exterior of the 
building to enhance and highlight architectural features/detail of the building. In addition, cut sheets of 
exterior lighting fixtures will need to be provided at time of project Plan Check construction review. Wall 
packs lighting will not be permitted.  

 
(d) The Redwood and Western Red Cedar Siding proposed on the exterior of the 

building shall be treated and sealed to prevent weathering and fading.  
 

(e) The east patio gate (on Euclid Avenue) shall be used for emergency exit only and 
not used for entry into the building. Panic hardware shall for emergency exiting shall be installed on the 
gate.   
 

Item E - 19 of 44



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 
09/30/2019 

Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV19-038 

Case Planner: 
Rudy Zeledon 

Project Name and Location:  
Starbucks 
511 N. Euclid Ave. 
Applicant/Representative: 
Hannibal Petrossi hp@petrossiassoc.com (949) 833-3240 
1300 Bristol Street N, Suite 270 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
 
 
 

 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated09/17/2019) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE. 
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
DIGITAL SUBMITTALS MUST BE 10MB OR LESS. 
1. Show 8’ diameter of mulch only at new trees, 12’ min. at existing trees. Detail irrigation 

dripline outside of mulched root zone. 
2. Add 2 landscape planters at drive-thru to accommodate a trellis with a vine; minimum 

18”x18”. Provide a 4” wide concrete mow curb at finished surface to provide an edge for the 
asphalt. Show on plan and elevations between the redwood columns.  

3. Mitigation fees for existing 18” Heritage Tree will be $1,800. 
4. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 
5. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for 

landscape plan check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. 
Fees are: 

 Plan Check—less than 5 acres...............................................$1,301.00 
 Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase).........$278.00 
 Total………………………………………………………...………$1,579.00 
 Inspection—Field – any additional................................................ $83.00 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 

landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item E - 20 of 44

mailto:hp@petrossiassoc.com
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov
http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

Item E - 21 of 44



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Rudy Zeledon 

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: July 11, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PDEV19-038 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 
1. The Site address for this project will be 507 N Euclid Ave 
2. Standard conditions of approval apply.  
 

KS:lr 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item E - 22 of 44



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 

TO:  Rudy Zeledon, Assistant Planning Director 

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  July 12, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-038 - A Development Plan to construct a 2,430 sq. ft. single story 

restaurant (Starbucks Coffee), with an 480 sq. ft. outdoor patio, on 0.36 

acres of land, located on the northwest corner of E Street and Euclid 

Avenue, within the MU-1 zoning District. APNS: 1048-355-09 and 10. 

 

 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 

 

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  V 

 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 

 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  2,430 Sq. Ft. 

 

D. Number of Stories:   1 

 

E. Total Square Footage:  2,430 Sq. Ft. 

 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  A-2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item E - 23 of 44



 

2 of 4  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1.0 GENERAL 

 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 

development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 

current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 

applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 

that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 

For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 

www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 

  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  

 

 

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 

the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 

shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 

See Standard #B-004.   

 

  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 

turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 

  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   

 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 

easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 

properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 

  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 

minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 

  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-

001. 

 

  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four 

(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 

portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 

fire department and other emergency services. 

 

 

Item E - 24 of 44

file://///ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 

3 of 4  

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 

Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 

square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 

  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 

 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 

Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 

availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 

or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 

copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 

private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 

and shall not cross any public street. 
 

  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed. 

 

  4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.  

Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement 

required. 

 

  4.8 A fixed fire extinguishing system is required for the protection of hood, duct, plenum and 

cooking surfaces.  This system must comply with National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 

Standards 17A and 96. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a 

construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done. 

 

    

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 

debris both on and off the site. 

 

  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-

tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 

the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 

the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

Item E - 25 of 44



 

4 of 4  

 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 

California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 

  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 

All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard 

#H-001 for specific requirements. 

 
 

Item E - 26 of 44



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Rudy Zeledon, Assistant Planning Director 

 

FROM:  Officer Emily Hernandez, Police Department 

 

DATE:  July 22, 2019  

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-038 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A 2,430 

SQUARE FOOT SINGLE STORY RESTAURANT (STARBUCKS 

COFFEE), WITH A 480 SQUARE FOOT OUTDOOR PATIO LOCATED 

ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF E STREET AND EUCLID 

AVENUE.  

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The 

applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including but not limited 

to, the requirements listed below. 

 

 Required lighting for all walkways, driveways, doorways, parking areas, and other areas 

used by the public shall be provided and operate on photosensor. Photometrics shall be 

provided to the Police Department. Photometrics shall include the types of fixtures 

proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. 

Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the building as stated in the Standard Conditions. 

The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint 

on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the 

addressed street. 

 The Applicant shall comply with all construction site security requirements as stated in 

the Standard Conditions. 

 

In addition, the Ontario Police Department places the following conditions on the project: 

 

 The Applicant shall install a video surveillance system on the site. Cameras shall cover at 

a minimum all entry doors, all cash registers, and at least one camera shall capture any 

vehicle utilizing the drive-thru. Cameras shall be positioned so as to maximize the 

coverage of patrons and vehicles in these areas. Cameras shall record at least 15 frames 

per second and at a minimum of 640x480 lines of resolution. Recordings shall be stored 

for a minimum of 30 days and made available upon request to any member of the Ontario 

Police Department. 

Item E - 27 of 44



 The applicant will be responsible for keeping the grounds of the business clean from 

debris and litter. 

 Graffiti abatement by the business owner/licensee, or management shall be immediate 

and on-going on the premises, but in no event shall graffiti be allowed unabated on the 

premises for more than 72 hours.  Abatement shall take the form of removal, or shall be 

covered/painted over with a color reasonably matching the color of the existing building, 

structure, or other surface being abated.  Additionally, the business owner/licensee, or 

management shall notify the City within 24 hours at (909) 395-2626 (graffiti hotline) of 

any graffiti elsewhere on the property not under the business owner/licensee’s or 

management control so that it may be abated by the property owner and/or the City’s 

graffiti team.  

 

The Applicant is invited to contact Officer Emily Hernandez at (909) 408-1755 with any 

questions or concerns regarding these conditions.    

 

Item E - 28 of 44



Item E - 29 of 44



Item E - 30 of 44



Item E - 31 of 44



Item E - 32 of 44



Item E - 33 of 44



Item E - 34 of 44



Item E - 35 of 44



Item E - 36 of 44



Item E - 37 of 44



Item E - 38 of 44



Item E - 39 of 44



Item E - 40 of 44



Item E - 41 of 44



Item E - 42 of 44



Item E - 43 of 44



Item E - 44 of 44



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
November 18, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-039 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct 67 conventional single-family homes on 11.24 
acres of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, within the 
Conventional Medium Lot Residential district of Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan; (APN: 
0218-014-25) submitted by Taylor Morrison of California, LLC. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

TAYLOR MORRISON OF CALIFORNIA, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an 
application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-039, as described in the subject of 
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 11.24 acres of land located at the
southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A—Aerial 
Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land 
uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Rough Graded Low Density (2.1-5 
du/ac) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

PA20 (Conventional 
Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac) 

North Farmland and Vacant Open Space - 
Parkland 

Grand Park Specific 
Plan The Great Park 

South Single-Family 
Residential 

Low Density (2.1-5 
du/ac) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

PA19 (Lane Loaded 5-
8 du/ac) 

East Single-Family 
Residential 

Low Density (2.1-5 
du/ac) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

PA21 (Conventional 
Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac) 

West Single-Family 
Residential 

Low Density (2.1-5 
du/ac) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

PA3 (Conventional 
Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac) 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — The Subarea 29 Specific Plan and the Environmental Impact
Report (EIR; State Clearinghouse No. 2004011009) were approved by the City Council on October 17, 
2006. The Specific Plan established the land use designations, development standards, and design 
guidelines, which includes the potential development of 2,470 dwelling units and up to 87,000 square feet 
of commercial uses for the Specific Plan Area. 

On January 23, 2007, the Planning Commission approved Tentative Tract Map 18065 (File No. PMTT06-
011), which subdivided The project site into 67 numbered lots (Planning Area PA20 – Conventional Medium 

Item F - 1 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

Lot 4-6 du/ac), and two lettered lots containing a pocket park and a paseo (See Exhibit B: Site Plan). The 
lots range in size from 4,250 to 9,094 square feet, with an average lot size of 4,554 square feet.  
 
On July 5, 2019, the Applicant submitted the subject Development Plan application to facilitate the 
development of Tract 18065. 
 

(b) Site Design/Building Layout — The project proposes the development of 67 single-
family homes within Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The homes are all oriented toward 
the street (architectural forward). Three, two-story floor plans are proposed, each with three elevations per 
plan (see Exhibit D—Landscape Plan and Typical Plotting and Exhibit E—Sample Floor Plan). The plans 
include the following: 
 

• Plan 1: 2,717 square feet of living space, 458 square-foot garage, 3 bedrooms with 2 optional 
loft/den or bedroom areas, and 2.5 bathrooms. 

• Plan 2: 2,934 square feet of living space, 450 square-foot garage, 3 bedrooms with 2 optional 
loft/den or bedroom areas, and 2.5 bathrooms. 

• Plan 3: 3,130 square feet of living space, 465 square-foot garage, 4 bedrooms with 2 optional 
retreat/loft or bedroom areas, and 4 bathrooms. 

 
All plans incorporate numerous design features and elements, such as single- and second-story massing, 
varied entries, porches, second-floor laundry facilities, a great room, and options for additional bedrooms. 
Additionally, all homes will have a 2-car garage. To minimize visual impacts of garages, varied massing, 
second-story projections over garages, varied rooflines, and varied depths from the front face of the home 
or porch will be provided. 
 

(c) Site Access/Circulation — The project site will have primary access from Parkview 
Avenue, which runs north-south along the western frontage of the project site, and from Travertine Street, 
which runs west-east along the southern frontage (see Exhibit B: Site Plan). The developer is responsible 
for the construction the remaining street improvements along Parkplace Avenue and the interior 
neighborhood streets to serve the project. 

 
(d) Parking — The proposed conventional single-family homes will provide an 

enclosed two-car garage and a standard two-car driveway, which meets the Subarea 29 Specific Plan and 
Development Code parking requirements. Additionally, the project will provide approximately 86 on-street 
parking spaces for visitors. As demonstrated within Table 1: Summary of Parking Analysis Per Unit, below, 
the parking analysis concluded that there will be an average of 5.28 parking spaces per unit, which should 
be more than adequate to accommodate both resident and visitor parking. 
 

 
(e) Architecture — The project proposes to utilize three architectural styles, including 

Spanish Colonial, Cottage, and Farmhouse. The architectural styles complement each other through the 
overall massing, scale, proportions, details, and color schemes. The proposed home designs are consistent 
with the design guidelines of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. 

Table 1: Summary of Parking Analysis Per Unit 

Product Number 
of Units 

Garage 
Spaces 

Driveway 
Parking 
Spaces 

On-
Street 

Parking 

Total 
Spaces 

Provided 
Req. Per 

Unit 
+/- 

Parking 

SF Conventional  67 2 2 86 354 2 per unit  

Total  67 134 134 86 354 134 total +220 

     5.28 spaces per unit 

Item F - 2 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

 
The architectural styles proposed will include the following features (see Exhibit C—Exterior Elevations): 
 

• Spanish Colonial: Varying gable, hipped, and shed roofs with “S” tile roof, stucco exterior, arched 
entry openings, shutters, wrought iron and tile detailing, and pot shelves. 

 
• Cottage: Varying gable, hipped, and shed roofs with flat concrete roof tiles, siding at gable ends, 

arched entry openings, brick trim and veneer, corbels, and outlookers, and decorative box bay 
windows. 

 
• Farmhouse: Varying gable, hipped, and shed roofs with concrete flat tile roof, vertical and horizontal 

wood siding details, enhanced window trim details, and outlookers. 
 

(f) Landscaping — The Development Plan features sidewalks separated by 
landscaped parkways, which provide visual interest and promotes pedestrian mobility. All homes will be 
provided with front yard landscaping (lawn, shrubs, and trees) and an automatic irrigation system to be 
installed by the developer. The homeowner will be responsible for front, side, and rear yard landscaping 
maintenance, and for side and rear landscape improvements. The homeowners association will be 
responsible for the maintenance of landscaping and irrigation within all common areas and parkways of all 
local streets (See Exhibit D: Landscape Plan and Typical Plotting). 
 
Decorative 6-foot high, split-face block walls with decorative split-face pilasters are proposed for all public-
facing front, side, and rear walls. The interior property line privacy fencing will consist of a 6-foot high colored 
masonry block material, matching the perimeter wall color. 
 
The approved Tentative Tract Map (TM 18065) facilitated the construction of a pocket park for the 
neighborhood, sidewalks, parkways, and a paseo within the tract. TOP Policy PR1-1 requires new 
developments to provide a minimum of 2 acres of private park per 1,000 residents. The proposed project 
is required to provide a 0.51-acre park to meet the minimum TOP private park requirement. To satisfy the 
requirement, the applicant is constructing a 0.41-acre passive pocket park and 0.64-acre paseo. The 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan area contains a variety of park options for the greater neighborhood, including an 
assortment of active and passive recreational parks, as well as a clubhouse. Overall, the Subarea 29 
Specific Plan provides over 17 acres of parkland spread throughout approximately 14 neighborhood parks. 
The residents will have access to the neighborhood park system, the main public park and clubhouse 
(Celebration Park), in addition to the pedestrian corridors which connect the neighborhoods to the schools, 
parks, and regional trail system (See Exhibit F—Park Place Park Overview for the conceptual siting of 
schools, trails, and park areas). 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
File No. PSPA14-002, an Amendment to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan for which an addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was adopted by the City Council on April 21, 2015, and 
this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

Item F - 3 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and 
supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified EIR 
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File 
No. PSPA14-002, an Amendment to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan for which an addendum to the Subarea 
29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was adopted by the City Council on April 21, 2015. 
 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the 
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

Item F - 4 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; 
and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the 
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the 
Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions 
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was 
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
EIR; or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Certified EIR; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which 
the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (67 of 2,293 proposed units) and density (5.9 du/ac) specified in the Available Land 
Inventory. 
 

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 

Item F - 5 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Low-Density Residential 
(2.1-5 du/ac) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and Planning Area 20 (Conventional 
Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac) of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under 
which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, 
and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario 
Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and Planning Area 20 
(Conventional Medium Lot 4-6 du/ac) of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, including standards relative to the 
particular land use proposed (single-family residential), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking 
setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, 
and fences, walls and obstructions. The site is physically suitable for the proposed development of 67 
single-family homes. The related Tentative Tract Map 18065 (File No. PMTT06-011), which subdivided the 
land, was approved by the Planning Commission on January 23, 2007; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan are 
maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will 
not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which 
it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy 
Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The Development Plan will 
facilitate the construction of 67 single-family homes. The environmental impacts of this project were 
analyzed in an addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009), which was adopted 
by the City Council on April 21, 2015. All adopted mitigation measures of the related EIR shall be a condition 
of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 

Item F - 6 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

standards and guidelines of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, 
including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and 
loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and 
fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the 
particular land use being proposed (single-family residential). As a result of this review, the Development 
Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of 
approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the Subarea 29 
Specific Plan. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item F - 7 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

 Page 8 

Exhibit A—AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 
 

 

Item F - 8 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 
 

 

Item F - 9 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 
 

 

Item F - 10 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS CONTINUED 
 

 

Item F - 11 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS CONTINUED 
 

 

Item F - 12 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 13 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS CONTINUED 
 

 
 

Item F - 13 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 14 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS CONTINUED 
 

 

Item F - 14 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 15 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS CONTINUED 
 

 

Item F - 15 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 16 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS CONTINUED 
 

 

Item F - 16 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 17 

Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN AND TYPICAL PLOTTING 
 

 

Item F - 17 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 18 

Exhibit E—SAMPLE FLOOR PLAN 
 

 
 
 

 

Item F - 18 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 19 

Exhibit F—PARK PLACE PARK OVERVIEW 
 

 

PROJECT 
SITE 

Item F - 19 of 42



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-039 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

 Page 20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item F - 20 of 42



 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV19-039 
 
Related Files: PMTT06-011 (TM 18065) 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct 67 conventional single-family homes on 11.24 
acres of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, within the 
Conventional Medium Lot Residential district of Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan (APN: 
0218-014-25); submitted by Taylor Morrison of California, LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Alexis Vaughn, Assistant Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2416 (direct) 
Email: avaughn@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item F - 21 of 42



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-039 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 

 
(d) The development of this project shall conform to the City’s Development Code and 

the regulations of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. 
 

(e) All applicable conditions of approval of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan (File No. 
PSP03-003) shall apply to this Development Plan. 

 
(f) All applicable conditions of approval of the related TT18065 (File No. PMTT06-

011) shall apply. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 

 
(e) Each single-family dwelling/lot shall be provided with front yard landscaping and a 

permanent automatic irrigation in the front yard of each lot. At a minimum, a seeded turf lawn or 
appropriately-landscaped drought-tolerant plantings, appropriate shrubs and trees, and an automatic 
irrigation system shall be provided. Furthermore, a variety of typical landscape designs shall be provided 
for use on each lot within the subdivision. 

 
(f) The owner or assigns of the project site shall be responsible for the maintenance 

of the project site in good condition, so as to present a healthy, neat, and orderly landscape area. 
 

(g) Any removal of mature landscaping shall require the replacement of such with 
landscaping of similar size and maturity. 

 
(h) Irrigation systems shall be constantly maintained to eliminate wastewater due to 

loss of heads, broken pipes or misadjusted nozzles. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences.  
 

(a) All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of Ontario 
Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 

 
(b) Decorative 6-foot high masonry block walls shall be constructed at the following 

locations (per approved site plan): 
(i) Rear and interior side property lines (walls not exposed to public view may 

be constructed of tan precision block); and 
(ii) Side property line wall returns to the dwelling unit, with appropriate gates. 

Item F - 22 of 42



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-039 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

(c) Walls located within a required front yard setback shall be reduced to 3 feet in 
height. On any lots that front onto the park/paseos, front yard walls or hedgerows may not exceed a height 
of 3 feet from finished grade. 

 
(d) All new and existing walls shall be provided with a decorative cap. The use of a 

mortar and/or metal flashing cap shall not be permitted. 
 

(e) The height of a wall or fence shall be measured from the highest point of the natural 
ground or finished grade at the base of the fence or wall to the top of the fence or wall above the same 
base point. 
 

(f) Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a Wall Plan shall be reviewed and 
approved by the Planning and Building Departments. The plans shall indicate materials, colors and height 
of proposed and existing walls/fences and shall include a cross-section of walls/fences indicating adjacent 
grades. Walls shall be designed as an integral part of the architecture for the development and shall be 
constructed of tilt-up concrete, brick, or split-face or slump block. 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 

 
(b) Each single-family home shall maintain a minimum 20’ x 20’ (clear area) two-car 

garage. 
 

(c) No recreational vehicle storage (RV’s) in front or corner side yards. No RV street 
parking for more than 72 hours. 
 

(d) Driveway (aprons) shall be designed and constructed per City of Ontario 
Standards. 
 

(e) The required number of off-street parking spaces shall be provided at the time of 
site and/or building occupancy. All parking spaces shall be maintained in good condition for the duration of 
the building or use. 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) Site lighting shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning and Police 
Departments prior to the issuance of building permits. 
 

(b) Along pedestrian movement corridors such as parks and paseos, the use of low-
mounted bollard light standards, which reinforce pedestrian scale, shall be used. Steps, ramps, and 
seatwalls shall be illuminated with built-in light fixtures. 
 

2.7 Mechanical Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and all 
appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view and ground-mounted within the side 
or rear yard area. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 

 

Item F - 23 of 42



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-039 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Signs. All Project signage, such as entry monumentation, shall comply with the 
requirements of Ontario Development Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations) and the Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan. 

(a) Off-Site Subdivision Signs: 
 

(i) The City Council has authorized the Baldy View Chapter of the Building 
Industry Association to manage a standardized off-site directional sign program on a non-profit basis. The 
program uses uniform sign structures and individual identification and directional signs for residential 
development. No other off-site signage is authorized. (For additional information, contact the Baldy View 
Chapter BIA at (909) 945-1884.) 
 

2.10 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 

 
2.11 Architectural Treatment.  
 

(a) Exterior building elevations showing wall materials, roof types, exterior colors and 
decorative materials, and appropriate vertical dimensions shall be included in the development construction 
drawings. 
 

(b) Front elevation (wainscot, trim, siding, veneer) materials shall wrap around to the 
left and right elevations and terminate at a logical and appropriate point (return wall or inside corner, as 
applicable). 
 

(c) Cultured, precast, or fabricated stone products shall be constructed of an integral 
color material. 

 
2.12 Graffiti Removal. 
 

(a) Owners to remove graffiti. Conditions, covenants and restrictions, or separate 
covenants recorded against individual lots, prior to resale of same, which covenants shall run with the land 
and shall be for the benefit of the City, in a form satisfactory to the City, that the owner of the lots shall 
remove any graffiti placed thereon within 7 days after notice thereof. 
 

2.13 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project in conjunction with the Final Map and 
shall be recorded prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. The 
articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed and approved 
by the City. 
 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels. 
 

(d) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and common 
maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas; 

Item F - 24 of 42



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-039 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 
project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line or right-of-
way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines of a median divider 
(Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 5-22-02; 

(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives; and 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements. 

 
(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement officers to 

enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the CC&R 
provisions. 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs for 
enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the development does not 
occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the right of access to correct 
maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all costs incurred. 
 

2.14 Disclosure Statements. 
 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the 
subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to each 
prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that: 
 

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may 
be more severely impacted in the future. 

(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural uses 
and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals. 

(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino County 
Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the foreseeable future. 

(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The homeowner(s) 
will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the district. 
 

2.15 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction 
with File No. PSP03-003, the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for which an Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH#2004011009) was previously adopted by the City Council on November 7, 2006. This application 
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in 
situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted 
mitigation measures shall be a condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

Item F - 25 of 42



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-039 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 

2.16 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.17 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.18 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) The pocket park and paseo shall be constructed prior to the issuance of the 
certificate of occupancy of the 34th home. 
 

(b) The applicant shall contact the Ontario Post Office to determine the size and 
location of mailboxes for this project. The location of the mailboxes shall be submitted to the Planning 
Department for review and approval prior to the issuance of building permits. 

 
(c) The applicant (Developer) shall be responsible for providing fiber to each home 

per City requirements and standards. 
 

(d) Final architecture for the proposed project shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Department in the construction document process prior to the issuance of building permits. 
 

Item F - 26 of 42



Item F - 27 of 42



Item F - 28 of 42



Item F - 29 of 42



Item F - 30 of 42



Item F - 31 of 42



Item F - 32 of 42



Item F - 33 of 42



Item F - 34 of 42



Item F - 35 of 42



Item F - 36 of 42



Item F - 37 of 42



Item F - 38 of 42



Item F - 39 of 42



Item F - 40 of 42



Item F - 41 of 42



Item F - 42 of 42



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
November 18, 2019 

DECISION NO.: DAB Decision No. 

FILE NO.: PMTT19-007 

DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Parcel Map (PM 19970) to subdivide 0.71-acre of land into three 
traditional single-family residential lots located at 1919 South Cypress Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low 
Density Residential - 2.1 to 5.0 DUs/Acre) zoning district (APN: 1050-331-24); submitted by Mark Raab. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

MARK RAAB, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting Tentative 
Parcel Map approval, File No. PMTT19-007, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 0.71-acre of land located at 1919 South
Cypress Avenue and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. The site is comprised of a single 
through-lot, having access to both Cypress Avenue and Manzanita Court. Existing land uses, General Plan 
and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Single Family 
Residential Home 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

LDR5 (Low Density 
Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 

DU/Acre) 
N/A 

North: Single Family 
Residential Homes 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

LDR5 (Low Density 
Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 

DU/Acre) 
N/A 

South: Single Family 
Residential Homes 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

LDR5 (Low Density 
Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 

DU/Acre) 
N/A 

East: Single Family 
Residential Homes 

LDR (Low-Density 
Residential) 

LDR5 (Low Density 
Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 

DU/Acre) 
N/A 

West: Ontario High School PS (Public School) Civic (Civic) N/A 

(2) Project Description: The Applicant is requesting approval of a Tentative Parcel Map (PM
19970) to subdivide 0.71-acre of land into three parcels. The proposed subdivision will facilitate the future 
development of single-family dwellings on Parcels 2 and 3. Parcel 1 is developed with an existing 2,100-
square foot, single-family dwelling that will remain as part of the site improvements (see Exhibit B – Project 
Location Map). 

Street access to Parcels 1 and 2 will be provided from Cypress Avenue by 10-foot wide driveways. Street 
access to Parcel 3 will be provided from Manzanita Court by a 10-foot wide driveway (see Exhibit D—
Conceptual Site Plan and Exhibit C—Tentative Parcel Map No. 19970). Frontage improvements along 

Item G - 1 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

Cypress Avenue will include the removal and replacement of existing curb and gutter, construction of new 
drive approaches, replacement of damaged sidewalk panels, and the installation of a new fire hydrant. The 
frontage improvements along Manzanita Court will include a new drive approach, removal and replacement 
of damaged sidewalk panels, and new street trees and landscaping within the parkway area. 
 
Consistent with minimum Development Code requirements, the new lots will range in size from 9,240 to 
11,040 square feet (minimum 7,200 square feet is required), with lot widths ranging from 66 to 96 feet 
(minimum 60 feet is required). Additionally, each lot will have an average lot depth of approximately 130 
feet (minimum 75 feet is required).  
 
The existing house on Parcel 1 will remain and all newly created parcels (Parcel 1, 2 & 3) comply with all 
required setbacks and off-street parking requirements. The applicant is proposing to build new single-family 
homes and detached Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) on Parcels 2 and 3 (see Exhibit D—Conceptual 
Site Plan). The development of the new single-family homes and related ADUs will require separate 
approval through the City’s Building Department plan check process. During the plan check process, staff 
will work with the applicant to ensure that the architecture and design of the new homes will be consistent 
with the requirements of the Ontario Development Code and compatible with the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 

Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 

Item G - 2 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
which consists of the division of property in urbanized areas zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial 
use into four or fewer parcels when the division is in conformance with the General Plan and zoning, no 
variance or exceptions are required, all services and access to the proposed parcels to local standards are 
available, the parcel was not involved in a division of a larger parcel within 2 years, and the parcel does not 
have an average slope greater than 20 percent. 
 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 

Item G - 3 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

 
SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 

to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Tentative Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and 
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The proposed 
Tentative Parcel Map is located within the LDR (Low Density Residential) land use district of the Policy Plan 
Land Use Map, and the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The proposed 
subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing 
“a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the jobs in the City, and that make it possible for 
people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal LU1). Furthermore, the project will 
promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land uses and building types that contribute to a 
complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors, have a wide 
spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and recreate within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 
Complete Community). 
  

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Parcel Map is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Parcel Map is located within the LDR (Low Density Residential) 
land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 
DU/Acre) zoning district. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with the 
goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “[a] high level of design quality 
resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct” 
(Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will further the City’s policy to “create distinct residential 
neighborhoods that are functional, have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social interaction, 
and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as: 
 

 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and 

physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate 
 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 

Neighborhood Design) 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) 
zoning district, and is physically suitable for the type of residential development proposed in terms of zoning, 
land use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. The minimum lot 
size for each parcel is 7,200 square feet and the project is proposing three lots ranging from 9,240 to 11,040 
square feet, which exceeds the minimum lot size requirements. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 4.2 DUs/acre. The project site meets 
the minimum lot area and dimensions of the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning 
district and is physically suitable for the proposed density and intensity of development. The minimum lot 
size for each parcel is 7,200 square feet and the project is proposing three lots ranging from 9,240 to 11,040 
square feet, which exceeds the minimum lot size requirements. 
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 

Item G - 4 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat.  
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the overall right-of-
way improvements existing or proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public health 
problems, as the project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials 
during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels. 
In addition, there are no known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the 
subject site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to 
visitors or occupants to the project site. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; or (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends that the Planning Commission 
APPROVE the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 

Item G - 5 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-007 (TPM 19970) 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

Exhibit A—AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 
 

  

Project Site 

Item G - 6 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

 

Item G - 7 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit C—TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 19970 

 

11,040 SF 

11,022 SF 

9,040 SF 

EXISTING HOUSE 
TO REMAIN 

Item G - 8 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit D—CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN  
 

 

Parcel 1 

Parcel 2 

Parcel 3 

C
yp

re
ss

 A
ve

 

Manzanita Ct 

Item G - 9 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT19-007 (TPM 19970) 
November 18, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 

 
(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item G - 10 of 37



 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2019 
 
File No: PMTT19-007 
 
Related Files: None 
 
Project Description: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 19970) to subdivide 0.71 acres of land into three 
traditional single-family residential lots located at 1919 South Cypress Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low 
Density Residential - 2.1 to 5.0 DUs/Acre) zoning district (APN: 1050-331-24); submitted by Mark Raab. 
 
Prepared By: Denny D. Chen, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2424 (direct) 
Email: dchen@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 

1.1 Time Limits 
 

(a) Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 19970) approval shall become null and void 2 years 
following the effective date of application approval, unless the final tract map has been recorded, or a time 
extension has been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code Section 
2.02.025 (Time Limits and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time limits specified 
herein for performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

1.2 Subdivision Map 
 

(a) The Final Parcel Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative Parcel 
Map on file with the City. Variations from the approved Tentative Parcel Map may be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative Parcel Map may require 
review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the Planning Director. 
 

(b) Tentative Parcel Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, requirements and 
recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the attached reports/memorandums. 
 

(c) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees that it 
will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and employees from any 
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission 
or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which action is brought within the time period 
provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider 
of any such claim, action or proceeding and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item G - 11 of 37



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

1.3 General Requirements The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(b) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

1.4 Walls and Fences All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

1.5 Disclosure Statements 
 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the 
subdivision pursuant to the Business and Professionals Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to 
each prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that: 

 
(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may 

be more severely impacted in the future. 
 

1.6 Environmental Review  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, In-Fill Development Projects) of the of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which consists of division of property in urbanized areas zoned for residential, commercial, or 
industrial use into four or fewer parcels when the division is in conformance with the General Plan and 
zoning, no variance or exceptions are required, all services and access to the proposed parcels to local 
standards are available, the parcel was not involved in a division of a larger parcel within 2 years, and the 
parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 percent. 

 
(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 

activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

1.7 Indemnification  The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

1.8 Additional Fees 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee of $50.00 dollars shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by 
check, made payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San 

Item G - 12 of 37



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT19-007 (PM 19970) 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Bernardino County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, 
pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said 
fee within the time specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a 
CEQA lawsuit. 
 

1.9 Additional Requirements 
 

(a) The existing block wall along the east side of the project site, fronting Manzanita 
Court, shall be removed prior to construction of Parcel 3 in order to allow for vehicular access into the 
property. 

 
(b) The development of new single homes on Parcels 2 and 3 shall require separate 

approvals through the City’s building plan check process. During the plan check process, the applicant shall 
work with Planning staff to ensure that the site plan and building architecture meets the minimum 
Residential Development Standards & requirements of the Ontario Development Code. 

 
(c) Add missing trees and replace any dead landscaping along the parkway and along 

the front setback of the existing house on Parcel 1. The existing chain link fence on Parcel 1 must be 
removed and shall be replaced with a decorative wrought iron fence or something similar.   

 
(d) Building Plans for the proposed (20’x20’) detached two-car garage shall be 

submitted to the Building & Safety Department and constructed on Parcel 1 prior to the recordation of the 
Final Parcel Map (PM 19970) and prior to the construction of the homes on Parcels 2 and 3. 
 

Item G - 13 of 37



Item G - 14 of 37



Item G - 15 of 37



Item G - 16 of 37



Item G - 17 of 37



Item G - 18 of 37



Item G - 19 of 37



Item G - 20 of 37



Item G - 21 of 37



Item G - 22 of 37



Item G - 23 of 37



Item G - 24 of 37



Item G - 25 of 37



Item G - 26 of 37



Item G - 27 of 37



Item G - 28 of 37



Item G - 29 of 37



Item G - 30 of 37



Item G - 31 of 37



Item G - 32 of 37



Item G - 33 of 37



Item G - 34 of 37



Item G - 35 of 37



Item G - 36 of 37



Item G - 37 of 37


	AGENDA
	November 18, 2019
	Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency
	John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department

	20191118_Item A-Minutes.pdf
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

	20191118_Item D-PDEV19-025.pdf
	20191118 File No. PDEV19-025_Palmer West - DAB^05_ADDENDUM.pdf
	1. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY
	1.1 PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
	1.2 ADDENDUM DETERMINATION

	The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in Section 15162 [of the CEQA Guidelines] calling for preparation of a subseq...
	1.3 SUMMARY OF ADDENDUM CONCLUSIONS

	2. PROPOSED PROJECT CHANGES
	2.1 CURRENT MEREDITH INTERNATIONAL CENTRE SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT AND EIR
	2.2 PLANNING AREA 2 CHANGES

	3. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PLANNING AREA 2 CHANGES TO MICSPA EIR CONCLUSIONS
	This section describes the changes or additions to the certified MICSPA EIR conclusions necessary for consideration of the proposed amendments to the Planning Area 2 changes. A complete, verbatim listing of the potentially significant impacts and reco...
	The City has determined that preparation of an Addendum to the EIR pursuant to section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines (Addendum to an EIR or Negative Declaration) is the most appropriate method for evaluation of the proposed project. Section 15164(a) of...
	1) The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in Section 15162 [of the CEQA Guidelines] calling for preparation of a sub...

	Section 15162(a) of the CEQA Guidelines (Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations) states:
	(a) When an EIR has been certified or a negative declaration adopted for a project, no subsequent EIR shall be prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in the light of the whole record, one or m...
	(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously ...
	(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a s...
	(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete or the negative declaration was adopted, shows any of the...
	(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or negative declaration;
	(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the previous EIR;
	(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or...
	(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation ...

	In accordance with the CEQA Guidelines sections 15162 and 15164, for each environmental topic addressed in the MICSPA EIR (e.g., land use and planning; Traffic and Circulation, Air Quality, etc.). the discussion in this Addendum section indicates whet...
	 Changes or additions to the previously certified MICSPA EIR are necessary to adequately address the impacts and mitigation measures of the proposed Planning Area 2 changes, and if yes, whether:
	 The changes result in new significant environmental impacts or a substantial increase in the severity of the significant impacts identified in the MICSPA EIR;
	 The changes require new mitigations not identified in the MICSPA EIR that the applicant [in this case, the City, as the agency implementing the MICSP] declines to adopt; or
	 Changes have occurred since MICSPA EIR certification in the project circumstances (environmental setting) which would result in new significant environmental impacts or a substantial increase in the severity of a previously identified significant im...
	The subsections and impact discussions below are in the same order as the MICSPA EIR chapters.
	For each environmental impact identified as "significant" in the MICSPA EIR, this Addendum concludes that the proposed Planning Area 2 changes still would result in a “significant" impact and would therefore still warrant imposition of the previously ...
	Table 3-1 below provides a checklist summary of the environmental impact areas that were screened out of the MICSPA EIR as well as the new Addendum Determination for each potential impact area in light of the proposed Project changes. Impacts in Table...
	Impacts in Table 3-1 checked “Remain Less Than Significant Impact” have been determined to be less than significant with the proposed Project changes. Impacts checked “Remain Less Than Significant with Mitigation” have been determined to be less than ...
	3.1 LAND USE AND PLANNING
	The relationships of the Planning Area 2 (P.A. 2) changes to the previously certified MICSPA EIR land use and planning impact and mitigation conclusions are described below.
	(1) the boundaries of the 257-acre MICSPA  area would not change; (2) No new roads or other infrastructure features are being proposed, and therefore would not divide any established community.
	Conflict with Any Applicable Land Use Plan, Policy, or Regulation adopted for the Purpose of Avoiding or Mitigating an Environmental Effect. The certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact would be less-than-significant. The MICSPA EIR determined...
	The Project is also considered to be consistent with, and would support mobility, economy, and sustainability goals and policies articulated in the 2012-2035 RTP/SCS.
	The proposed capacity exchange includes no changes or new conditions that would alter this conclusion, based on the following information: (1) the boundaries of the 257-acre MICSPA  area would not change; (2) The proposed project would continue to app...

	3.2 TRAFFIC AND CIRCULATION
	3.3 AIR QUALITY
	3.4 GLOBAL CLIMATE CHANGE AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS
	3.5 NOISE
	3.6 HAZARDS/HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
	3.7 PUBLIC SERVICES AND UTILITIES
	Water Supply Impacts.  The certified EIR determined that this impact would be less-than-significant.  The project would create an incremental increase in areawide demand for water. As noted above, the Project area has the available water to serve the ...
	Solid Waste Impacts.  Impacts related to solid waste were determined by the certified EIR as being less than significant.  The project will generate incremental increases in demand on landfill capacity. However, the certified EIR determined that adequ...

	3.8 HYDROLOGY/WATER QUALITY
	3.9 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES
	The relationships of the proposed P.A. 2 capacity exchange to the previously certified MICSPA EIR biological resources impact and mitigation conclusions are described below.
	Substantial Effects on Special-Status Species and Sensitive Natural Communities. The certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact would be potentially significant with respect to two sensitive species, the California horned lark and the burrowing ...
	The EIR also indicated the onsite drainage may be subject to the jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 program and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife 1600 program; consequently, consultation with these agencies is required t...
	Substantial Adverse Effect on Riparian Habitat or Other Sensitive Natural Communities.  The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect to this issue and no additional analysis was included in the EI...
	Interfere Substantially With the Movement of Native Resident or Migratory Fish or Wildlife Species, Migratory Corridors or Wildlife Nursery Sites. The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be a less than significant imp...
	Conflict With Local Policies or Ordinances Protection Biological Resources.  The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect to this issue and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. The Init...
	Conflict With an Adopted Habitat Conservation Plan or Natural Community Conservation Plan.  The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect to this issue and no additional analysis was included in th...

	3.10 GEOLOGY AND SOILS
	Unmitigated effects of expansive or otherwise unstable soils may adversely affect roadway subgrades, concrete slabs-on-grade, and building foundations. It was determined that in the event of a severe earthquake in the vicinity of the Project, structur...
	It was also determined that the near-surface sediments in the northern and central parts of the City (where the Project site is located) are composed primarily of granular soils, which are usually non-expansive or have very low expansion potential. Ad...
	It is also noted in the MICSPA EIR that, as a matter of course, a final geotechnical study will be prepared for the site to verify all conclusions made within the preliminary study. The proposed Project would also be required to prepare a final geotec...
	As supported by the preceding discussion, the potential for the proposed Project to be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the California Building Code (2010)6 is considered less-than-significant.

	3.11 CULTURAL RESOURCES
	Disturbance of Human Remains.  The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be a less than significant impact with respect to this issue and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. The Initial Study indicated that ...

	3.12 AESTHETICS
	3.13 POPULATION AND HOUSING
	The relationships of the Planning Area 2 changes to the previously certified MICSPA EIR population and housing impact and mitigation conclusions are described below.
	Induce Substantial Population Growth. The certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact would be less than significant. The EIR indicates that the Industrial, commercial/retail, and residential development, and supporting infrastructure improvement...
	The proposed change to P.A. 2 reduces the estimated buildout from 650,000 square feet to 322,200 square feet of non-residential floor area and would add another 925 multi-family dwellings for a total of 1,725 dwellings (including 800 dwellings in Plan...
	Displacement of Housing and People. The certified MICSPA EIR determined that this impact would be less-than-significant. The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect to this issue and no additiona...

	3.14 OTHER CEQA CHECKLIST AREAS NOT EVALUATED IN THE MICSPA EIR
	This section discusses CEQA “appendix G” Checklist topical areas that were either completely screened out for further review in the MICSPA EIR based on findings of the Initial Study prepared for the EIR or were included as part of the State CEQA Check...
	(b) 3.14.1 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY
	The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would be no impact with respect to any of the issue areas under the topic of Agriculture and Forestry and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. The MICSPA site does not incl...

	(c) 3.14.2 ENERGY

	The State CEQA Guidelines were revised at the beginning of 2019 and included the addition of Energy Question in the “Appendix G:” Environmental Checklist. Two questions were included.
	Would the project result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy sources, during project construction or operation?
	Would the project conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?
	Although these CEQA checklist questions did not exist when the MICSPA EIR was certified in 2015, energy use was evaluated extensively in the EIR (See Section 5-6 starting on page 5-103). Based on this analysis, the MICSPA EIR determined that construct...
	(d) 3.14.3 MINERAL RESOURCES

	The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would less than significant impacts with respect to any of the issue areas under the topic of Mineral Resources and no additional analysis was included in the EIR.
	Analysis in the Initial Study indicated that there are two (2) areas in the entire City that are designated by the California Geological Survey as Resource Sectors containing construction aggregate of “regional significance.” These are the Deer and Da...
	The revised proposed project within P.A. 2 would not result in any additional impacts beyond those evaluated in the Initial Study.
	(e) 3.14.4 RECREATION

	The Initial Study prepared for the MICSPA EIR determined that there would less than significant impact with respect to any of the issue areas under the topic of Recreation and no additional analysis was included in the EIR. Issues considered under thi...
	Analysis in the Initial Study indicates that all new residential development is required to participate in the City’s established Park Development Impact Fee program, which was established pursuant to the Quimby Act (Government Code Section 66477). Th...
	Additionally, private open space/recreation amenities are required as part of multi-family development proposals. As such, a portion of the proposed apartment project’s recreational demands will be met by these on-site amenities.
	Since the revised proposed project within P.A. 2 will be required to pay park fees or provide In-lieu land dedications, and will be required to provide private open space/recreation amenities, potential Recreation impacts would be offset and there  wo...
	(f) 3.14.5 TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES

	The State CEQA Guidelines were revised in 2016 and included the addition of Tribal Cultural Resources in the “Appendix G:” Environmental Checklist which addresses whether a project would:
	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code § 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the la...
	i) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section5020.1(k), or
	ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code § 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivi...
	Although some of the aspects of these questions are similar to those addressed under the Cultural Resources topic, these questions focus directly on Native American cultural resources. The analysis provided in the Cultural Resources section of the MIC...
	The MICSPA does include a suite of Cultural Resource Mitigation Measures to address Native American resources (see Mitigation Measures 4.11 through 4.17 in Table 1-1). These measures include requirements for Native American monitors during excavation/...
	(g) 3.14.6 WILDFIRE

	The State CEQA Guidelines were revised at the beginning of 2019 and included the addition of a new topic to address Wildfire in the “Appendix G:” Environmental Checklist. This new topic contains four questions that address various issues related to Wi...
	(h) 3.14.7 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS
	Cumulative impacts refer to two or more individual effects which, when considered together, are considerable or which compound or increase other environmental impacts” (CEQA Guidelines section 15355).
	Cumulative impacts on transportation and circulation are discussed separately in section 3.6 above because cumulative conditions are evaluated within the sequence of quantitative traffic modeling. In addition, the certified MICSPA EIR determined that ...
	• land use and planning
	• traffic and circulation
	• air quality’
	• global climate change and greenhouse gas emissions
	• population and housing
	• public services and utilities
	• hydrology and water quality
	• biological resources
	• cultural resources
	• aesthetics
	• population and housing
	Consistent with potential “project” impacts resulting from the MICSP itself, the MICSPA EIR determined that cumulative impacts related to the following topics (except transportation and circulation; see section 3.6) would be significant and unavoidable:
	As concluded by the MICSPA EIR, none of the cumulative impacts required mitigations beyond those already identified for MICSP-specific impacts.

	Conclusion. As evidenced by the analyses in this Addendum, the proposed Planning Area 2 change would not change any of the cumulative impact conclusions, and no new mitigation is required.


	4.0 PREPARATION TEAM
	5.0 Appendices


	20191118_Item E-PDEV19-038.pdf
	20191118 File No. PDEV19-038 - Starbucks ^02 Plan. COA.docx.pdf
	20191118 File No. PDEV19-038 - Starbucks ^02 COA
	20191118 File No. PDEV190-038 - Starbucks ^02 COA
	20191118 File No. PDEV190-038 - Starbucks ^02 Plan. COA
	20191119 DAB COA
	PDEV19-038 Rev1_landscape
	CD2019-058_PDEV19-038_PUD19-001_PHP19-009- ALUCP
	PDEV19-038 Building Dept,
	PDEV19-038 Fire Conditions 19-07-12
	PDEV19-038 PD Comments Starbucks Coffee E Street and Euclid Avenue



	PDEV19-038 Engineering COAs-Approved (003)


	20191118_Item A-Minutes.pdf
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

	20191118 File No. PDEV19-025_Palmer West - DAB^03_COA depts (no eng, omuc)111.pdf
	PDEV19-025 Fire Conditions
	PDEV19-025 PD COAs
	PDEV19-025 Bldg COA




